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March 16, 2009

Honorable Mayor, Commissioners,
and City Manager
City of Tallahassee, Florida

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City
of Tallahassee, Florida, for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008, is hereby submitted pursuant to
Florida Statutes, Chapter 11, Section 45, and Chapters
10.550 and 10.600 of the Rules of the Auditor General
of the State of Florida.  This report represents the official
report of the City’s financial operations and condition to
the citizens, City Commission, City management, rating
agencies, and other interested persons.

Management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of the information contained
in this report, based  upon a comprehensive framework
of internal control that it has established for this purpose.
Because the cost of internal control should not exceed
anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements
are free of any material misstatements.

The certified public accounting firm of Carr, Riggs and
Ingram, LLC has issued an unqualified opinion on the
City’s financial statements for the year ended September
30, 2008.  The independent auditors’ report is located at
the front of the financial section of this report.

The City is also required to undergo an annual audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs and state
projects.  These independent auditors’ reports are
presented in the single audit section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD & A)
immediately follows the independent auditors’ report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
of the basic financial statements.  This letter of transmittal
is designed to complement the MD & A and should be
read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE CITY

Tallahassee, the capital city of Florida, was incorporated
in 1825, twenty years before Florida was admitted to the
Union.  The City is governed by a Mayor and four
Commissioners elected at-large.

The City Commission appoints the City Manager, the
City Treasurer-Clerk, the City Auditor, and the City
Attorney.  Collectively the appointed officials are
responsible for all administrative aspects of the
government, with most falling under the purview of the
City Manager.

The City provides a full range of municipal services.
These services include public safety (police and fire),
construction and maintenance of streets and sidewalks,
stormwater management, recreation, planning and
zoning, general administrative services, five utilities
(electric, gas, water, sewer, and solid waste collection),
a mass transit bus system, and a regional airport.

The Commission is required to adopt a final budget no
later than the close of the fiscal year.  This annual budget
serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning
and control.  The budget is approved at the fund and
department level.  Transfers between funds and/or
departments require approval by the Commission.

The budget process is a formalized annual occurrence
that involves input, collaboration, and coordination
between the respective City departments, the Office of
Budget and Policy, the executive team, the City
Commission, and the citizens of Tallahassee.  A budget
review team composed of various members of the
leadership team and executive teams is established to set
budget direction and priorities for the City. Annually,
issues are selected by the City Commission to represent

-3-
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those programs and community needs, which are to be
given priority attention during the year.

Prior to the development of the budget, citizen input is
solicited on any program changes, as well as on
performance of all major programs, through the use of a
citizen survey.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The economy of Leon County is strongly influenced by
governmental and educational activities.  The presence
of the State Capital and two major universities help to
shape Leon County’s population as relatively young, well
educated, and affluent.

The 2007 American Community Survey (the Survey)
shows a racially diverse community, with minorities
accounting for 42.9% of the Leon County population and
35.8% of the City population.  The population is young,
with a median age of 26.9.

Leon County residents have historically attained a very
high level of education. According to the Survey, 41.8%
of area residents aged 25 or older have completed at least
four years of college, compared to 25.8%  of the state on
average.

The 2007 median family income in Leon County is
$70,818, which is comparable to the national median.
Leon County workers in management or professional
occupations amount to 45.3% compared to 34.6%
nationally.

The level of governmental employment has a stabilizing
effect on the economy and helps to minimize
unemployment.  In September 2008, unemployment was
5.2% in the Tallahassee Metropolitan Statistical Area
(MSA), as compared to the State’s unemployment rate of
7.1%. The percentage of employees employed by local,
state, and federal government is approximately 36% of
the work force.  The unemployment rate is one of many
economic indicators utilized to evaluate the condition of
the economy.

Population growth trends are presented in the following
table.

POPULATION GROWTH

                CONSTRUCTION TRENDS

Residential Construction

Another factor that is a strong indicator of the local
economy and influences the City and County’s
financial condition is the issurance of building permits
for residential construction.  Due to the condition of the
national, state, and local economy, single-family
residential building permits in Leon County decreased
51% in fiscal year 2008 as compared to the prior year’s
21% decrease. Permits for multi-family units were down
50% in fiscal year 2008; a 7% increase in fiscal year
2007.  This decline in the housing market and dwindling
repair and replacement costs that result from hurricane
damage has negatively affected sales tax collections.

Commercial Development

In fiscal year 2008, $126 million of new construction
was permitted in Leon County, an increase of  16% over
fiscal year 2007.  Private office buildings and hotels
accounted for approximately 45% of the commercial
permitting activity in fiscal year 2007. The City  of
Tallahassee is continuing implementation of  a number
of strategies to provide a positive business climate and
help create an “18-hour”, multi-use downtown district.

Year Tallahassee Unincorporated Leon County
1950 27,237 24,353 51,590
1960 48,174 26,051 74,225
1970 71,897 31,150 103,047
1980 81,548 67,107 148,655
1990 124,773 67,720 147,490
2000 150,624 88,828 239,452

2008 estimated 177,852 97,040 274,892
2010 projected 181,000 98,200 279,200
2020 projected 205,300 107,100 312,400
2030 projected 226,000 114,800 340,800
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Some of these initiatives include the creation of a
Downtown Community Redevelopment Area, continued
infrastructure and streetscape improvements, marketing sites
for redevelopment, providing incentives for historic
preservation, the creation of a Cultural Plan, and the
addition of new attractions.

As indicated above, the City enjoys the lowest millage
rate of the comparable largest cities in Florida for 2009
and 2008.  Tallahassee’s low and stable millage rate
should act as an incentive to economic growth and
stability.

     LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The financial viability of the City continues to be a high
priority for the City  Commission and management.  An
integral part of the budgeting process is the development
of the City’s Five-Year Financial Plan (the Plan).  The
Plan is updated annually during the budget process and
serves as a blueprint for decision-making and allows for
flexibility to address issues as they arise.

The Plan resulted in an approved fiscal year 2009
operating budget of $841.5 million and an approved
capital budget of $233.7 million.  The Plan for the ensuing
five years (including 2009) results in projected capital
expenditures of approximately $900.9 million.

                      AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate

C it y 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 8
C le a r wa t e r 4 .7 3 4 .6 8
D a y t o n a 5 .4 2 5 .1 7
F t .  L a ude r da le 4 .1 2 4 .1 2
Ga in e sv ille 4 .2 5 4 .2 5
H o lly wo o d 5 .6 9 5 .9 5
L a k e la n d 3 .4 3 .2 3
L a r go 3 .8 4 3 .6 5
O r la n do 5 .6 5 3 .6 5
P e n sa c o la 4 .5 4 4 .6 0
P o m p a n o 3 .9 6 3 .8 1
Ta l l a h a s s e e 3 .2 1 3 .1 7
W e st  P a lm  B e a c h 7 .5 5 7 .1 9

M illa ge  R a t e s

  M illa ge  R a t e s -  C o m p a r a ble  C it ie s in  F lo r ida

a prestigious national award that recognizes conformance
with the highest standards for preparation of state and
local government financial reports.  In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must
publish a comprehensive annual financial report, whose
contents satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.  A
Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one
year only.  We believe our current report continues to
conform to Certificate of Achievement Program
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for a new certificate.

In addition, the City received the GFOA’s Award for
Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual budget
for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2007.  In order
to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award, the City’s budget document was judged to be
proficient in several categories including policy
documentation, operations guidance, financial planning
and communications.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could
not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Accounting Services
Division, in particular the members of the Financial
Reporting staff, who participated in the compilation of
the report.  We would also like to thank the members of
the City Commission for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial operations of the
City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Raoul A. Lavin
Director of Management and Administration

of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
the City of Tallahassee, Florida for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008.  The Certificate of Achievement is

Richard G. Feldman
Accounting Services Manager
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Tallahassee’s annual financial report is designed to provide the reader with a better
understanding of the City’s financial activity for the fiscal year that ended September 30, 2008.  It should be read in
conjunction with the Transmittal Letter at the front of this report and the City’s financial statements, which follow
this section. Notes mentioned below are Notes to the Financial Statements, which follow the statements.
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Financial Highlights

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities as of September 30, 2008 by $1.95 billion (net assets).  Of this
amount, $366 million represents unrestricted net assets that are available to meet the City’s ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors.

• For the year ended September 30, 2008, the City’s total net assets decreased by $15.6 million.

• As of September 30, 2008, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$134.1 million; of this amount approximately $14.2 million is unreserved.

• For the year ended  September 30, 2008, the funds balances City’s governmental funds decreased $21.4
million.

• At the end of the fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $5.1 million, or 4.5% of
total general fund expenditures.

• As of September 30, 2008, the City’s enterprise funds reported combined ending net assets of $945.4 million;
of this amount approximately $225.8 million is unrestricted.  The ending retained earnings represent an
increase of $17.2 million over the prior year.

• Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of September 30, 2008 fiscal year totaled $2.16 billion
(Note- IV-D).

 • The City’s outstanding long-term debt (Note IV-G) increased $185.0 million, or 24.4%, during the current
fiscal year.  The key factor in this increase was the issuance of $164.5 million of revenue bonds for the
City’s Water and Sewer utilities.

An Overview of the Financial Statements

The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements are designed to report information about the City as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies.  Two statements, the statement of net assets
and the statement of activities, are utilized to provide information on a government-wide basis.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets.  The change in net assets, over time, is one way to measure the City’s
financial health.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the current fiscal
year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will
result in cash flows in future periods.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three categories:

• Governmental activities – These include the basic services provided by the City including police, parks
and recreation, public works, and general administration. Property, sales, and other taxes finance the majority
of these activities.

• Business-type activities – These include services for which the City charges specific fees which are meant
to cover the cost of providing the services.  These include electric, gas, airport, fire protection, solid waste
collection, water, sewer, stormwater management, transit services, and the Hilaman Golf Course.

• Component units – These are legally separate organizations for which the City Commission appoints the
governing board and the City has financial reporting responsibilities.  The City has one discretely presented
component unit, the Downtown Improvement Authority, which is an agency created by the Florida Legislature
to regulate downtown growth.  The City also has a blended component unit, the Community ̀ Redevelopment
Agency, which is blended as a major special revenue fund into the primary government (see Note I–A for
more details).

                                  FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives.  The focus is on Major Funds, which provides detailed information about the
most significant funds.  The City, like other governmental entities, uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with financial requirements imposed by law, bond covenants, and local administrative and legislative actions.  All
of the City’s funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Since the focus of governmental funds is
narrower than that of government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.
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This allows readers to better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City maintains thirteen (13) individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances for the General and the Community Redevelopment Agency Funds, both of which are considered
major funds.  Data from the other eleven (11) funds are combined into a single, aggregate presentation.  Individual
fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided on pages 96 to 99 in this report.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS – The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds.  Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The
City maintains ten (10) individual enterprise funds.  Information is presented separately in the proprietary funds
statement of net assets and in the proprietary funds statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets for
the Electric, Gas, Sewer, Water, Airport, and Stormwater Management Funds, all of which are considered major
funds.  Data from the other four (4) funds are combined into a single, aggregate presentation.  Individual fund data
for each of these non-major proprietary funds is provided on pages 101to 103 in this report.

Internal Service Funds are used to account for activities that provide goods and services to the City’s other programs
and activities.  The City maintains twelve (12) individual internal service funds.  These internal service funds are
allocated between governmental activities and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements
based upon the activity that receives the predominant benefit.  Internal service funds are combined into a single,
aggregate presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.  Individual fund data for each of these internal
service funds is provided on pages 106 to 111 in this report.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS – Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the City’s programs and activities.  The City reports two fiduciary funds.  The basic
financial statements for these funds are provided on pages 44 to 45 in this report.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

This report additionally includes required supplementary information (RSI) including a budget comparison schedule,
with related notes, for the General Fund and information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to
provide pension benefits to its employees.

The combining statements in connection with non-major governmental funds, non-major enterprise funds and internal
service funds are presented in the combining statements section of the report.

Information regarding the City’s debt service requirements, statistical information, and economic data is also presented
to give report users an historical perspective of the City and to allow for broader understanding of the economic and
social environment in which the City operates.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As indicated previously, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets for the current and prior year.

As of September 30, 2008, assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $1.95 billion.  The largest portion of the
City’s net assets, $1.44 billion or 73.8 percent, reflects its substantial investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
equipment, etc.), less the related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.  The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to residents; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  In addition portion of
the City’s net assets, $143.4 million or 7.3 percent, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used.  The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, $365.9 million or 18.9 percent is available
to meet the ongoing obligations of the City.  As of September 30, 2008, the City is able to report positive balances
in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as its separate governmental and
business-type activities.

During the year the City’s total assets increased by approximately $192.1 million and the City’s liabilities increased
by approximately $207.7 million, due primarily to the issuance of $164.5 million of revenue bonds for the City’s
Water and Sewer.  For more detailed information see the Statement of net Assets on pages 28 and 29 of the financial
statements.

2008
2007

 (As  Res tated) 2008
2007

(As  Res tated) 2008
2007

(As  Res tated)
As s ets
Curren t and  o ther as s ets 222.6$          253.3$              781.0$            638.8$              1,003.6$    892.1$               
Cap ital as s ets 909.2 919.6 1,248.1 1,157.1 2,157.3 2,076.7
      Total As s ets 1,131.8         1,172.9             2,029.1           1,795.9             3,160.9      2,968.8              
Liabilities
Curren t and  o ther liab ilities 61.5              67.0                  236.3              203.0                297.8         270.0                 
Long-term debt ou ts tand ing 113.1 117.7 797.3 612.8 910.4 730.5
      Total Liabilities 174.6            184.7                1,033.6           815.8                1,208.2      1,000.5              
Net As s ets
Inves ted  in  cap ital as s ets , 
net o f related deb t 814.4            820.4                629.0              677.1                1,443.4      1,497.5              
Res tricted 19.4 19.5 124.0 107.9 143.4 127.4
Unres tricted 123.4 148.3 242.5 195.1 365.9 343.4
      Total Net As s ets 957.2$            988.2$                995.5$             980.1$                1,952.7$      1,968.3$             

                Total Activities
Bus ines s -type

 Activities
Governmental

Table 1
S tatement of Net As s ets

As  of S eptember 30
(In millions )
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Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

    (in millions)

The following table summarizes the changes in net assets for the current and prior year.

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Revenues
Program revenues
  Charges for Services $14.0 $15.1 $572.7 $533.4 $586.7 $548.5
  Operating Grants and Contributions 9.5 9.6 3.4 3.9 12.9 13.5
  Capital Grants and Contributions 0.7 5.4 7.2 19.0 7.9 24.4

General revenues   

  Property Taxes 33.6 35.6 -                   -                   33.6 35.6
  Public Service Taxes 22.1 21.8 -                   -                   22.1 21.8
  Grants and Contributions 25.0 26.2 -                   -                   25.0 26.2
  Net Investment Revenue 5.2 9.7 6.8 16.9 12.0 26.6
  Other Revenues 4.4 5.8 (1.5) (4.2) 2.9 1.6
Total Revenues 114.5 129.2 588.6 569.0 703.1 698.2

Expenses

  General Government 20.7 23.0 -                   -                   20.7 23.0
  Public Safety 54.4 50.9 -                   -                    54.4 50.9
  Transportation 23.3 20.9 -                   -                   23.3 20.9
  Cultural and Recreation 19.5 18.2 -                   -                   19.5 18.2
  Depreciation on Infrastructure 24.0 24.0 -                   -                   24.0 24.0
  Other Primary Government 25.2 23.7 -                   -                   25.2 23.7
  Electric -                   -                   346.3 323.2 346.3 323.2
  Gas -                   -                   51.6 40.1 51.6 40.1
  Sewer -                   -                   37.8 35.7 37.8 35.7
  Water  -                   -                   21.1 19.2 21.1 19.2
  Airport -                   -                   16.3 16.1 16.3 16.1
  StarMetro -                   -                   18.4 16.3 18.4 16.3

  Solid Waste -                   -                   20.6 20.7 20.6 20.7
  Golf -                   -                   1.3 1.2 1.3 1.2
  Stormwater Management -                   -                   10.6 9.9 10.6 9.9
  Fire Services -                   -                   27.6 25.2 27.6 25.2
Total Expenses 167.1 160.7 551.6 507.6 718.7 668.3

Excess (Deficiency) before special item and 
transfers (52.6) (31.5) 37.0 61.4 (15.6) 29.9
Special Item 0.0 (54.3) -                   54.3 -                   -                   
Transfers 21.5 25.8 (21.5) (25.8) -                   -                   
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets ($31.1) ($60.0) $15.5 $89.9 ($15.6) $29.9

TotalActivities
Governmental Business

Activities
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G o ve r n m e n t a l  R e ve n u e s

I n v e s t m e n t  
E a r n in g s

4 %

T a x e s
4 1 %

G r a n t s  &  
C o n t r ib u t io n s

2 6 %

O t h e r  
R e v e n u e

3 %

T r a n s f e r s  I n  
1 6 %

C h a r g e s  f o r  
S e r v ic e s

1 0 %

GOVERNMENTAL A CTIVITIES - Governmental activities decreased net assets of the City by $31.1 million.  See pages
30 and 31 of the financial statements for the net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities) of these
programs or functions.  The following charts illustrate the City’s Governmental Revenues by Source and the City’s
Governmental Expenses by Function.
.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $15.5 million.  The following
table summarizes program revenues and expenses for each business-type activity:

The following table summarizes program revenues and expenses for each business-type activity:

Key elements of the decrease are as follows:

• Property taxes, which provided 29.3% of governmental revenues, decreased by $2.0 million due to the
impact of property tax reform initiatives at the State level.  The Florida Legislature required local governments
to roll back millage rates to the fiscal year 2007 level and to do a further rollback based upon a State
designated formula.  Based upon this mandate the City property tax millage went from 3.7000 to 3.1686.

• Revenues from Grants and Contributions decreased by $6.0 million compared to the prior year; primarily
as a result reduced contributions from Florida A&M University associated with expenditures included in
the FAMU Master Plan.

• Net Investment Earnings decreased by $4.5 million due to a combination of less cash available for investment,
lower interest rates, and the recording of the decrease in the fair market value of investments as a result of
the economic conditions.

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Electric 369 .5$          347 .5$           346 .3$           323 .2$           23 .2$             24 .3$             
Gas 53 .7              43 .3              51 .6              40 .1              2 .1                3 .2                
S ewer 45 .6              39 .7              37 .8              35 .7              7 .8                4 .0                
Water 25 .8              28 .0              21 .1              19 .1              4 .7                8 .9                
Airport 16 .7              19 .8              16 .3              16 .1              0 .4                3 .7                
S tarMetro 10 .9              11 .6              18 .4              16 .3              (7 .5 )              (4 .7 )              
S olid Waste 19 .7              18 .8              20 .6              20 .8              (0 .9 )              (2 .0 )              
Golf 0 .9                1 .0                1 .3                1 .2                (0 .4 )              (0 .2 )              
S tormwater Mgmt. 16 .5              22 .9              10 .6              9 .9                5 .9                13 .0              
Fire  S ervices 24 .0              23 .7              27 .6              25 .2              (3 .6 )              (1 .5 )              
  Total  583 .3$          556 .3$           551 .6$           507 .6$           31 .7$             48 .7$             

Program  Re ve n u e s Program  Expe n se s

Table 3
Bus iness -type Activities

(in millions )
Exce ss  (De fi ci e n cy)

B e fore  G e n e ral  Re ve n u e s

G ove r n m e n ta l  Expe n s e s

P u b lic  Safet y
2 9 %

D ep r. o n  
In fras t u ct .

1 4 %

T ran s p o rt a t io n
1 1 %

G en eral G o v 't
1 4 %

T ran s fer s  O u t
4 %

H u m an  
Serv ice s

7 %
O t h e r G o v 't  

E xp
1 1 %

C u lt u re  &  R ec.
1 0 %
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances
of spendable resources.  As of September 30, 2008, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $134.1 million, a decrease of $21.4 million from the prior year.  Of this amount $14.2 million is
unreserved fund balance that is available for spending at the City’s discretion.  The remainder of fund balance is
primarily reserved for the following purposes: 1) to complete approved projects of the City ($87.9 million),  2) to
liquidate contracts and purchase orders ($17.8 million), 3) to pay future debt service ($8.8 million) and 4) other
purposes ($5.4 million).  The following table summarizes the change in fund balance for the governmental funds:

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated
fund balance was $5.1 million, out of a total fund balance of $7.2 million.

Although the City implemented a variety of expenditure-saving measures to reduce the impact of revenue reductions
resulting from the economic slowdown, fund balance of the City’s General Fund decreased by $2.7 million during
the fiscal year, primarily due to the following revenues coming in at amounts less than projected:

Fund 
Balances

Fund 
Balances

Fund 9/30/2007 Sources Uses 9/30/2008

General Fund  $            9.9  $        130.8  $        133.5  $         (2.7)  $            7.2 
Capital Bonds  Fund 6.6 3.5 1.7 1.8 8.4
Other Funds 139 35.7 56.2 (20.5) 118.5
Total City Funds  $        155.5  $        170.0  $        191.4  $       (21.4)  $        134.1 

Table 4
Financial Analysis  of the City’s  Governmental Funds

(in millions)

Sources  
Over 

(Under) 

Key elements for this increase are as follows:

• Program revenues for business-type activities for the fiscal year 2008 were $583.3 million, an increase of
$27.0 million compared to the prior year. This increase was due primarily to the following:

• Charges for services for the City’s Electric and Gas Utilities accounted for $34.6 million due to
increased natural gas prices that are passed on to the customer.

• Increased Sewer Utility revenues due to a rate increase.

• Program expenses for business-type activities for the fiscal year 2008 were $551.6 million, an increase of
$44.0 million compared to the prior year.  This increase was due to the following:

• As with revenues, the City’s Electric and Gas Utilities fuel costs accounted for a majority, 77.3
percent, of the increase due to the rising natural gas prices.  Other increases in expenses resulted
from inflation and growth in the demand for services.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements
but in more detail.  Factors addressing the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of
the City’s business-type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

A schedule comparing the original to the final budget and the variance from the final budget to the actual results is
included on page 90 of the financial statements.

ORIGINAL TO FINAL BUDGET COMPARISON

Revenues and Transfers In

Expenditures

Expenditures and transfers out also decreased by $2.0 million between the original and final budgets.  As indicated
above this was due to the City Commission amending the budget to reflect the downturn in revenues due to the
economic slowdown and its impact on the City.

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities, net of depreciation, as of
September 30, 2008 was approximately $2.2 billion.  This represents a net increase of approximately $80 million,
or 3.9% over last year.  See Note IV-D for more information about the City’s capital assets.

Revenues and transfers in decreased by $2.0 million between the original and final budgets.  This reduction was due
to the City Commission amending the budget to reflect the downturn in revenues due to the economic slowdown
and its impact on the City.

• Electric and gas utility taxes were $2.2 million due to lower consumption resulting from mild weather;

• Intergovernmental revenues such as state revenue sharing and the 1/2 cent sales tax were lower than projected
by $1.2 million due to state sales tax collections being reduced as a result of a slowdown in the state
economy; and

 • Licenses and permits, specifically, environmental fees, were also lower than projected by $1.1 million due
to a building slowdown in the Tallahassee area.

In addition, changes to the budgets between functions occurred between the budget for transfers, which increased
by $2.0 million, and various other expense categories that decreased to fund projects.  Project priorities change
during the year based on needs, assessments, availability of grant funding or other issues that impact the start or
completion of projects or their cost.

Expenditures within the General Fund increased by $1.4 million, or 1.3%.
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Major capital acquisitions and improvements during the year included the following:

• Street construction, widening and expansion projects - $12 million

• 800 MHz Digital Upgrade - $4.0 million

• Gas transmission and distribution mains and meters - $2.3 million

• Water transmission amd distribution mains, wells,  meters and hydrants - $11.9 million

• Sewer treatment, collection and disposal equipment - $14.4 million

• Electric transmission and distribution infrastructure which includes land, substations, poles, line
transformers, overhead and underground conductors, meters, services - $40.7 million

• Electric generation (repowering of the Hopkins Unit 2) - $57.8 million

Total % 
Change

2008
2007 

 (As Restated) 2008
2007 

(As Restated) 2008
2007 

 (As Restated) 2007-2008
Land 351$      351$              123$      124$                       474$      475$              0.0%
Buildings 67          71                  68          67                           135        138                (2.2)
Equipment 9            11                  409        284                         418        295                41.7
Improvements
     (Other than Building) 6            5                    10          7                             16          12                  33.3
Infrastructure 422        443                441        429                         863        872                (1.0)
Intangibles -- -- 50          48                           50          48                  4.2
Construction in Progress 54          39                  147        198                         201        237                (15.2)
     Total 909$      920$              1,248$   1,157$                    2,157$   2,077$           3.9%

Governmental     
Activities Business-Type Activities Total

Table 5
Capital Assets

(net of depreciation, in millions)

LONG-TERM DEBT

As shown in the following table, as of September 30, 2008, the City had $943.2 million in debt outstanding.  This
represents a net increase of $185 million over the prior fiscal year.

New debt resulted primarily from the issuance of Consolidated Utility System revenue bonds of $164.5 million to
treatment improvements to the City’s sewer utility and a loan payable associated with the replacement of the City’s
electric, gas, and water meters.

Bond ratings have a significant influence in establishing the rate of interest expense the City must pay when the
bonds are sold.  Ratings for the City’s debt have been consistently judged to be of good investment quality; however,
in January 2009, one of the nationally known rating agencies reduced the City’s rating for the City’s general
government revenue bonds from AA to AA- reflecting the agency’s concerns regarding the city’s ability to resolve
the limited revenue flexibility due to state initiatives and the current economic downturn.

The amount of general obligation debt the City can issue is limited by City Charter to 20 percent of the assessed
value of all taxable property within the City’s corporate limits. The current debt limit is $2.2 billion.  The City has
no outstanding general obligation debt.
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Additional information about the City’s long-term liabilities is included in Note IV-G to the financial statements.

• The unemployment rate for the Tallahassee metropolitan area is 3.2%; compared with the statewide rate of
3.4%.

• The percentage of employees employed by local, state, and federal government in the Tallahassee
metropolitan area is approximately 36% of the work force.

• The ratio of taxable assessed value to total estimated value for ad valorem tax purposes remains at 57%,
demonstrating the lack of taxable property in the City due to the large amount of tax-exempt property.  As
previously indicated, property tax reform initiated at the state level and the general slowdown in the state
economy will have significant impact on the revenues of the City.

• Inflationary pressures, growth, and environmental issues continue to impact the City’s electric, gas, water
and sewer utilities.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

These indicators, as well as others, were taken into account when adopting the City’s budget for fiscal year 2009.
The City’s total operating budget for fiscal year 2009 totals $841.5 million, which is $111.5 million greater than the
fiscal year 2008 approved budget.  Projected rising natural gas costs for the City’s Electric and Gas Utilities accounts
for 91.9% of the increase. The 2009 budget allocates $133.2 million, a reduction of $1.3 million as compared to the
fiscal year 2008 budget, to the General fund, $688.4 million to the Enterprise funds, and $19.9 million to other
funds.

For the fiscal year 2009 budget, the ad valorem tax rate is increased to 3.2115 mills. The budget includes fee
increases for the Solid Waste and Stormwater funds, as well as fee increases for the City’s electric and sewer
utilities in order to ensure the adequacy of current rates.

Personnel expenditures account for 19.5% of the City’s Operating Budget.  The City’s fiscal year 2009 operating
budget includes a net decrease of 50.5 positions, bringing the budgeted full time equivalent staff count to 2,931.

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

General Revenue Bonds 84.1$      87.8$      --$       --$       84.1$      87.8$      
S unshine S tate 30.2        30.7        57.0        61.1        87.2        91.8        
Proprietary Revenue Bonds -- -- 710.1      559.4      710.1      559.4      
Other Loans -- -- 35.3        -- 35.3        --
Compensated Absences 9.0          8.5          11.6        10.7        20.6        19.2        
Net OPEB O bligation 3.2          2.7          -- 5.9          --
   Total 126.5$    127.0$    816.7$    631.2$    943.2$    758.2$    

              Total
Governmental         

Activities
  Business-type      

Activities             

Table 6
Outs tanding Debt at September 30

(in millions)
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The City’s fiscal year 2009 Capital Budget totals $233.7 million with the City’s utilities accounting for $195.1
million (83.4%); other major uses include transportation, general government, and culture and recreation.

Bond proceeds (new and existing) will fund approximately 54% of these capital projects with the balance of funding
coming primarily from capital improvement funds reserved for projects, federal funds, state funds, and general
government resources.  The City has a five year plan for capital improvements for all projects planned through
fiscal year 2013 that totals $900.9 billion with appropriations of funding made on an annual basis.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general overview of
the City of Tallahassee’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you
have questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the Accounting Services Manager
at Mailbox A 29, 300 South Adams Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1731 or via the web at
rick.feldman@talgov.com.
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BASIC
                         FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These basic financial statements provide a summary overview of the financial position
as well as the operating results of the City of Tallahassee.  They also serve as an introduction to the more
detailed statements and schedules that follow in subsequent sections:

Government-wide Financial Statements
Governmental Funds Financial Statements

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements
Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

 Component Unit 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

 Downtown 
Improvement 

Authority 
ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents..................................... 85,454 $               169,914 $         255,368 $         283 $                           
Securities Lending Collateral ................................. 15,487 30,648 46,135 51
Receivables:    

Accrued Interest.................................................. 881 1,834 2,715 3
Customers and Other........................................... 3,060 56,929 59,989 -- 
Notes................................................................... 148 5,177 5,325 -- 
Special Assessments............................................ 325 -- 325 -- 
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts............. (616) (2,733) (3,349) -- 
Due from Other Governments............................. 4,257 2,830 7,087 -- 

Prepaid Expenses.................................................... -- 51,995 51,995 -- 
Inventory................................................................. 300 47,679 47,979 -- 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted................. 13,891 173,597 187,488 -- 
Investments - Restricted.......................................... 66,167 186,372 252,539 -- 
Securities Lending Collateral - Restricted.............. 14,427 59,940 74,367 -- 
Receivables - Restricted:    

Accrued Interest.................................................. 147 1,614 1,761 -- 
Other................................................................... 138 7 145 -- 
Notes................................................................... 3,021 -- 3,021 -- 
Due from Other Governments............................. 753 1,114 1,867 -- 

Total Current Assets...................................... 207,840 786,917 994,757 337
  

Noncurrent Assets   
Internal Balances.................................................... 13,929 (13,929) -- -- 
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs............................... 812 7,998 8,810 -- 
Capital Assets

Land and Construction in Progress..................... 405,349 269,898 675,247 -- 
Other, Net of Accumulated Depreciation............ 503,905 978,245 1,482,150 -- 

Total Noncurrent Assets................................ 923,995 1,242,212 2,166,207 -- 
 

Total Assets.................................................... 1,131,835 $          2,029,129 $      3,160,964 $      337 $                           

Primary Government

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2008
(in thousands)
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

 Component Unit 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-
type 

Activities Total

 Downtown 
Improvement 

Authority 
LIABILITIES  AND NET AS S ETS  

LIABILITIES  
Current Liabilities  

Obligations Under Securities Lending ................ 15,487 $             30,648 $          46,135 $          51 $                           
Accounts Payable............................................... 10,374 70,221 80,595 17
Customer Contracts Payable.............................. -- 1,275 1,275 -- 
Utility Deposits Payable.................................... -- 19,244 19,244 -- 
Unearned Revenue.............................................. 2,700 5,298 7,998 -- 
Compensated Absences...................................... 6,535 7,713 14,248 2
Accounts Payable - Restricted........................... 1,419 7,557 8,976 -- 
Obligations Under Securities Lending - Restricted 14,427 59,940 74,367 -- 
Unearned Revenue - Restricted.......................... 670 -- 670 -- 
Bonds & Loans Payable - Current...................... 4,275 15,174 19,449 -- 

Total Current Liabilities........................ 55,887 217,070 272,957 70
 

Noncurrent Liabilities   
Compensated Absences...................................... 2,461 3,839 6,300 10
Customer Contracts Payable.............................. -- 3,269 3,269 -- 
Claims Payable................................................... -- 9,454 9,454 -- 
Net OPEB Obligation......................................... 3,185 2,710 5,895 4
Bonds & Loans Payable..................................... 110,060 787,251 897,311 -- 
Unamortized Bond Premium ............................. 3,017 12,453 15,470 -- 
Deferment of Loss on Early Retirement of Debt -- (2,450) (2,450) -- 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities.................. 118,723 816,526 935,249 14
 

Total Liabilities........................................ 174,610 1,033,596 1,208,206 84
 

NET AS S ETS  
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt 814,414 628,969 1,443,383 -- 
Restricted for:.....................................................   

  Capital Projects............................................ 3,495 93,370 96,865 -- 
  Debt Service.................................................. 8,762 30,720 39,482 -- 
  Other Purposes............................................. 7,108 -- 7,108 -- 

Unrestricted........................................................ 123,446 242,474 365,920 253
Total Net Assets....................................... 957,225 995,533 1,952,758 253

 
Total Liabilities and Net Assets............. 1,131,835 $        2,029,129 $     3,160,964 $     337 $                         

S eptember 30, 2008
(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHAS S EE, FLORIDA
S TATEMENT OF NET AS S ETS

Primary Government
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Expenses

 Charges 
for 

Services 

 Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 
 Capital Grants 

and Contributions 
Function/Programs
Primary Government:    

Governmental Activities:
General Government............................................................... 20,737 $         1,665 $        2,988 $                -- $                           
Public Safety........................................................................... 54,416 2,173 729 31
Transportation......................................................................... 23,314 2,250 17 172
Human Services...................................................................... 6,863 692 644 -- 
Economic Development.......................................................... 7,828 -- 3,968 13
Physical Environment............................................................. 4,739 4,049 257 525
Culture and Recreation........................................................... 19,459 3,142 907 1
Unallocated Depreciation on Infrastructure............................ 23,956 -- -- -- 
Interest on Long-Term Debt................................................... 5,798 -- -- -- 

Total governmental activities............................................ 167,110 13,971 9,510 742

Business-type Activities:
Electric.................................................................................... 346,318 369,483 -- -- 
Gas.......................................................................................... 51,609 53,691 -- -- 
Sewer...................................................................................... 37,855 45,668 -- -- 
Water...................................................................................... 21,083 25,764 -- -- 
Airport.................................................................................... 16,298 12,713 -- 4,026
StarMetro................................................................................ 18,358 4,258 3,407 3,206
Solid Waste............................................................................. 20,579 19,746 -- -- 
Golf......................................................................................... 1,264 936 -- -- 
Stormwater Management........................................................ 10,629 16,516 -- 13
Fire Services........................................................................... 27,612 23,962 -- -- 

Total business-type activities............................................ 551,605 572,737 3,407 7,245
            Total primary government............................................... 718,715 $       586,708 $    12,917 $              7,987 $                     

Component Unit:
Downtown Improvement Authority............................................ 228 $              -- $               -- $                      -- $                           

  Public service taxes….…….……………………….…………………………
  Business license tax……………………...…………...…………….…………
  Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs….……………
  Net unrestricted investment earnings….……………………………...………
  Net securities lending income….……………………………...……………
  Net decrease in fair value of investments...…………………………………
  Miscellaneous….…………………………...…………………………………
  Gain (loss) on the sale of capital assets….……….………………….....
  Net transfers….………………………………………………………………
      Total general revenues and transfers...……………………………….......
         Change in net assets………………………...........………………………
         Net assets - October 1…..….………………………...…………………
         Adjustment to October 1 net assets.………………………...……………
         Net assets - October 1 as restated…..….………………………...………
         Net assets - September 30………………………......….…...……………

  CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
  STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

   For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

  Property taxes, levied for general purposes…………........…………………
General Revenues:

Program Revenues

(in thousands)
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                    CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
                          STATEM ENT OF ACTIVITIES

                                           (in thousands)

 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-type 
Activities Total

 Component 
Unit 

( 16,084)$                   -- $                         ( 16,084)$         -- $                  
(51,483) -- (51,483) -- 
(20,875) -- (20,875) -- 

(5,527) -- (5,527) -- 
(3,847) -- (3,847) -- 

92 -- 92 -- 
(15,409) -- (15,409) -- 
(23,956) -- (23,956) -- 

(5,798) -- (5,798) -- 
(142,887) -- (142,887) -- 

-- 23,165 23,165 -- 
-- 2,082 2,082 -- 
-- 7,813 7,813 -- 
-- 4,681 4,681 -- 
-- 441 441 -- 
-- (7,487) (7,487) -- 
-- (833) (833) -- 
-- (328) (328) -- 
-- 5,900 5,900 -- 
-- (3,650) (3,650) -- 
-- 31,784 31,784 -- 

(142,887) 31,784 (111,103) -- 

(228)

33,570 -- 33,570 198
22,144 -- 22,144 -- 

1,825 -- 1,825 -- 
24,969 -- 24,969 -- 

7,039 12,937 19,976 11
268 441 709 -- 

(2,091) (6,602) (8,693) (6)
2,008 -- 2,008 101

599 (1,615) (1,016)
21,470 (21,470) -- -- 

111,801 (16,309) 95,492 304
(31,086) 15,475 (15,611) 76
986,282 968,106 1,954,388 177

2,029 11,952 13,981 -- 
988,311                    980,058               1,968,369       177               
957,225 $                    995,533 $              1,952,758 $       253 $               

                For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

Primary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
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FUNDS 
 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  
 
General  Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 

another fund.  The functions paid for by the general fund include police, protective 
inspection, code enforcement, culture and recreation, general government, 
transportation, human services, economic development, and physical environment. 

 
Community  Accounts for the general tax revenue collected on and the expenses incurred in  
Redevelopment  the redevelopment of properties in the community redevelopment area. 
Agency   
 
Other Detailed descriptions of these funds are provided on page 95. 
Governmental Funds  

 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  

    
Electric  Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned electric 

generation, transmission, and distribution system.  
 
Gas  Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned gas system.  
 
Sewer  Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City’s wastewater 

collection and treatment system. 
 
Water  Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City’s water production and 

distribution system. 
 
Airport  Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned regional 

airport. 
 
Stormwater  Accounts for the operation, maintenance, and expansion of the City-owned Stormwater
Management            Utility system.   
 
Other  Detailed descriptions of these funds are provided on page 100. 
Enterprise Funds  
 
Internal  Detailed descriptions of these funds are provided on page 105. 
Service Funds  
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FUNDS  
(continued) 

 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

  
Pension Trust  Accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for retirement annuity 

payments to City employees including both a Defined Benefit Plan and a 
Defined Contribution Plan.  The Defined Benefit Plan accounts for general 
employees, police officers and fire fighters separately.  The Defined 
Contribution Plan covers all employees who elect to contribute a portion of their 
salary to the plan. 

 
Nuclear  Accounts for resources legally held in trust for Florida Power Corporation (FPC) 
Decommissioning  for the future decommissioning of the Crystal River Unit 3 Utility Plant (CR3 

Plant).   
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 General 

 Community 
Redevelopment 

Agency 

 Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents.................................... 14,161 $           -- $                        49,688 $                 63,849 $                 
Securities Lending Collateral ................................ 2,535                -- 9,046                      11,581                    
Receivables:  

Accrued Interest................................................. 153                   -- 499                         652                         
Customers and Other.......................................... 3,010                -- 35                           3,045                      
Notes.................................................................. --                       -- 148                         148                         
Special Assessments - Current........................... --                       -- 325                         325                         
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts............ ( 616)                -- --                            ( 616)                     

Due From Other Governments............................... 2,423                -- 1,834                      4,257                      
Advances to Other Funds....................................... 1,889                -- 118                         2,007                      
Inventory................................................................ 300                   -- --                            300                         
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted................ 169                   8,429 5,293                      13,891                    
Investments - Restricted......................................... --                       -- 66,167                    66,167                    
Securities Lending Collateral - Restricted............. 30                     1,530 12,867                    14,427                    
Receivables - Restricted:    

Accrued Interest Receivable............................... --                       91 56                           147                         
Customers.......................................................... --                       2 136                         138                         
Notes Receivable................................................ --                       -- 3,021                      3,021                      
Due from Other Governments............................ --                       -- 753                         753                         

Total Assets................................................... 24,054 $           10,052 $                149,986 $               184,092 $               

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

Obligations Under Securities Lending .................. 2,535 $             -- $                        9,046 $                   11,581 $                 
Accounts and Retainage Payable........................... 4,690                --                           4,625                      9,315                      
Unearned Revenue................................................. 1,450                --                           1,167                      2,617                      
Accounts and Retainage Payable - Restricted........ 169                   30                          1,220                      1,419                      
Obligations Under Securities Lending - Restricted 30                     1,530                     12,867                    14,427                    
Due to Other Funds............................................... 53                     --                           --                            53                           
Advances from Other Funds.................................. 7,855                118                        1,889                      9,862                      
Unearned Revenue - Restricted............................. --                       --                           670                         670                         

Total Liabilities............................................. 16,782              1,678 31,484                    49,944                    
 

FUND BALANCES  
Reserved for:   

Encumbrances.................................................... --                       558                        17,230                    17,788                    
Advances to Other Funds................................... 1,889                --                           118                         2,007                      
Inventory............................................................ 300                   --                           --                            300                         
Projects.............................................................. --                       8,662                     79,268                    87,930                    
Notes Receivable................................................ --                       --                           3,169                      3,169                      
Debt Service....................................................... --                       --                           8,762                      8,762                      

Unreserved, designated for:   
General Fund - Deficiencies............................... 5,083                --                           --                            5,083                      

Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:   
Special Revenue Funds...................................... --                       ( 846)                    ( 239)                     ( 1,085)                  
Capital Project Funds......................................... --                       --                           3,737                      3,737                      
Permanent Fund................................................. --                       --                           6,457                      6,457                      

Total Fund Balances..................................... 7,272                8,374                     118,502                  134,148                  
 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances............ 24,054 $           10,052 $                149,986 $               184,092 $               

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Governmental Funds
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 134,148$         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 895,114           

Unamortized Bond Issue Costs are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 812                  

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs 
of certain activities to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of 
the governmental-type internal services funds are included in the 
Statement of Net Assets. 33,643             

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (106,492)          

Net Assets - Governmental Activities 957,225$         

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE

(in thousands)
September 30, 2008

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
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 General Fund

Community 
Redevelopment 

Agency

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total

Revenues:
Taxes...................................................................... 54,588 $           1,126 $                    -- $                        55,714 $              
Licenses and Permits.............................................. 3,278 -- 2,871 6,149
Intergovernmental Revenues.................................. 17,775 2,133 14,566 34,474
Charges for Services............................................... 6,927 -- 121 7,048
Fines and Forfeitures.............................................. 1,272 -- 322 1,594
Net Investment Earnings........................................ 1,416 236 4,038 5,690
Securities Lending Income..................................... 356 80 1,156 1,592
Net Decrease in the Fair Value of Investments...... (298) (178) (1,161) (1,637)
Miscellaneous Revenues........................................ 10,778 87 1,167 12,032

Total Revenues................................................ 96,092 3,484 23,080 122,656
 

Expenditures:  
Current:  

General Government........................................... 21,142 -- 9,624 30,766
Public Safety....................................................... 47,115 -- 4,615 51,730
Transportation..................................................... 16,438 -- 19,280 35,718
Human Services.................................................. 5,732 -- 862 6,594
Economic Environment...................................... 2,168 1,601 4,042 7,811
Physical Environment......................................... 4,272 -- 987 5,259
Cultural and Recreation...................................... 15,345 -- 3,636 18,981

Securities Lending Expense:
Interest................................................................ 295 66 956 1,317
Agent Fees.......................................................... 12 3 41 56

Debt Service:  
Principal Retired................................................. -- -- 4,160 4,160
Interest and Fiscal Charges................................. 468 21 4,428 4,917

Total Expenditures.......................................... 112,987 1,691 52,631 167,309
 
 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures....... (16,895) 1,793 (29,551) (44,653)
 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):  
Transfers In............................................................ 33,819 -- 11,833 45,652
Transfers Out.......................................................... (20,492) -- (3,636) (24,128)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets..................... 927 -- 825 1,752

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)............ 14,254 -- 9,022 23,276
  
Net Change in Fund Balances.................................... (2,641) 1,793 (20,529) (21,377)

 
Fund Balances - October 1......................................... 9,913 6,581 139,031 155,525
Adjustment to Beginning Fund Balance.................... -- -- -- -- 
Fund Balances - October 1, as restated...................... 9,913 6,581 139,031 155,525
Fund Balances - September 30................................... 7,272 $             8,374 $                    118,502 $              134,148 $            

Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

(in thousands)

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
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Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (21,377)$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets  are
different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their  
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. (10,141)         

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds.  The net revenue of certain internal 
services funds is reported with governmental activities. (510)              

Repayment of bond principal is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds.  For the city as a whole, however, the principal payments reduce
the liability in the Statement of Net Assets and does not result in an expense
in the Statement of Activities. 4,160            

The change in the unfunded Net OPEB Obligation which is included in
the Statement of Activities does not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. (2,968)           

The amortization of bond issue costs and bond premiums which is included
in the Statement of Activities does not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. 228               

The net change in compensated absences which is reported in the Statement of 
Activities does not require the use of current financial resources and therefore
is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. (478)              

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (31,086)$       

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008
(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

 

Pension Trust 
Fund

O PEB Trust 
Fund

Nuclear 
Decommissioning 

Private-Purpose  
Trust Fund

AS S ETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents........................................................ -$                    1,143$            -$                             

Receivables
Other Receivables.................................................................. 666                 -                      -                               
Accrued Interest..................................................................... 1,392              12                   -                               

Total Receivables............................................................... 2,058              12                   -                               

Investments, at  Fair Value
Mutual Index Funds............................................................... 238,202          -                      -                               
Fixed Income Securities.......................................................... 164,716          -                      -                               
Domestic Stock...................................................................... 486,885          -                      -                               
International Stock................................................................. 66,088            -                      -                               
Short-term Investments......................................................... 29,770            -                      6,675                       
Real Estate............................................................................. 81,911            -                      -                               

Total Investments.............................................................. 1,067,572       -                      6,675                       

Securities Lending Collateral...................................................... 98,074            -                      1,202                       

Total Assets....................................................................... 1,167,704$     1,155$            7,877$                     

LIABILITIES  AND NET AS S ETS
LIABILITIES

Obligations Under Securities Lending........................................ 98,074$          -$                    1,202$                     
Other Payables........................................................................... 18,144            -                               

Total Liabilities.................................................................. 116,218          -                      1,202                       

NET AS S ETS
Held in Trust for Benefits and Other Purposes......................... 1,051,486       1,155              6,675                       

Total Liabilities and Net Assets........................................ 1,167,704$     1,155$            7,877$                     

(in thousands)

CITY O F TALLAHAS S EE, FLO RIDA
S TATEMENT O F NET AS S ETS

S eptember 30, 2008
Fiduciary Funds
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

 

Pension Trust 
Fund

OPEB Trust 
Fund

Nuclear 
Decommissioning 
Private-Purpose 

Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions 

Employer.................................................................................. 17,503$               2,539$                 -- $                              
Plan Members.......................................................................... 6,846                   -- -- 
Miscellaneous.......................................................................... 67                        -- -- 

Total Contributions.............................................................. 24,416                 2,539                   -                              
Investment Income 
From Investment Activities:

Unrealized Depreciation  
    In Fair Value of Investments................................................ (178,407)              -- -- 
Interest..................................................................................... 2,784                   39                        186                         
Dividends................................................................................. 8,393                   -- -- 
Commission Recapture Income............................................... -                           -- -- 

Total Investment Income...................................................... (167,230)              39                        186                         
Less Investment Expenses:

Investment Management Fees.............................................. 5,990                   -- -- 
Interest Expenses.................................................................. 58                        -- -- 

Net Income from Investing Activities............................... (173,278)              39                        186                         
From Securities Lending Activities:

Securities Lending Income....................................................... 4,356 7                          -- 
Less Securities Lending Expenses:

Interest Expenses.................................................................. 3,310 6                          -- 
Investment Management Fees.............................................. 205 -- -- 

Net Income from Securities Lending Activities................ 841 1                          -- 

Total Net Investment Income............................................ (172,437)              40                        186                         

Total Additions................................................................. (148,021)              2,579                   186                         

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefits.................................................................................... 38,916                 1,424                   -- 
Refunds of Contributions......................................................... 358                      -- -- 
Administrative Expense........................................................... 851                      -- -- 

Total Deductions............................................................... 40,125                 1,424                   -- 

Change in Net Assets................................................................... (188,146)              1,155                   186                         

Net Assets - October 1................................................................. 1,239,632            -- 6,489                      

Net Assets - September 30........................................................... 1,051,486$          1,155$                 6,675$                    

(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Fiduciary Funds
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2008

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This Summary of Significant Accounting Policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial
statements.  The policies are considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.  The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applicable to governmental units.  This report, the accounting systems and classification of accounts conform to
standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City is a political subdivision of the State of Florida, located in Leon County in the center of the Florida
Panhandle.  It is approximately 102 square miles in area.  It is the capital of Florida, the county seat, and the only
incorporated municipality in Leon County.  The City was incorporated in 1825 following a decision by the legislature
to locate the capital of the new Florida Territory midway between the population centers of St. Augustine and
Pensacola.

In the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 8374, Laws of Florida, Special Acts 1919, the City was granted a new City
Charter  by the State Legislature authorizing a Commission-Manager  form of government.  In the original charter,
the five City Commissioners were elected at large for four-year terms and each year, the Commissioners selected
the Mayor for a one-year  term to act as the official representative for the City.  Tallahassee voters approved a
charter change in November 1996 calling for a separately elected Mayor, thereby changing the structure of the
Tallahassee City Commission.  The first elected Mayor was elected in February 1997 for a four-year term.  The
elected Mayor has powers commensurate with the other four members of the City Commission; however, he is able
to serve as an ongoing contact for matters involving other governmental or institutional organizations, including the
state legislature, county government, and local universities.

The City provides a full range of municipal services to its citizens.  These services include public safety (police and
fire), construction and maintenance of streets and sidewalks, stormwater management, recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.  In addition, the City owns and operates
ten enterprise funds which include a regional airport, a bus system, a golf course, a solid waste collection system,
four utilities (an electric generation transmission and distribution system, a natural gas distribution system, a water
production and distribution system, and a sewage collection and treatment system), fire services, and a stormwater
system.

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units for which the
City may or may not be financially accountable and, as such, be includable within the City’s financial statements.
The City (the primary government) is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s
governing board and (1) it is able to impose it’s will on the organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization
to provide specific financial benefit to or impose specific financial burden on the City.  Additionally, the primary
government is required to consider other organizations for which exclusion of the nature and significance of their
relationship with the City would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2008

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance
part of the City’s operation.  The discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT

Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) - The Tallahassee Community Redevelopment Agency and the CRA
Board were created in 1998.  The board consists of the Mayor, the four City Commissioners and four  of  the County
Commissioners.  Although legally separate, the CRA is blended in the City’s financial statements in accordance
with the criteria for blending set forth by GASB 14, as amended by GASB 39.  The CRA has responsibility for two
specifically separate tax increment districts as described below.

    • Greater Frenchtown/Southside Community Redevelopment Area (GFSCRA) - The City Commission adopted
the Greater Frenchtown/Southside Community Redevelopment Plan in June 2000.  The GFSCRA consists
of three distinct geographical sections of over 1,450 acres of residential, commercial/retail and industrial
land uses,  located within the greater Frenchtown and Southside neighborhoods.

    • Downtown District Community Redevelopment Area (DDCRA)  - The City Commission adopted the Down-
town Community Redevelopment Plan in June 2004.  The DDCRA consists of approximately 440 acres
located in downtown and between the northern and southern portions of the Greater Frenchtown/South
Community Redevelopment Area.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

Downtown Improvement Authority- The Downtown Improvement Authority (DIA) is an agency created by the
Florida Legislature to regulate downtown growth.  The City Commission appoints the governing board of the DIA.
The City can impose its will on the DIA by approving and/or modifying its budget.  There are no separately issued
financial statements for the DIA.  The DIA utilizes governmental fund accounting.

JOINT VENTURES EXCLUDED FROM THE REPORTING ENTITY:

     •     Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission
The Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission (the “Commission”) was created in November
1985, initially by the cities of Tallahassee and Orlando, Florida to operate and administer a loan program.
As of  September 30, 2007, the Commission’s membership consists of the following governmental units:
City of Coral Gables, Florida; City of Coral Springs, Florida; City of Daytona Beach, Florida; City of Ft.
Lauderdale, Florida; City of Hollywood, Florida; City of Jacksonville, Florida; City of Lakeland, Florida;
City of Miami, Florida; City of Miami Beach, Florida; City of Orlando, Florida; City of St. Petersburg,
Florida; City of Tallahassee, Florida; City of Vero Beach, Florida; Miami-Dade County, Florida; Palm Beach
County, Florida; and Polk County, Florida.  In addition, Leon County, Florida, the City of Fort Pierce,
Florida and the City of West Palm Beach, Florida, participate in the Commission’s programs as non-member
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2008

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

participants.   Other  Florida local governments may in the future become members or non-member participants
including  units of government such as special districts or other qualifying public agencies.  Each member
government appoints a representative to the Commission.  These representatives elect a five-member board
of directors to administer the loan program.

As a joint venture among the member governmental units, the Commission enables a limited number of
qualifying governments to participate in pooled debt financings with pricing and cost structures not normally
available to governmental entities acting individually.  Loan obligations from the Commission are reflected
as debt by the participating governmental units.

The City of Tallahassee has no obligation and minimal event risk associated with the Commission other than
the repayment of its loans from the Commission.  Financial statements may be obtained from the Sunshine
State Governmental Financing Commission.

     •     City of Tallahassee-Leon County Blueprint 2000 Intergovernmental Agency
In October 2000, the City entered into an interlocal agreement with Leon County as authorized by Section
163.01(7) Florida Statutes.  This agreement created the Blueprint 2000 Intergovernmental Agency to govern
the project management  for the project planning and construction of a list of projects known as the Blueprint
2000 projects.  The Board of County Commissioners and the City Commission constitute the Blueprint
2000 Intergovernmental Agency.  The revenues to fund the projects under this agreement are the
collections of the local goverment infrastructure sales surtax, which began December 1, 2004.  This tax was
extended pursuant to the provisions in Section 212.055, Florida Statutes, until December 31, 2019.

Periodically, the Agency provides construction management services to the City.  For these services the
Agency and the City enter into Joint Participation Agreements (JPAs) whereby the City agrees to pay an
administrative fee of 3% to the Agency.  During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, the City paid
nothing under these JPAs.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, the Agency donated land to the City in the amount of
$443,000.

Current audited financial statements may be obtained from Blueprint 2000, 1311 Executive Center Dr.,
Suite 109, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.
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NOTE I (CONTINUED)

B.  GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net
assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific function
or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operation or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C.  MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.  Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
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NOTE I (CONTINUED)

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Only the portion of special assessments
receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current
period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

• The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the
      general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

• The Community Redevelopment Agency Funds account for the general tax revenue collected  and the
     expenses incurred  in the redevelopment of properties in the Community Redevelopment area.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

•      The Electric Fund accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned electric generation,
transmission, and distribution system.

•     The Gas Fund accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned gas system.

• The Sewer Fund  accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City’s wastewater  system.

• The Water Fund accounts for the assets, operation, and maintenance of the City’s water production and
distribution system.

• The Airport Fund accounts for the assets, operation, and maintenance of the City-owned regional airport.

• The Stormwater Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and expansion of the City-owned stormwater
utility system.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

• Internal Service Funds account for various services provided to other departments of the government and
to other governments on a cost reimbursement basis.  The services provided include an 800 megahertz
system, revenue collection, information systems services, accounting operations, central warehouse
operations, fleet management, employee relations operations, employee retirement plan’s administrative

         operation, risk management operation, internal loans program, utility services functions, and wholesale
energy operations.
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•  The private purpose trust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for Florida Power
Corporation (FPC) for the future decommissioning of the Crystal River Unit 3 Utility Plant (CR3 Plant).

 On October 1, 1999, the City sold its interest in the CR3 Plant to FPC and was released from any
decommissioning costs in excess of the amount held in trust.  The plant’s decommissioning is anticipated
to begin in 2016.

•  The pension trust fund includes a Defined Benefit Plan and a Defined Contribution Plan.  It is used to
account for the accumulation of resources to be used for retirement annuity payments to City employees.
The Defined Benefit Plan accounts for general employees, police officers, and fire fighters separately.
The Defined Contribution Plan covers all employees who elect to contribute a portion of their salary to the
plan.

The private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Governments also
have the option of following subsequent private sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise
funds, subject to the same limitation.  The City has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, and fines and forfeitures, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds, and of the City’s
internal service funds, are charges to customers for sales and services.  The water and sewer funds also recognize as
operating revenue the portion of the tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
system.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the costs of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses that do not meet this definition
are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS

1.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/INVESTMENTS - The City considers cash on hand, demand deposits and liquid
investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less to be cash and cash equivalents/investments.  Liquid
investments include repurchase agreements purchased under the terms of the City’s depository contract, open
repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit, banker’s acceptances, commercial paper, U.S. Treasury direct and
agency obligations and Florida Department of Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) funds.   The
City “pools” its cash and cash equivalent/investments in order to obtain efficiencies of operation and improved

NOTE I (CONTINUED)
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investment performance.  Each fund maintains a share in the equity of the pooled cash and cash euivalents/investments.
Each fund’s equity in the City’s cash and  investment pool has been treated as cash equivalents/investments since
cash may be withdrawn from the pool at any time without prior notice or penalty.

2.  INVESTMENTS - The City’s investments, except for funds invested in the Florida Department of Treasury’s Special
Purpose Investment Account, and certain non-participating contracts, are stated at fair value.  Fair value is based on
quoted  market prices as of the valuation date.

3.  INVENTORY - The City maintains a variety of inventory types, such as fuel, material and supplies, and retail
merchandise, all of which utilize the consumption method stated at cost, which approximates market.  Inventory
cost is determined using either the first-in, first-out method or the average cost method. Perpetual inventory records
are maintained for all significant inventories.  Reported inventories of the General Fund are equally offset by a
reservation of fund balance, since they are unavailable for appropriation.

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

4.  ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS - Noncurrent portions of interfund loans receivable (reported in “Advances to” asset
accounts) of governmental funds are equally offset by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do
not constitute “available spendable resources” since they are not a component of net current assets.  Current portions
of interfund receivables (reported in “Due from” asset accounts) are considered “available spendable resources.”
The proceeds of advances to governmental funds are recorded in “Other Financing Sources.”

5.  RESTRICTED ASSETS – Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise funds revenue bonds, as well as certain resources
set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants.  Assets are set aside for the following uses:

• Revenue Bonds Current Debt Service – used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments
over the next twelve months.

• Revenue Bonds Future Debt Service – used to report resources set aside to make up potential future
deficiencies in the revenue bonds current debt service account.

• Revenue Bonds Renewal and Replacement – used to report resources set aside to fund asset renewals and
replacements or to meet unexpected contingencies.
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NOTE I (CONTINUED)

6.  CAPITAL ASSETS - Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, improvements other than buildings,
intangibles and public domain infrastructure assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets, other  than  land and  infrastructure,
are defined as assets with a cost of $1,000 or more and an estimated useful life greater than one year. Land and
infrastructure assets are long-lived capital assets that are stationary in nature and can be preserved for a significantly
greater number of years than most general capital assets.  Examples of infractructure assets are roads, bridges,
sidewalks, paved paths, utility systems, stormwater drainage systems, traffic control and lighting systems.  In the
initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets, the City chose to include all such items regardless of their
acquisition date or amount. The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets
through backtrending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using
an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the  acquisition year or estimated acquisition year).  As the
City constructs or acquires additional capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost.
The capitalization threshold for infrastructure assets has been set at $100,000 for roadways and $50,000 for other
infrastructure assets.  Land assets have no capitalization threshold, therefore all  city-owned land is capitalized.

Other capital assets are recorded at historical cost when purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are
recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  Major outlays for
constructed capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are completed.  Interest is capitalized during
the construction phase of capital assets for business-type activities constructed with tax-exempt debt.  The amount
of interest to be capitalized is calculated as the interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until
completion of the project net of the interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the
fund’s financial statements.  These general capital assets are included in the governmental activities column of the
government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets used in the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds are accounted
for in the respective funds.  All vehicles of the City are accounted for in the Garage Fund, with the exception of
StarMetro vehicles (generally buses).  StarMetro vehicles are accounted for in their own fund.  Depreciation on all
exhaustible capital assets used in the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds is charged as an expense against their
operations.  Accumulated depreciation is reported on the respective fund’s balance sheet.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

 
ASSETS  YEARS 

Buildings  20 to 40 
Improvements other than buildings  10 to 40 
Equipment and machinery    5 to 40 
Vehicles    5 to 20 
Infrastructure  10 to 60 
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Creditable  Leave earned Creditable Leave earned Creditable
Service Hours per hour Service Hours per hour Service Hours per hour

0 - 2,079 0.057693 0 - 2,079 0.057693 0 - 10,400 0.057693
2,080 - 10,400 0.080770 2,080 - 10,400 0.069231 10,401 - 20,800 0.069231

10,401 - 20,800 0.092308 10,401 - 20,800 0.080770 20,801 - 41,600 0.080770
over 20,800 0.103847 20,800 - 41,600 0.092308 over 41,600 0.092308

over 41,600 0.103847

Executive Senior Management General

   Leave earned

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

7.  COMPENSATED ABSENCES - All non-union employees earn vacation and sick leave starting with the first day of
employment; all non-union  employees earn vacation and sick leave based on the number of hours worked.

Vacation leave is earned based on creditable service hours worked as follows:

A maximum of 344 hours of vacation leave time may be carried over from one calendar year to the next for
executive employees and a maximum of 264 hours for senior management and general employees.  An employee
who terminates employment with the City is paid for any unused vacation leave accumulated to the time of termination.

Sick leave is earned at the rate of .023077 hours for each hour of service with no maximum limit on the number of
hours which may be accumulated.   A non-unionized employee who terminates from the City for any reason other
than termination for cause will be paid one-half of the total amount of sick leave (without regard to catastrophic
illness leave) accumulated by him or her on the effective date of termination.  A unionized employee who terminates
from the City for any reason other than termination for cause will be paid one-third of the total amount of sick leave
without regard to catastrophic illness leave accumulated by him or her on the effective date of termination.  If the
employee dies, the sick leave amount will be paid to the employee’s beneficiary or estate.  Retiring employees can
elect the option of using the accumulated sick leave amount to purchase single coverage health insurance in lieu of
receiving payment.

Accumulated current and long-term vacation and sick pay amounts are accrued when incurred in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  A liability for the amounts is reported in the governmental funds
only if they have matured, as a result of employee resignation and retirements.
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Employees covered by the Police and Fire bargaining unit shall accrue vacation time on the following basis:

For employees covered by the Police bargaining unit, accrued vacation time may not be carried over in excess of 30
days (240 hours).  As of the end of the calendar year, accrued vacation time in excess of 240 hours shall be reduced
to no more than 240 hours for any individual employee.

Years of Hours Accrued Years of   Hours Accrued Creditable Leave earned
Continuous Service Monthly Continuous Service Monthly Service Hours per hour

1-5 years 13.25 1-5 years 10 0 - 10,400 0.046154
5-10 years 15.90 5-10 years 12 10,401 - 20,800 0.057693

10-15 years 18.55 10-15 years 14 20,801 - 41,600 0.069231
15-20 years 21.20 15-20 years 16 over 41,600 0.080770

over 20 years 23.85 over 20 years 18

Supression Personnel
Fire Bargaining Unit
Forty-hour Personnel Bargaining Unit

Fire Bargaining Unit Police

For employees covered by the Fire bargaining unit, accrued vacation time may not be carried over in excess of
318 hours for suppression personnel and 240 hours for forty-hour personnel.

Employees covered by the Police bargaining unit shall accrue sick leave at the rate of .046154 hours per hour
worked, which is the fractional equivalent of eight (8) hours per month.  There is no maximum limit on the number
of hours which may be accumulated by an employee.

Employees covered by the Fire bargaining unit shall accrue sick leave credit at the rate of 10.6 hours of sick leave
per month for suppression personnel and 8 hours of sick leave per month for forty-hour personnel.  There is no
maximum limit on the number of sick leave hours which may be accumulated by an employee.

For employees covered by the Fire bargaining unit, a fire suppression employee who retires or dies will be paid for
33 1/3% (1/3) of the unused sick leave balance credited to him at the time of retirement or death, provided that the
unused sick leave balance credited to him at the time of retirement or death equals at least three hundred ninety-
eight (398) hours.  If the unused sick leave balance credited to the employee at the time of retirement or death equals
less than three hundred ninety-eight hours, the employee who retires or dies will be paid 25% (1/4) of the unused
balance.  A 40-hour employee who retires or dies will be paid for 33 1/3% (1/3) of the unused sick leave balance

For employers covered by the Police bargaining unit, payment for sick leave will be made for 33 1/3% (1/3) of the
unused sick leave balance credited to an employee at the time of retirement or death, up to a maximum of seven
hundred (700) hours, provided that the unused sick leave balance credited to the employee at the time of retirement
or death equals at least three hundred (300) hours.  If the unused sick leave balance credited to an employee at the
time of retirement or death equals less than three hundred (300) hours, payment will be made for 25% (1/4) of the
unused balance.
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credited to him at the time of retirement or death, provided that the unused sick leave balance credited to him at the
time of retirement or death equals at least three hundred (300) hours.  If the unused sick leave balance credited to
the employee at the time of retirement or death equals less than three hundred (300) hours, the employee will be
paid for 25% of the unused balance.  An employee who accidentally dies while engaged in the performance of his
firefighter duties, or who receives accidental bodily injury which subsequently results in the loss of his life within
one (1) year after being received, provided that such a death is not the result of suicide and that such bodily injury
is not intentionally self-inflicted, and the accidental death occurs as a result of the firefighter’s response to what is
reasonably believed to be an emergency involving the protection of life or property, will be paid 100% of the
accrued but unused sick leave credited to him at the time of death.

In either of the above-described cases, the payment for unused sick leave will be made at the employee’s straight
time base rate.

8.  BOND DISCOUNTS, ISSUANCE COSTS, AND REFUNDING GAINS AND LOSSES - In the government-wide financial
statements, and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net assets.  Bond premium and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds at the rate at which principal payments are made which approximates the effective interest
method.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.
Bond refunding gains and losses are deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the
new debt, whichever is shorter, using the effective interest method, and presented as other liabilities.  In the fund
financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9.  INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION - The City currently employs an indirect cost allocation system based upon an
independent cost analysis.  An administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund to the other operating
funds to address General Fund administrative services provided (e.g., legal, cash management, internal audit, and
budget and policy).  At the fund-level statements, the administrative service fee is included in the General Fund’s
Miscellaneous Revenue line item and in the other operating funds in the Contractual Services line.  This administrative
service fee is eliminated at year-end in the government-wide statements.

E.  DERIVATIVE FUEL INVESTMENTS

In February 2003, the City of Tallahassee initiated transactions related to its fuels price hedging program.  As part
of the City’s energy price risk mitigation program, the hedge instruments transactions are made to minimize the risk
of energy price market volatility and counter-party credit risk, primarily for the physical purchases of natural gas.
The hedge instruments are reported at cost on the Statement of Net Assets.  Gains and losses related to the hedging
transactions are credited or charged to fuel expense in the period realized.
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NOTE II -  RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A.  EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND
     BALANCE SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances – total governmental funds
and net assets – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets.  One element
of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.”  The details of this $106,492 difference are as follows (in
thousands):

B.  EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL
      STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND
     THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation
between net change in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.
One element of that reconciliation states, “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.”  However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.  The details of this ($10,141) difference are as follows (in thousands):

Capital Outlay…………………………………….……... $     19,055 
Depreciation Expense…………………………………….       (29,196)  
Net Adjustments to Increase net changes in Fund 
Balances- Total Governmental Funds to arrive at  
changes in net assets – governmental activities…………. $      (10,141) 

 

Bonds and Loan Payable including Premiums & Discount...... $        95,962
Compensated Absences............................................................ 7,872
Net OPEB Obligation............................................................... 2,968
Net Adjustments to Reduce Fund Balances
Total Governmental Funds to arrive at net assets..................... $        106,492
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A.  BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the General and
Enterprise Funds.  The budget is adopted at the fund level and administered at the department level.  The difference
between budgetary revenues and expenditures and modified accrual basis revenues and expenditures as reported in
the general fund financial statements are explained in the budgetary comparison schedule notes in the Required
Supplementary Information of this report.  The City Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts within funds
and between departments; however, any revision that alters the total expenditures of any department or fund must
be approved by the City Commission. Unencumbered appropriations are closed at year-end.

Encumbrance accounting, under which requisitions, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditures of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an
extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental funds.  Encumbrances outstanding at year end are
reported as reservations of fund balance, and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments
will be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

B. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

The City had no material violations of finance-related legal  or contractual provisions.

C.  DEFICIT FUND EQUITY - FUND BALANCE OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

The Building Code Enforcement Fund, a Governmental Fund, and the Pension Administration  Fund, the Utility
Services Fund and the Wholesale Energy Fund, all Internal Service Funds, had fund deficits of $1,887,000, $6,000,
$644,000 and $208,000 respectively at September 30, 2008.  It is anticipated that future revenues will fund the
Building Code Enforcement Fund deficit and the Pension  Administration Fund and Utility Services Fund deficits.

D.  PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Fund Balances and/or Net Assets as of September 30, 2008 have been restated as follows:

•    Prior year depreciation was overstated for assets no longer in service.  This resulted in net assets of the
                   Electric Fund (a major enterprise fund) increasing by $2,143,000, net assets of the StarMetro Fund (a
                   nonmajor fund) increasing by $1,311,000, net assets of  the Golf Fund (a nonmajor enterprise fund)

      increasing by $720,000 and net assets of the Garage Fund (an internal service fund) increasing by
      $5,607,000.

•     An International Air Light Truck donated in a prior year was capitalized in the Garage Fund (an
      internal service fund) resulting in an increase in net assets by $800,000.

  •     Land purchased in a prior year was capitalized in the Star Metro Fund ($1,371,000) and in Government
        Wide Capital Assets ($2,029,000).
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES - ALL FUNDS

A.    DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As discussed in Note I.D. the City of Tallahassee maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by
all funds.  Each fund’s portion of the pool is reported in “Cash and Cash Equivalents/Investments.”  Interest earned
by the pool is distributed to each fund monthly based on  weekly balances.  Other  investments are also separately
held by several of the City’s funds.

1.  DEPOSITS - At year-end, the book balance of the City’s deposits was $29,944,000 and the bank balance was
$30,913,000. In addition to the City’s deposits, funds are held in two external investment pools, the Florida Municipal
Investment Trust Portfolio 1-3 year High Quality Bond fund pool administered by the Florida League of Cities (the
Florida League of Cities Pool), and the Special Purpose Investment Account administered by the Florida Department of
Financial Services, Division of Treasury, Internal Investments (the SPIA Pool).   At September 30, 2008,  the City owns
$46,123,000 in shares in the Florida  League of Cities Pool, not the individual securities within the portfolio.  The Florida
League of Cities Pool  has a Fitch rating of AAA/V2.  The weighted average maturity of the Florida  League of Cities
Pool as of September 30, 2008 is 1.43 years.  At September  30, 2008, the City has $73,068,000 invested in shares of
the SPIA Pool, which has a rating of AA- from Standard and Poors.  The unaudited fair value factor for September 30,
2008 was 0.09673.  The effective duration of the SPIA Pool is 3.19 years as of September 30, 2008.   Also included
within deposits is $5,271,000 of the Cash Equivalent or liquid portion of the City’s investments.

The difference between the book balance and bank balance is due to outstanding checks and deposits. Seven city
funds had deficit cash balances at year end totaling $41,637,000 which are reported in accounts payable at September
30, 2008. The bank balance is insured by federal depository insurance and, for the amount in excess of such federal
depository insurance, by the State of Florida’s Public Depository (the Act).  Provisions of the Act require that
public deposits  may only be made at qualified public depositories. The Act requires each qualified public depository
to deposit with the State Treasurer eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required collateral as determined by
the provisions of the Act.  In the event of a failure by a qualified public depository, losses, in excess of federal
depository insurance and proceeds from the sale of the securities pledged by the defaulting depository, are assessed
against the other qualified public depositories of the same type as the depository in default.  When other qualified
public depositories are assessed additional amounts, they are assessed on a pro-rata basis.

2.  INVESTMENTS - The City’s investment guidelines, as defined by the City Charter and its written investment
policies, are approved by the City Commission or the Sinking Fund Commission.  The City has two approved
investment policies:  1) the Non-Pension Investment Policy, which covers the investment of all non-pension monies
of the City, including the previously referenced cash and investment pool; and, 2) the Pension Investment Policy
governing the investment of all assets of the City Pension Funds.  The Non-Pension Investment Policy provides for
a Core Portfolio, governing the investment of all monies held or controlled by the City, not otherwise classified as
Specialized or Pension monies.  The Policy specifies the investments that are authorized for purchase for the Core
Portfolio.  The Policy further provides for certain portfolios to be designated as Specialized Portfolios, with the
governing criteria unique to that portfolio, including authorized investments, to be approved on a case-by-case
basis by the Investment Advisory Committee.  According to the City Charter, the City Treasurer-Clerk is designated
to invest all monies belonging to the City pursuant to the policies approved by the City Commission, except those
monies in the Pension Funds.  Monies in the Pension Funds are invested under the auspices of the City Charter-
created Sinking Fund Commission, which consists of the five City Commissioners and three appointed members.
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The City’s banking arrangement requires daily cash balances to be invested in a Public Funds NOW account at the
federal fund rate, less ten basis points.  The Public Funds book balance at September 30, 2008 was $2,412,000 and
the bank balance was $3,366,000.  The Public Funds balances are included in the above discussed City deposit
balances.

Under the policies approved by the City Commission and the Sinking Fund Commission, the day-to-day investment
of all monies is managed by the City Treasurer-Clerk.

NOTE IV (CONTINUED)

Authorized investment instruments for The Non-Pension Core Portfolio are as follows:

In addition to authorizing investment instruments, the City’s policies also identify various portfolio parameters
addressing issuer diversification, term to maturity and liquidity, and requirement of “purchase versus delivery”
perfection for securities held by a third party on behalf of and in the name of the City.

Repurchase Agreements                                                  Fixed Income Securities rated at least A1/A+ for 
Certificates of Deposit                                                            corporate securities and A for municipal securities 
Commercial Paper Rated A1/P1 (or comparable                   (or comparable rating) by at least two nationally  
     rating) by at least two nationally recognized                      recognized rating agencies 
     rating agencies                                                            Fixed Income Mutual Funds and Money Managers 
U. S. Treasury Bills, Bonds, Notes and Stripped             Investment Agreements and Guaranteed Investment 
     Securities                                                                           Contracts 
U.S. Government Agencies Bonds, Notes and                Florida State Board of Administration Local  
Stripped Securities                                                                 Governments Surplus Funds Investment Pool 
                                                                                                and other authorized government-sponsored pools 
                                                                                        Florida Department of Treasury Special Purpose Investment  
         Account               

The non-pension portfolio includes investments administered internally by the City of Tallahassee,  funds invested
in an external investment pool held by the Florida Department of Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account,
and the external portfolio administered by Galliard Asset Management (Galliard).  Due to concerns with the SBA
Local Government Investment Pool’s investments, the City decided to withdraw its non-pension portfolio funds
from the Florida SBA Local Government Investment Pool and invested those funds with the Special Purpose
Investment Account.  As of September 30, 2008, the Nuclear Fuel Decommissioning Private-Purpose Fund held
$6,675,000 in the Florida SBA Local Government Investment Pool.

Credit Risk:  The structure of the City’s non-pension portfolio is designed to minimize credit risk. To limit the
City’s risk against possible credit losses, a maximum of 5% of the total portfolio may be held at any one time in all
securities of any corporate entity, inclusive of commercial paper, medium term notes, or corporate notes and bonds.
No corporate entity represented more than 5% of the portfolio at September 30, 2008.
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In addition, the City owns $63,317,000 shares in the SPIA Pool, and $29,656,000 shares in the Florida League of
Cities Pool.

Interest Rate Risk:  In accordance with the City’s non-pension  investment policy, the City has established maturity
limitations for each authorized investment category.  The normal duration of the non-pension portfolio is defined as
.5 years to 2.5 years.   The average maturity of the non-pension portfolio as of  September 30, 2008 was 2.28 years
and the duration of the non-pension portfolio as of September 30, 2008 was 1.77 years.

As of September 30, 2008, the non-pension portfolio including the internal portion as well as Galliard, had the
following investments on a time-segmented basis (in thousands):

As of  September 30, 2008, the City had the following non-pension investments subject to credit risk in the internal
and Galliard portion of the portfolio (in thousands):

Inves tment Type Fair  Value S & P Rating
US Treas u ry $      121,861 A A A
US A g en cies 135,187 NA
Co rp o ra te Bon d s 6,167 A A A
Co rp o ra te Bon d s 16,056 A A
Co rp o ra te Bon d s 10,275 A A -
Co rp o ra te Bon d s 25,211 A +
Co rp o ra te Bon d s 10,423 A
Co rp o ra te Bon d s 5,614 NA
Co rp o ra te Bon d s 682 NR
A s s et Backed 58,437 NR
M ortg ag e Pas s  Th ro u gh 29,793 A A A
M un icipa ls 2,507 A A A
M un icipa ls 616 A A +
M un icipa ls 2,811 A A
M un icipa ls 615 A A -
M un icipa ls 309 A +
M un icipa ls 1,871 NR
Cas h  an d  Eq u iv alen ts 35,215 NR
Total $    463,650

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 Years 5- 10 Years 10+ Years
US Treasury   $        121,861  $           67,894  $           53,967  $                     -  $                     - 
US Agencies 135,187               48,877               65,144 21,166                         - 
Corporate Bonds 74,428 1,886               72,542                         -                         - 
Asset Backed Securities 58,437 -                         -                         -               58,437 
Municipals 8,729 875 7,854                         -                         - 
Mortgage Pass Through 29,793  - -                 9,625               20,168 
Cash and Equivalents 35,215               35,215 -  -  - 
Total  $         463,650  $         154,747  $         199,507  $           30,791  $           78,605 
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PENSION PLAN - The City also has investments in its pension plan as described below.

Credit Risk: The City’s Investment Policy for the Pension Plan does not explicitly address credit risk.  The investment
policy specifies the market sectors of the investments and the benchmark for each sector.  Individual money managers
are hired to manage each sector and are evaluated on their performance against that benchmark.  The  individual
money managers evaluate risk in their selection of  securities to hold in their portfolios.

Foreign Currency Risk: The City’s Investment Policy for the Pension Plan does not explicitly address foreign currency
risk.  The investment policy specifies the market sectors of the investments and the benchmark for each sector.
Individual money managers are hired to manage each sector and are evaluated on their performance against that
benchmark.  The  individual money managers evaluate risk in their selection of  securities to hold in their portfolios.

As of  September 30, 2008, the City had the following pension investments subject to credit risk (in thousands):
Investment Type  Fair Value S&P Rating

Agencies $      28,064 AAA
Asset Backed 1,933 AAA
Asset Backed 293 AAA
Asset Backed 405 NA
Asset Backed 650 NR
Cash and Equivalents 4,655 NR
CMBS 908 AAA
CMOS 417 A
CMOS 128 A+
CMOS 15,436 AAA
CMOS 274 BB+
CMOS 157 NA
CMOS 205 NR
Mutual Funds 5,645 NA
Convertible Bonds 77 A
Convertible Bonds 56 A-
Convertible Bonds 29 A+
Convertible Bonds 30 AAA
Convertible Bonds 31 B
Convertible Bonds 34 B-
Convertible Bonds 106 B+
Convertible Bonds 95 BB
Convertible Bonds 24 BB-
Convertible Bonds 102 BB+
Convertible Bonds 46 BBB-
Convertible Bonds 7 BBB-
Convertible Bonds 132 BBB+
Convertible Bonds 273 NA
Convertible Bonds 126 NR
Corporate Bonds 2,527 A
Corporate Bonds 2,509 A-
Corporate Bonds 895 A+
Corporate Bonds 1,590 AAA
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Currency Amount Investment Type
Australia $         817 Common Stock
Belgium 666 Common Stock
Bermuda 985 Common Stock
Brazil 755 Depository Receipts
Brazil 258 Common Stock
Canada 2,328 Common Stock
Cayman Islands 338 Common Stock
China 1,632 Common Stock
Finland 1,809 Common Stock
France 9,269 Common Stock
Germany 9,028 Common Stock
Hong Kong 1,330 Common Stock
India 163 Depository Receipts
Ireland 178 Depository Receipts
Israel 93 Common Stock
Italy 1,748 Common Stock
Japan 11,204 Common Stock
Republic of Korea 681 Common Stock
Luxembourg 557 Common Stock
Luxembourg 45 Depository Receipts
M exico 198 Common Stock
Netherlands 2,006 Common Stock
Norway 974 Common Stock

The Foreign Investments are (in thousands):

Investment Type  Fair Value S&P Rating
Corporate Bonds 1,711 AA-
Corporate Bonds 342 AA+
Corporate Bonds 378 AAA
Corporate Bonds 679 B-
Corporate Bonds 374 BB-
Corporate Bonds 58 BB+
Corporate Bonds 1,083 BBB
Corporate Bonds 1,191 BBB-
Corporate Bonds 2,058 BBB+
Corporate Bonds 137 NR
Common Stock 39 B
Mortgage Pass Through 326 AA
Mortgage Pass Through 47,564 AAA
Mortgage Pass Through 9,541 NR
Preferred Stock 33 AA-
Preferred Stock 4 B
Preferred Stock 47 NA
US Treasury 31,292 AAA
Mutual Index Funds 238,202 NR
Domestic Stock 486,885 NR
International Stock 66,088 NR
Short Term Investments 29,770 NR
Real Estate 81,911 NR
Total $      1,067,572



- 66 -

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2008

NOTE IV (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk: The City of Tallahassee’s Investment Policy for the Pension Plan does not explicitly address
interest rate risk.  The investment policy specifies the market sectors of the investments and the benchmark for each
sector.  Individual money managers are hired to manage each sector and evaluated on their performance against that
benchmark.  The individual money managers evaluate risk in their selection of securities to hold in their portfolios.

Interest Rate Risk:  The City of Tallahassee held the following investments for its pension funds as of September 30,
2008 (in thousands):

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 Year 1-5 Years 6 – 10 Years   10+ Years 
US Agencies 28,064$           --$                     24,676$          3,388$             --$                    
Asset  backed 3,281               --                      179                 --                     3,102              
Cash and Equivalents 4,655               4,655               --                     --                     --                     
CMBS 908                  --                      --                     --                     908                 
CMO 16,617             129                  --                     --                     16,488            
Mutual Funds 5,645               --                      --                     --                     5,645              
Convertible Bonds 1,168               16                    280                 65                    807                 
Corporate Bonds 15,532             1,714               8,415              1,141               4,262              
Common Stock 39                    --                      --                     --                     39                   
Mortgage Pass Through 57,431             --                      602                 326                  56,503            
Preferred Stock 84                    --                      --                     --                     84                   
US Treasury 31,292             10,430             13,113            7,749               --                     
Total 164,716$         16,944$           47,265$          12,669             87,838$          

Currency Amount Investment Type
Norway 974 Common Stock
Phillipines 40 Common Stock
Russian Federation 1,527 Depository Receipts
Singapore 180 Common Stock
South Africa 404 Common Stock
Spain 2,190 Common Stock
Sweden 1,150 Common Stock
Switzerland 4,818 Common Stock
Taiwan 82 Depository Receipts
Thailand 150 Common Stock
United Kingdom 8,485 Common Stock
Total $                   66,088

B.    SECURITIES LENDING TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with Section 51 of the City Charter, the City Treasurer-Clerk or his designee may authorize investment
transactions that he considers prudent.  Accordingly, the City participates in securities lending transactions via a Securities
Lending Agreement with Dresdner Bank AG, New York Branch (Bank) that authorizes the banking institution to lend the
City’s securities to approved broker-dealers and banks in order to generate additional income.  Gross income from
securities lending transactions and the fees paid to the Bank are reported in the City’s statements.  Assets and
liabilities include the value of the collateral held.
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During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, the Bank lent, at the direction of the City’s Treasurer-Clerk,
securities and received cash, securities issued or guaranteed by the United States government, and irrevocable bank
letters of credit as collateral.  The Bank did not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities delivered absent a
borrower default. Borrowers were required to deliver cash collateral for each loan equal to at least 100% of the market
value of the loaned securities or U.S. Government Securities equal to 102% of the market value of the securities.

There are no restrictions on the amount of securities that may be loaned.  The Agreement requires the Bank to
indemnify the City for losses attributable to violations by the Bank of the Standard of Care set out in the Agreement.
There were no such violations during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008.  Moreover, there were no losses during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 resulting from a default of any borrower.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, the City and each borrower maintained the right to terminate all
securities lending transactions on demand.  The cash collateral received on each loan of securities together with the
cash collateral of other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders were invested in a collective investment pool with the
Bank.  The average duration of the investment pool as of September 30, 2008 was 18 days with an average weighted
maturity of 174 days.  Because the loans are terminable at will, their duration did not generally match the duration of
the investments made with the cash collateral.  On September 30, 2008, the City had no credit risk exposure to
borrowers.

As of September 30, 2008, for the City’s pension fund, the collateral held and the market value of securities on loan
were $98,074,000 and $95,288,000, respectively; for the City’s non-pension funds, the collateral held and the
market value of securities on loan were $121,757,000 and $119,754,000 respectively.

A summary of the fair market value of the securities lent as of September 30, 2008 follows (in thousands):

All
rol
me

Pension Fund Non-Pension Fund
American Despository Receipts (ADR) 1,925,184$                --$                               
Agencies 4,223,940                 39,220,491               
Bonds 160,272                    873,913                    
Common Stock 57,019,954               -- 
U.S. Government Treasury Notes 29,467,716               79,659,560               

92,797,066$              119,753,964$            

C.  RECEIVABLES

1.  PROPERTY TAXES - Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal
and school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the Leon  County Property Appraiser and the
Leon  County Tax Collector.  The laws of the State regulating tax assessment are also designed to ensure consistent
property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills.  The millage rate assessed by the City for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2008 was 3.1686.
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The current year taxes for the fiscal year, beginning October 1, are billed in the month of November and are due no
later than March 31.  On April 1, all unpaid amounts become delinquent and are subject to interest and penalties.

Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 4% in the month of November, 3% in the month of December,
2% in the month of January and 1% in the month of February.  The taxes paid in March are without discount.

Delinquent taxes on real property bear interest of 18% per year.  On or prior to June 1 following the tax year,
certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real property.  After sale, tax certificates bear interest of 18% per
year or at any lower rate bid by the buyer.

Application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the certificate holder after a period
of two years.  Delinquent taxes on personal property bear interest of 18% per year until the tax is satisfied either by
seizure and sale of the property or by the five year statute of limitations.

The City Tax Calendar is as follows:  Valuation Date:  January 1; Levy Date:  November 1; Due Date:  March 31,
Succeeding Year; and Lien Date:  April 1, Succeeding Year.

2.  AIRPORT FUND’S LEASING OPERATIONS -  The Airport Fund’s leasing operations consist principally of leasing land
and buildings under operating leases to airlines, rental car agencies and other commercial enterprises.  Original
lease terms vary from one to fifty years and require, in most cases, that leasehold improvements be contributed to
the City at lease termination.

The following is a schedule, by years, of minimum future rentals on noncancelable operating leases of the Airport
Fund as of September 30, 2008 (in thousands):

Years ending September 30,
2009....................................... 3,222$           
2010....................................... 1,542
2011....................................... 815
2012....................................... 791
2013....................................... 926
2014-2018............................. 3,522
2019-2023............................. 2,354
2024-2028............................. 2,318
2029-2033............................. 1,780
2034-2038............................. 1,402
Thereafter.............................. 4,380

23,052$         

NOTE IV (CONTINUED)
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Total minimum future rentals do not include contingent rentals that may be realized under certain leases that require
additional rent if the tenant’s gross revenues exceed stipulated minimums.  Contingent rentals for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2008 amounted to $119,190.

In  October 1989, the City entered into fifteen-year lease and use agreements with its major airline tenants, (the
signatory airline agreements).  On October 21, 2004, the Signatory Airline representing the majority in interest
(“MII”) of the airlines agreed to and signed the ‘First Amendment to Airline-Airport Use and Lease Agreement’ that
among other things extended the term of the Signatory Airline Agreements to September 30, 2009.  The amendment
added provisions for ‘affiliate airline(s)’ of signatory airlines to participate in the signatory airline fees and charges,
provided that such affiliate airline(s) will have primary obligation for payment of such charges and fees with the
signatory airlines becoming jointly and severally liable for payment of all fees and charges for use of the airport by
such affiliate. The amendment also increases the distribution of Remaining Funds for the Prepaid Fees Credit from
50% to 60% and eliminates required deposits to the Signatory Airline Capital Account.  On September 11, 2008, the
Signatory Airline representing the majority in interest (“MII”) of the airlines agreed to and signed the ‘Second
Amendment to Airline-Airport Use and Lease Agreement’ that among other things extended the term of the agreements
to September 30, 2014.  During 2008, the Affiliate Airline Airport Use Agreements were amended to reflect that the
Signatory Airline is responsible for paying all fees and charges incurred by its affiliate airlines.

The agreement as amended, requires that landing fees and terminal rentals be reviewed annually and adjusted so
that the total revenues of the Airport System are sufficient to meet the Airport Fund’s requirements as determined by
the Signatory Airline Agreements.  Sixty percent (60%) of Funds Remaining shall be apportioned to Prepaid Fees
Credit and forty percent (40%) to the Airport System Capital Account.  Settlement provisions under the amended
agreement provide for a recalculation of rates for rentals, fees and charges for the preceding Fiscal Year.  Upon
determination of any difference between the actual rentals, fees and charges paid by Signatory Airlines during the
preceding Fiscal Year and the rentals, fees, and charges that would have been paid by Signatory Airlines using said
recalculated rates, the City shall return to the airline the amount of any such difference in the event of an overpayment
and, in the event of underpayment, apply such difference to the Prepaid Fees Credit for the next Fiscal Year.

The allocation of the Prepaid Fees Credit for the fiscal year 2008 True-Up of Signatory Airline Rates was 83.8%
toward terminal rentals and 16.2% toward landing fees.  The residual portion of remaining funds, (40%), is  allocated
to the Airport System Capital Account.   Funds on credit in the Airport System Capital Account shall generally be
used to pay the costs of improvements in other than airline supported areas; or the cost of improvements in airline
supported areas for which the signatory airlines are not financially responsible under the agreement. The Prepaid
Fees Credit, (60%), is recorded with the current liabilities in the  amount of $1,150,000.

The minimum rentals to be paid by the signatory airlines under this agreement will vary each year and such
amounts have not been included in the above schedule of minimum future rentals.  The  Signatory Airline
Agreement, as amended, is reliant on the ongoing operations of the signatory airlines.

The minimum rentals to be paid by the signatory airlines under this agreement will vary each year and such amounts
have not been included in the above schedule of minimum future rentals.  The Signatory Airline Agreement, as
amended, is reliant on the ongoing operations of the signatory airlines.

NOTE IV (CONTINUED)



- 70 -

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2008

NOTE IV (CONTINUED)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 was as follows (in thousands):

B eginn ing 
B alance        Increases D ecreases E nd ing  B alance

Governm ental A ctivities
N on-D epreciable Assets:

Land....................................................................... 350 ,756$           2 ,396$          (2 ,281)$          350,871$         
Construction in Progress........................................ 39 ,072 22,223 (6 ,817) 54,478

D epreciable  Assets:
Buildings................................................................ 108 ,143 2,019 (2 ,588) 107,574
Equipment.............................................................. 33 ,601 2,012 (690) 34,923
Improvements other than buildings........................ 11 ,406 646 --               12 ,052
Infrastructure.......................................................... 715 ,351 2,935 --               718,286
Intangibles............................................................. 14 --              --               14

1,258 ,343 32,231 (12 ,376) 1 ,278,198

Less accum ulated depreciation for:
Buildings................................................................ (37 ,246) (3 ,603)  22 (40,827)
Equipment.............................................................. (22 ,323) (2 ,956) 228 (25,051)
Improvements other than buildings........................ (6 ,252) (222) --               (6 ,474)
Infrastructure.......................................................... (272 ,900) (23,690) --               (296,590)
Intangibles............................................................. --                  (2 ) --               (2)

(338 ,721) (30,473) 250 (368,944)

Governm ental A ctivities capital assets, net 919 ,622$           1 ,758$          (12 ,126)$        909,254$         

B usiness-type Activities
N on-D epreciable Assets:

Land....................................................................... 123 ,567$           2 ,501$          (2 ,838)$          123,230$         
Construction in Progress........................................ 197 ,691 137,498 (188 ,521) 146,668

D epreciable  Assets:
Buildings................................................................ 109 ,324 3,209 --               112,533
Equipment.............................................................. 547 ,648 155,133 (3 ,361) 699,420
Improvements other than buildings........................ 9 ,763 4,097 --               13 ,860
Infrastructure.......................................................... 714 ,862 29,327 --               744,189
Intangibles............................................................. 93 ,306 4,727 --               98 ,033

1,796 ,161 336,492 (194 ,720) 1 ,937,933

Less accum ulated depreciation for:
Buildings................................................................ (42 ,001) (2 ,880) 33 (44,848)
Equipment.............................................................. (263 ,923) (28,364) 2 ,299 (289,988)
Improvements other than buildings........................ (2 ,665) (588) --               (3 ,253)
Infrastructure.......................................................... (285 ,205) (18,057) --               (303,262)
Intangibles............................................................. (45 ,276) (3 ,163) --               (48,439)

(639 ,070) (53,052) 2 ,332 (689,790)

B usiness-type Activities, net 1 ,157 ,091$        283,440$      (192 ,388)$      1 ,248,143$      

P rim ary Governm ent
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows (in thousands):

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:  
General Government…………………………………… $         1,367 
Public Safety……………………………………………. 1,168 
Transportation…………………………………………..   1,250 
Human Services…………………………………………     229 
Economic Development………………………………...      255 
Physical Environment…………………………………...   15 
Culture and Recreation………………………………….      954 
General Infrastructure………………………….……...  23,956 
Capital Assets held by the governmental type internal 
services funds are charged to the various functions 
based on their usage of assets…………………………...           1,498  

Total depreciation expense–governmental activities $      30,692 
 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:  
Electric…………………………………………………… $      29,595 
Gas………………………………………………………..   1,550 
Sewer……………………………………………………..  6,301 
Water………………………………………………….….   2,848 
Airport…………………………………………………....    3,136 
Star Metro……………………………………….  1,243 
Solid Waste……………………………………………….    33 
Golf……………………………………………………….     165 
Stormwater Management…………………………………  644 
Fire Services…………………………………………….           714 
Capital Assets held by the government’s business-type  
internal services funds are charged to the various 
functions based on their usage of assets………………….           6,800 

Total depreciation expense–business-type activities $      53,029 
 

Interest incurred during long-term construction projects is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.  Interest costs incurred in proprietary funds consisted of the following at September 30, 2008 (in
thousands):

The interest costs capitalized above are netted with the interest earned on the bond proceeds to arrive at the net
amount of interest capitalized.  Capitalized interest in the proprietary funds consisted of the following at September
30, 2008 (in thousands):

Interest expense incurred during construction and capitalized $       11,264 $       728 $       4,864 $       275
Interest earned on bond proceeds (4,725) --                (2,769) (145)
Net interest capitalized $         6,539 $       728 $       2,095 $       130

Electric Water Sewer Gas

Total Interest cost incurred $       25,666 $       1,433 $       7,913 $       1,721
Decrease as a result of capitalizing interest as a cost of construction (11,264) (728) (4,864) (275)
Interest charged to operations $       14,402 $          705 $       3,049 $       1,446
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E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, INTRAGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES, AND
  TRANSFERS

1.  INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES  - At September 30, 2008 Interfund Receivables and Payables are as follows
(in thousands):

Interfund receivables and payables are primarily the balances remaining from amounts loaned and borrowed for
various operating and capital projects.

2.  INTRAGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES - Certain  functions of  the City of a general and administrative nature are
accounted for in  internal service funds.  The costs accumulated in these funds are allocated to the various funds
benefited by the services via charges, which are recorded as charges for services in the internal service funds and
expenses or expenditures in the benefited funds.

Such costs allocated to the funds for the year ended September 30, 2008 are as follows (in thousands):

Fund Due From Due To Advance To Advance From

General............................................... --$                      53$                    1,889$               7,855$               
Electric................................................ 11,040               --                        --                        --                        
Gas...................................................... --                        --                        --                        360                    
Sewer.................................................. --                        --                        --                        437                    
Water.................................................. --                        --                        --                        486                    
Airport................................................ --                        --                        --                        1,561                 
Nonmajor Governmental.................. --                        --                        118                    2,007                 
Nonmajor Business-type................. --                        9                        --                        --                        
Internal Service Funds..................... 62                      11,040               12,605               1,906                 

11,102$             11,102$             14,612$             14,612$             

General........................................................... $         18,977
Electric........................................................... 14,822           
Gas................................................................. 2,291             
Sewer.............................................................. 4,567             
Water.............................................................. 5,151             
Airport............................................................ 1,195             
Stormwater Management................................ 1,962             
Non-major Business Type.............................. 8,951             
Non-major Governmental Type...................... 435                
Fiduciary Type............................................... 851                
Internal Service Type..................................... 6,406             

$         65,608
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NOTE IV (CONTINUED)

F. LEASE COMMITMENTS

OPERATING - The City has entered into several operating leases for buildings and equipment.  The leases are for one
to three years, expiring in 2009 through 2011.  Total rent expenses incurred by the City for the year ended September
30, 2008 was $2,593,000.  The remaining future minimum lease obligations are as follows (in thousands):

    September 30 
2009…………………
2010………………… 

$          212 
73 

2011……...………....                       39 
  Total..……………... $          324 

  
  

For governmental activities, claims and judgements and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General
Fund.

G. LONG-TERM DEBT

1.  The following is a summary of the changes in Long-Term Debt for the year ended September 30, 2008
 (in thousands):

                                                                                    Beginning Due W ithin
Balance Addit ions Reduct ions Ending Balance One Year

Governmental Act ivit ies:
    General Revenue Bonds.................................... 87,795$        --$                   3,660$         84,135$               3,775$          
    Compensat ed Absences…………....................... 8,531 6,535 6,070 8,996 6,535
    Sunshine St at e Loan Payable..………................ 30,700 --                    500 30,200 500
    OPEB Obligat ion..………................................. --                 3,185 -- 3,185 --                 

 T otal Governmental-T ype Debt 127,026 9,720 10,230 126,516 10,810

Business-T ype Act ivit ies:
     Energy System – 1998 A................................ 131,560 --                    3,715 127,845 3,905
     Energy System – 1998 B................................ 24,200 --                    --                24,200 --                 
     Energy System Refunding 2001...................... 12,635 --                    905 11,730 940
     Energy System 2005....................................... 128,920 --                    2,350 126,570 2,300
     Energy System 2007....................................... 203,230 --                    2,255 200,975 2,490
     Airport  Refunding 2004.................................. 5,070 --                    780 4,290 800
     CURSB 2001.................................................. 17,570 --                    995 16,575 1,040
     CURSB 2005.................................................. 36,110 --                    2,660 33,450 2,740
     CURSB 2007.................................................. --                 164,460 --                164,460 --                 
     Compensat ed Absences................................... 10,738 7,713 6,899 11,552 7,713
     AMI Loan...................................................... --                 35,300 --                35,300 --                 
     Sunshine St at e Loan P ayable........................... 61,143 --                    4,113 57,030 959
    OPEB Obligat ion............................................. --                 2,710 --                2,710 --                 
        T otal Business-T ype Debt 631,176 210,183 24,672 816,687 22,887
 

T otal Long-T erm Debt 758,202$      219,903$         34,902$       943,203$             33,697$        
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2.  Summarized below are the City’s individual bond issues which were outstanding at September 30, 2008 (in
thousands):

  
GENERAL REVENUE BONDS: 
 
$15,360,000 Capital Bonds - Series 2001, due in annual installments of 
$1,660,000 to $1,790,000 from October 1, 2009 to October 1, 2011, interest 
rates at 3.75% to 5.00% depending on maturity date. 
  
                                                                             
$86,210,000 Capital Bonds - Series 2004, due in annual installments of 
$2,115,000 to $7,310,000 from October 1, 2009 to October 1, 2024, interest 
rates at 3.00% to 5.00% depending on maturity date.   
   
 
The general revenue bonds are payable from and secured by a first lien and 
pledge of the Local Government Half-cent Sales Tax, Guaranteed 
Entitlement Revenues, and earnings on the investment of all funds and 
accounts created by and described in the Bond Resolutions. 

 
 
 
 

$ 5,170 
 
 
 
 

78,965 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Total General Revenue Bonds 

 
 
PROPRIETARY REVENUE BONDS: 
 
$143,800,000 Energy System - Series 1998A, due in annual installments of 
$3,905,000 to $9,645,000 from October 1, 2009 to October 1, 2028, interest 
at 4.12% to 5.25% depending on maturity date.  Bonds are payable and 
secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided by the 1998 
General Resolution which includes net revenues of the City's Electric 
System and certain other amounts as provided by Resolution. 

 
84,135 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

127,845 
  

$49,220,000 Energy System - Series 1998B, due in annual installments of 
$2,200,000 to 4,840,000 from October 1, 2023 to October 1, 2028, interest 
rates at 5.00%.  Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of 
certain funds provided by the 1998 General Resolution which includes net 
revenues of the City’s Energy System and certain other amounts as 
provided by Resolution 1991B. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

24,200 
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$17,680 ,000  E nergy S ystem  R efunding R evenue B onds - Series 2001, due in  
annual installm ents of $940,000  to  $1 ,200 ,000  from  O ctober 1 , 2009  to  O ctober 1 , 
2019 , in terest rates at 4 .30%  to  5 .50%  depending on m aturity  date . B onds are 
payab le  and secured  by a lien  on  and  pledge o f certain  funds p rovided  by the  1998 
G eneral R eso lution  w hich includes net revenues of the C ity’s E nergy system . 11 ,730  
 
$128 ,920,000  E nergy System  R evenue B onds - S eries 2005 , due in  annual 
installm ents o f $2,300,000 to  $8,140 ,000  from  O ctober 1 , 2009  to  O ctober 1 , 
2035 , in terest rates at 3 .50%  to  5 .00%  depending on m aturity  date . B onds are 
payab le  and secured  by a lien  on  and  pledge o f certain  funds p rovided  by the  1998 
G eneral R eso lution  w hich includes net revenues of the C ity’s E nergy system . 126 ,570  
 
$203 ,230,000  E nergy System  R evenue B onds - S eries 2007 , due in  annual 
installm ents of $2,490 ,000 to  $19,275 ,000  from  O ctober 1 , 2009 to  O ctober 1 , 
2037 , in terest rates at 4 .00%  to  5 .00%  depending on m aturity  date . B onds are 
payab le  and secured  by a  lien on  and pledge o f certain  funds p rovided  by the  1998 
G eneral R eso lution  w hich includes net revenues of the C ity’s E nergy system .  200 ,975  
  
$23,900 ,000  C onso lidated U tility  S ystem  R efund ing R evenue B onds - Series 
2001 , due in  annual insta llm ents o f $1,040 ,000  to  $2 ,110,000 from  O ctober 1 , 
2009  to  O ctober 1 , 2019, in terest rates at 4 .50%  to  5 .50%  depending on  m aturity  
date .  B onds are  payable and secured  by a  lien  on and p ledge o f certain  funds 
provided  by R eso lu tion, net revenues o f the C ity 's  U tility  S ystem  (consisting o f 
the  C ity’s w ater and  sew er system s) and the  gross revenues o f the  C ity 's  
S to rm w ater D rainage System .                                                                                           
                                                                  

16 ,575  
 

$36,110 ,000  C onso lidated U tility  S ystem  R efund ing R evenue B onds - Series 
2005 , due in  annual insta llm ents of $2,740 ,000  to  $3 ,265,000 from  O ctober 1 , 
2009  to  O ctober 1 , 2014 and $1 ,105 ,000 to  $1 ,785,000 from  O ctober 1 , 2020  to  
O ctober 1 , 2030, in terest ra tes a t 3 .00%  to  5 .00%  depending on  m aturity date.  
B onds are payable  and secured by a  lien  on and  pledge of certain  funds provided  
by R eso lution, net revenues o f the  C ity’s U tility S ystem  (consisting o f the C ity’s 
w ater and  sew er system s) and the  gross revenues o f the C ity’s S to rm w ater 
D rainage System .                                                                                                               
 
$164 ,460,000  C onso lidated U tility  System  R evenue B onds –  Series 2007, due in  
annual insta llm ents of $1,610 ,000  to  $10 ,910 ,000 from  O ctober 1 , 2010  to 
O ctober 1 , 2037, interest rates of 4 .00%  to  5 .00%  depending on  m aturity date .  
B onds are payable  and secured by a  lien  on and  pledge of certain  funds provided  
by R eso lution, net revenues o f the  C ity’s U tility S ystem  (consisting o f the C ity’s 
W ater and S to rm w ater D rainage System ). 
 

33 ,450  
 
 
 
 
 
 

164 ,460  
 

$7 ,355 ,000 A irport System  R evenue R efunding B onds - Series 2004, due in  
annual installm ents of $800 ,000 to  $925 ,000 from  O ctober 1 , 2009 to  O ctober 1 , 
2013 , in terest rates at 3 .25%  to  4 .00%  depending on m aturity  date . B onds are 
payab le  and  secured  by a  lien  on and pledge o f certa in  funds provided by 
R eso lution , and  net revenues of the C ity’s A irport System .         4 ,290  

  
                                                                T otal Proprietary R evenue B onds 710 ,095  

  
       T otal B onds Payab le        $    794 ,230  
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3.  LEGAL DEBT MARGIN - The City of Tallahassee has no general obligation debt outstanding; the amount of general
obligation debt the City can issue is limited by City Charter, as outlined below (in thousands):

TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE ................................ $11,162,814

Debt Limit - 20 Percent of Assessed Value ................ $2,232,563

4.  CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS – From time to time, the City has acted as a conduit for the issuance of bonds for
non-profit organizations for the acquisition, construction, and improvement of housing, educational, and medical
facilities deemed to be in the public interest, and has issued Industrial Revenue bonds to provide financial assistance
to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in
the public interest.  The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received
on the underlying mortgage loans.  Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to
the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance.  Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.

•    As of September 30, 2008, there were four series of Health Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds outstanding.
    The original issue amounts totaled $161.4 million and the outstanding balance is $135,135,000.

•    As of September 30, 2008, there was one Florida Student Housing Revenue Bond outstanding. The original
     issue amount totaled $9.2 million and the outstanding balance is $6,400,000.

•  As of September 30, 2008, there were two Florida Lease Revenue Bonds outstanding. The original
     issue amounts totaled $24.1 million and the outstanding balance is $19,790,000.

•   As of September 30, 2008, there is one Industrial Revenue Bond outstanding. The original issue amount
     totaled totaled $2.2 million and the outstanding balance is $2,200,000.
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5.   SUNSHINE STATE LOAN PAYABLE

• $18,200,000, dated November 18, 1986, due and payable on July 1, 2016; to provide interfund loan proceeds.
The loan is secured by the City’s covenant to budget and appropriate.  Outstanding balance as of September
30, 2008 is $17,000,000.

• $4,700,000, dated May 1, 1991 ($3,550,000), and September 1, 1991 ($1,150,000), due and payable on
October 1, 2015;  to provide interfund loan proceeds.   The loan is secured by the City’s covenant to budget
and appropriate.  Outstanding balance as of  September 30, 2008 is $4,700,000.

• $36,500,000, dated April 14, 1999, due and payable in 2016; to provide additional funding for the cost of
Purdom Unit 8 Electric Generating Plant.  The loan is secured by and being repaid from electric system
operating revenues.  Outstanding balance as of  September 30, 2008 is $28,865,000.

•  $11,370,000, dated May 25, 2000, due in annual installments of $380,000, to $685,000, from 2009 to
2025; to provide funding for gas capital projects.  The loan is secured by and being repaid from gas system
operating revenues.  Outstanding balance as of September 30, 2008 is $8,712,500.

• $7,909,000, dated April 25, 2001, due and payable in 2015;  to provide additional funding for the cost of
Purdom Unit 8  Electric Generating Plant.   The loan is secured by and being repaid from electric system
operating revenues.  Outstanding balance as of September 30, 2008 is $6,520,000.

• $5,050,000, dated April 25, 2001, due in annual installments of $346,000 to $463,000 from 2009 to 2015;
to provide funding for fire services projects.  The loan is secured by the City’s covenant to budget and
appropriate, and is being repaid from fire services operating revenues.  Outstanding balance as of September
30, 2008 is $2,815,000.

• $10,000,000, dated August 1, 2005, due and payable in annual installments of $500,000 from 2009 to
2025; to provide funding for the purchase of the Renaissance Building ($8,500,000) and other general
government projects ($1,500,000).  The loan is secured by the City’s covenant to budget and appropriate,
and is being repaid primarily from general government revenues.  Outstanding balance as of September
30, 2008 is $8,500,000.

• $10,550,000, dated April 20, 2006, due and payable in annual installments of $234,000 to $731,000 from
2009 to 2031; to provide funding for the Welaunee property acquisition. The loan is secured by and being
repaid from electric system operating revenues.  Outstanding balance as of September 30, 2008 is
$10,118,000.

As explained in Note I.A., from time to time, the City has obtained loans from the Sunshine State Government
Financing Commission under favorable terms.  The notes currently outstanding are discussed below.

The rate of interest on the loans varies based upon market interest rates for short-term tax exempt financing. The
debt service schedule  was prepared utilizing a 4% interest rate.
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6.   AMI LOAN PROGRAM

On December 27, 2007, the City entered into a loan with the Banc of America Public Capital Corp to provide
$35,300,000 of financing to fund the City’s the Smart Metering program.  The loan is due in semi-annual installments
of $927,000 to $1,633,000 from December 27, 2009 to June 27, 2024, bearing interest at 3.9459%.  The loan is
payable and secured by the Smart Energy Metering and Management System, consisting of meters and communication
devices.

7.   SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS,  FOR ALL OUTSTANDING DEBT INCLUDING PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST

H. NET ASSETS

The government-wide and business-type Fund Financial Statements utilize a net assets presentation.  Net assets are
categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted and unrestricted.

1.  Invested in Capital Assets (net of related debt) is intended to reflect the portion of net assets which are
associated with non-liquid, capital assets less outstanding capital asset related debt.  Related debt includes the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of capital assets of the City.

2.  Restricted Assets are assets whose use is subject to constraints that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors
(such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or (b) imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

3.  Unrestricted Assets are the portion of net assets that are neither invested in capital assets nor restricted for  use
by a third party.

Year ending 
September 30 Principal Interes t Principal Interes t 

Total Debt 
Service

2009 4,275$             5,190$               13,045$             39,285$             61,795$             
2010 4,405               5,039                 19,246               38,036               66,726               
2011 4,535               4,883                 20,092               37,252               66,762               
2012 4,695               4,698                 20,992               36,361               66,746               
2013 4,830               4,537                 21,983               35,398               66,748               

2014-2018 49,145             17,337               148,312             157,844             372,638             
2019-2023 34,140             7,353                 129,160             125,054             295,707             
2024-2028 8,310               441                    156,420             93,075               258,246             
2029-2033 --                  --                    146,516             55,025               201,541             
2034-2039 --                  --                    126,659             15,470               142,129             

Totals 114,335$         49,478$             802,425$           632,800$           1,599,038$        

Governmental Activites Bus iness  - Type Activities
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A. OUTSTANDING CONTRACTS

The City has outstanding commitments on various contracts for construction and other projects.  These commitments,
as of September 30, 2008, in the respective funds are as follows (in thousands):

 G enera l F und ..........................................  $           845  
 S a les  T ax .................................................  7 ,509  
 E lec tric ....................................................  32 ,132  
 G as ..........................................................  984  
 S ew er ......................................................  16 ,799  
 W ater .......................................................  7 ,039  
 A irpo rt.....................................................   3 ,081  
 N onm ajo r G overnm en t ...........................  9 ,338  
 N onm ajo r B usiness-type .........................   7 ,917  
  In te rna l S erv ice  F unds ............................   2 ,410  
  T o ta l .................................................  $     88 ,054  
 

Long-term purchase contract obligations for the purchase of gas and energy are disclosed in Note V.F.  Long-term
contracts are not included in the above outstanding commitment balances.

B. RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The Risk Management program provides coverage for  workers’ compensation by self-insuring primary losses up
 to $1 million.  Losses above that amount are insured through an excess policy.  General liability, automobile and
employment liability are totally self-insured.  General and automobile liability losses are statutorily limited by
sovereign immunity of $100,000 per person and $200,000 per accident. Settlement amounts in workers’ compensation
claims have not exceeded the self-insured retention during the past three years.   The Risk Management program is
also responsible for the purchase of certain other exposures including airport liability coverage in the amount of
$100,000,000.  The City’s buildings and contents are covered by an all-risk, blanket program with varying deductibles.
Statutory death benefits for police and firefighters is also purchased and such policy pays pursuant to the benefits
specified by state law.  The Risk Management Fund, which is classified as an Internal Service Fund, is responsible
for collecting premiums from all of the departments for both self-insured and commercial programs, paying claim
settlements on self-insured claims and procuring commercial insurance.  Claims settlements and loss expenses are
reserved for the expected value of the known losses and also for estimated incurred but not reported losses (IBNRs).
The Risk Management program  also provides for Employment Practice Liability such as allegations of race, gender,
and other discrimination or disparate treatment allegations.

Annually, as of August 31and extrapolated to September 30, the program has a third party actuary review the claim
history for all claim years for which open  self-insurance claims are outstanding.  The actuary projects the ultimate
claim payment obligation (including the IBNRs) for each year’s claim experience and projects the new year’s probable
loss fund cost and a discounted alternative.  The City elected to establish the liability at the discounted value (3.5%).
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Employee health insurance is provided through two programs.  Employees may choose a health maintenance
organization, or a traditional insurance program.  For both options, the City pays a premium and  retains no additional
liability.  The Human Resources department administers this program.

Changes in the balances of self-insured claims for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows
(in thousands):

2008 2007
Unpaid Claims – October 1 (including IBNRs)……………………….  $       9,067  $   11,180 
Expenses…...……………………………………………………………..           4,427         1,933 
Claim Payments………………………………………………………….          (4,040)       (4,046)
Unpaid Claims – September 30 (including IBNRs)…………………..  $       9,454  $     9,067 
Estimated Amount due in one year……………….…………………..  $       2,748  $     2,575 

C. LITIGATION

In addition to the following, during the ordinary course of its operations, the City is a party to various claims, legal actions
and complaints.  In the opinion of City’s management and legal counsel, these matters are anticipated to have a material
impact on the City.

Since 1998, the City of Tallahassee has been involved in the assessment and remediation of the Cascade Park Coal
Gasification Plant and Cascade Landfill site (parcels known as Areas of Concern 1, 2 and 3). From 1998 until May
2003 the City was under an Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) to perform an Engineering Evaluation and Cost Analysis (EE/CA) at the Site to determine the extent of contamination
at the site, and to propose remediation alternatives.

In May 2003, the EPA published the Final Action Memorandum, which approved the EE/CA, approved the remedial
action chosen by the Respondents, and closed the AOC.

In April 2004, the City and the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) reached consensus
and signed a Settlement Agreement providing for the responsibilities of the parties with respect to implementing the
remediation. Per the Settlement Agreement, the City is the sole Respondent to the EPA for the remedial action. The
Agreement also provided for the transfer of ownership of the state-owned Cascade Park land to the City, and transfer
of the portion of Cascades Park that lies east of Gadsden Street. The City will also be responsible for remediation
costs on the East of Gadsden parcels.  The remediation activities for theses parcels, known as Areas of Concern 4
and 5, will be coordinated through the Department of Environmental Protection

On September 29, 2004, the City entered into a new Administrative Order on Consent for Non-Time Critical Removal
Action with EPA to implement the approved clean-up alternative chosen for the site.
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As of September 30, 2008,  the City had substantially completed all remediation actions required under the Settlement
Agreement.  The total amount expended by the City was approximately $12.2 million; of which $7.2 million was
funded by a DEP grant agreement.

D. FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS

The City participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs, that are subject to financial and compliance
audits made in accordance with the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.

Through the Community Development Block Grant, HOMES program, the City provides Down Payment Assistance
loans to low-income families.  These loans are “contingency loans” in that they are repaid only upon the buyer
selling or refinancing his property and are not reported in the finanacial statements.  As of September 30, 2008,
these loans total $4.3 million.

E. ADVANCE FUNDING OF STATE OF FLORIDA ROADWAY PROJECTS
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
In prior years, the City had advanced $220,319 to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for roadway
improvements.  Reimbursement of these advances is totally subject to state legislative approval and appropriation
in the fiscal years of reimbursement indicated in each contract with the FDOT; accordingly, the advanced monies
have been treated as a gain contingency and no receivable has been recorded for the possible reimbursement.

F. LONG-TERM CONTRACTS

The City acquires natural gas and power through a combination of short, medium and longer-term contracts.  The
City currently has one long-term (20 Year) contract with Tennessee Energy Acquisition Corporation for natural  gas
discounted from an index.  This contract saves the City approximately $70,000 each month through 2026. Another
long-term discount contract was scheduled for the thirty years through Leman Brothers but ended after only three
and a half months due to Lehman Brothers’ bankruptcy.  This contract saved the City $776,000 over that period.
These contracts are managed and monitored by the City’s Energy Services Department.  Revenues from customers
through the Energy Cost Recovery Clause (ECRC) and the Purchased Gas Recovery (PGRC) are designed to recover
the costs incurred by these purchase commitments.

 In addition, the City has entered into long-term purchase contracts with other suppliers of electric capacity and
associated energy.  The City has three such contracts, one with Progress Energy Florida (PEF) for 11.4 MW’s, and
two contracts with Biomass Gas & Electric (BG&E) for approximately 38 MWs, and Renwable Fuel Tallahassee
(RFT) for approximately 35 MWs.  The BG&E contract had an original in service date of October 2010; however,
the company has requested a new in service date of October 2011. The RFT contract has also been amended and is
scheduled to begin production in October 2011 as well.  The contingent contracts with BG&E and RFT will continue
in effect until the 30th anniversary of the commercial operation date.  These contracts are managed and monitored
by the City’s Energy Services Department.  Revenues from customers through the ECRC are designed to recover
the costs incurred by these purchase commitments.
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The following is a schedule, by years, of approximate  minimum future purchase commitments on long-term purchase
contracts as of  September 30, 2008 (in thousands):

*Both the BG&E and RFT agreements are contingent upon leasing/locating a site for the plant, permitting, financing,
construction and the ultimate operation of the plants.  If these conditions and others are met, the City will purchase
the power from each qualifying party.

G. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS

The City of Tallahassee Pension Plan (the “Plan”) was established by Chapter 14 of the City Code of Ordinances.
The Plan is administered by the City of Tallahassee Treasurer-Clerk’s Office, under  guidance from the Plan’s
Board of Trustees.  Under the Plan, the City provides a single-employer defined benefit provision covering general
employees (Article II), police officers (Article III) and firefighters (Article IV), and a defined contribution provision
(Article V - Matched Annuity - MAP) covering all City employees.

The Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution provisions are combined and reported as one plan in the financial
statements. The City of Tallahassee does not issue a stand alone Financial Report. The provisions of the Plan are
“qualified” under the Internal Revenue Service Code, which makes employee contributions tax deferred.

1.  DEFINED BENEFIT PROVISION - Established through Parts A, B, and C in Articles II, III, and IV, Parts A and B are
closed to further participation while part C provides coverage to all new employees.  All members of the Plan are
covered by one of these parts depending upon employment date.  These parts provide a detailed description of the
various defined benefit provisions.  These provisions include the types of employees covered, benefit provisions,
employee eligibility requirements for normal, early and/or vested retirements, and the related benefits of these
retirements, pre-retirement death benefits, and provisions for disability retirements.  There are also post retirement
cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) and health care supplements.

2.  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PROVISION - All employees (general, firefighters, and police officers) may elect to contribute
a portion of their salary to the Plan.  General employees, firefighters and police officers can contribute up to but not
to exceed the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Service.  The City contributes 5% to each general
employee’s MAP account.  Upon reaching normal retirement age or retiring under the Plan, a participant shall be

Years ending Gas Energy Contingent
September 30, Contracts Contracts Power* Total

2009 $               144,071 $                4,417 --$                     $             148,488 
2010 98,377 4,550 -- 102,927 
2011 21,640 4,686 -- 26,326 
2012 9,896 4,827 39,377 54,100 
2013 9,748 4,971 40,027 54,746 

Thereafter 153,992 16,808 1,475,324 1,646,124 
Total $               437,724 $             40,259 $  1,554,728 $             2,032,711 
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 paid his and the City’s contributions, together with accrued earnings.  If a general employee uses the contributions
and accrued earnings to purchase an annuity contract, the Plan will increase the amount of funds (only on the City’s
5%, employee flex matched contribution and employees’ contribution up to the 5%) used by the participant by a
factor of 50 %.  Employee contributions (including the City’s 5% contribution to each general employees MAP
account) plus accrued earnings thereon are 100% refundable if the employee elects to terminate his vesting rights or
is not vested at the date of employment termination.

3.  PENSION PLAN INFORMATION

4.   ACTUARIALLY DETERMINED CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS MADE - The contributions required
to support the benefits under Article II, III and IV, other than pre-retirement death benefits, are determined based on
a level funding approach and consist of a normal contribution and an accrued liability contribution.  The normal
contribution is determined using the entry age actuarial cost method.  Under this method, a calculation is made to
determine the uniform and constant percentage rate of contribution, which if applied to the compensation of the
average new member during the entire period of his anticipated covered service, would be required to meet the cost
of all benefits payable on his behalf.

As of the September 30, 2005 actuarial valuation, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability contribution for the
defined bernefit plan is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis.  The remaining
amortization periods are as follows: general employees, 11 years; police officers, 12 years; and firefighters, 11
years.  The unfunded initial liability for the MAP program is being amortized over 10 years for general employees
as a percentage of payroll.

Employer contributions required to support the benefits under Article V (MAP Program) are determined following
a level funding aggregate approach.  The present value of prospective employer contributions is determined by
subtracting the present value of prospective member contributions and present assets from the total present value of
benefits expected to be paid from the program.  Contributions during fiscal year 2008 totaling $15,153,000 ($8,308,000
employer contributions representing 8.15% covered payroll for general employees and $6,845,000 voluntary employee
contributions representing 5.01% of total covered MAP payroll), were made in accordance with contribution
requirements determined through an actuarial valuation performed as of September 30, 2005.  Total covered payroll
for the MAP program was $101,934,000 for general employees.  Total covered payroll for fiscal year 2008 was
$136,692,000.  Contributions are based on rates of covered payroll of 7.55% (5% employer contribution and 2.55
actuarial contribution) for the City and voluntary employee contributions ranging from 0% to the IRS limit for
general employees, firefighters and police officers.

   2008  Membership Statistical Information 
 

A. Retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving benefits 1,158 
B. Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving benefits 252 
C. Active employees 2,755 
D. Total current year’s payroll $ 156,097,000 
E. Current year payroll for employees covered by the Plan $ 128,173,000 
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Fiscal 
Year 

 
Annual Pension 

Cost (APC) 
(in thousands) 

  
Percentage of 

APC 
Contributed 

 
 

Net Pension 
Obligation 

2006          $  13,149  100%  $  0 
2007        14,223           100      0 
2008        14,695           100      0 

 

NOTE V (CONTINUED)

A separate Article V MAP employer contribution is also payable for general employees, police officers and firefighters.
The Article V MAP employer contribution for general employees was 8.15%, 7.53% and 7.69% for 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

5. TREND INFORMATION -  The following historical trend information, prepared in accordance with GASB No. 27,
provides information on progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.  The purpose of
the schedule is to establish a consistent method for analyzing and making comparisons among different public
retirement systems.  The following information presents three year trend information required by GASB No. 27.

Contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution requirements.

Contributions to the Defined Benefit Plan in 2008 amounted to $21,541,000 of which $14,695,000 and $6,846,000
were made by the City and its employees, respectively.  The contributed amounts were actuarially determined as
described above and were based on an actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2005 and include changes in funding
due to plan amendments since the valuation was prepared.  Contributions made by the City of Tallahassee and its
employees are detailed in the table noted below.

The significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirements include
(a) an interest rate of 7.75% per annum compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases for inflation and merit
of 6.00% per annum compounded annually, (c) inflation rate of 4.00% and, (d) post retirement benefit increases
including 3% cost-of-living adjustments and a health care supplement.

The employer pension cost and contribution made as a percentage of payroll for each Plan is as follows (in thousands):

Percent of Percent of Percent of
    Amount     Payroll       Amount      Payroll       Amount      Payroll   

Contribution Requirements:  13,767$      14.46% 4,341$        20.79% 3,432$        28.47%

Contribution Made:
   City................................................. 9,609$        10.09% 3,014$        14.44% 2,072$        17.18%
   Employee....................................... 4,158         4.37% 1,327         6.35% 1,361         11.29%
     Total............................................. 13,767$      14.46% 4,341$        20.79% 3,433$        28.47%

     General Employees                    Police                           Firefighters             
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H. OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

1.  DEFERRED COMPENSATION - The City of Tallahassee offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.  The plan, available to all City employees, permits them to
defer a portion of their salary until future years.  The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

In December 1998, the City established a Trust Agreement where all assets and income of the City Deferred
Compensation Plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of City employees, in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code sections 457 (b) and (g).  Thus, plan assets are no longer subject to the claims of the City’s general creditors.

2.  FLEXIBLE BENEFITS - The City has implemented a “Cafeteria” Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 125.  The plan provides employees with an opportunity to select benefits from a menu of options,
many of which are offered on a pre-tax basis.

I. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

1.  PLAN DESCRIPTION - The City administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (the “OPEB Plan”).
The plan provides health insurance and prescription drug coverage for eligible retirees and their eligible dependants
through the City’s health insurance program, which covers both active and retired employees.  Pursuant to Section
112.0801, Florida Statutes, the City is required to permit participation in the health insurance program by retirees
and their eligible dependents at a cost to the retiree that is no greater than the cost at which coverage is available for
active employees.  In addition, the City’s program has elected to provide a partial subsidy to its retirees to offset the
cost of such health insurance.  The City does not issue a stand alone financial report on the OPEB Plan.
2.  FUNDING POLICY - The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended
by the City Commission.  These contributions are neither mandated nor guaranteed.  The City has retained the right to
unilaterally modify its payment for retiree health care benefits.
As previously indicated, the State of Florida prohibits the City from separately rating retirees and active employees.  The
City therefore charges both groups an equal, blended premium.  Although both groups are charged the same blended rate,
GAAP requires the actuarial figures presented to be calculated using age-adjusted premiums approximating claim costs
for retirees’ separate from active employees.  The use of age-adjusted premiums results in the addition of an implicit rate
subsidy into the actuarial accrued liability.  The City has elected to contribute to the OPEB Plan at a rate that is based on
an actuarial valuation prepared using the blended rate premium that is actually charged to the OPEB Plan.  For the year
ended September 30, 2008, the City contributed $2.5 million  to the plan.  Retired plan members (including disabled
retirees) and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits contribute assumed monthly contributions as follows:

Without 
Medicare

With 
Medicare

CHP Retiree only 223$               126$            
Spouse 243$               129$            

Blue Choice Retiree only 237$               244$            
Spouse 252$               267$            

Fiscal Year 2008 Contribution
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4.  FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS - As of October 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan
was 0% funded.  The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $101.8 million, and the actuarial value of assets
was $0 resulting in an unfunded accrued liability (UAAL) of $101.8 million.  The covered payroll (annual payroll
of active employees covered by the plan) was $136.4 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
74.6 %.
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates about the future.

5.  ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to the point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed, and the change in the City’s net OPEB obligation (dollar amounts in thousands):

NOTE V (CONTINUED)

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation as of September 30 is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Fiscal 
Year

Annual 
OPEB Cos t

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB Cost 

Contributed
Net OPEB 
Obligation

2008 $        8,353 29.43% $        5,895

Annual required contribution.............. $         8 ,353 
Contributions made............................... (2,458)
Increase in net OPEB obligation......... 5 ,895
Net OPEB obligation - October 1........                       -- 
Net OPEB obligation - September 30 . $        5 ,895 

3.  ANNUAL OPEB COST AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION - The contribution required to support the OPEB Plan is calculated
based on the annual required contribution (ARC), an amount determined in accordance with GASB Statement 45.  The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year, calculated
using the pay related entry age actuarial cost method, and to amortize the unfunded actuarial liability over a period not to
exceed thirty years.
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As of September 30, 2008, the City has a variety of financial fixed price, put and call options for different quantities
and strike prices during the period November 2008 through March 2010.  The fair value of the hedges at September
30, 2008 is $17,771,000 while the cost basis is $53,999,000, resulting  in an unrealized loss of  $36,228,000
financial transactions are done on the New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) through a financial broker.  Financial
transactions through the NYMEX minimize the City’s  credit risk (NYMEX has not defaulted on a single transaction
since its inception in 1892).

K.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Defeased Bonds

On November 5, 2008, the City defeased $5,000,000 of the 2004 Series Capital Bonds.  By defeasing these bonds,
the City effectively reduced debt service by $1,000,000 per year for the next five years.

Sunshine State Internal Loans

On November 25, 2008, the City wired  $10,000,000 to Sunshine State to pay off Internal Loans #2 ($3,550,000)
and #3 ($1,150,000) and partially pay off Loan #1 ($5,300,000).  The balance on Loan #1 is 11,699,730.

On December 15, 2008, the City wired $9,400,000 to Sunshine State for partial payment on Internal Loan #1
leaving a balance of $2,299,730.

Series 2008 Capital Revenue Bonds

On December 11, 2008, the City issued a single bond to BB&T for $9,400,000 to pay on the Sunshine State Internal
Loan #1 balance.  The bond is in the Internal Loan Fund and will be paid off by the same revenue as the Sunshine
State loan.  The balance is due in annual installments of $865,000 to $1,345,000 from October 1, 2009 to October
1, 2016, bearing interest  at 3.410%.

J.  DERIVATIVE FUEL INSTRUMENTS

As indicated in Note I.E., the City participates in the purchase and sale of  certain financial instruments defined as
hedge instruments.

NOTE V (CONTINUED)

In the October 1, 2007 actuarial valuation, the pay related entry age  actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 7.75 % investment rate of return for the funded portion of the plan and a 4.00 %  rate on the
unfunded implicit rate portion of the plan, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 6.5% initially, adjusted annually
to an ultimate rate of 5 % after six years.  Both rates included a 4.0 % inflation assumption.  The UAAL is being
amortized as a level percentage of payroll on an open basis.  The remaining amortization period at October 1, 2007
was 30 years.
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(in thousands)

Variance with
Actual Amounts Final Budget

(Budgetary Basis) Positive
O riginal Final (S ee Note A) (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance - O ctober 1 685$                 685$                 685$                 -$                 

Resources
Taxes............................................................ 59,207              58,682              55,735              (2,947)              
Licenses and Permits.................................... 4,437                4,437                3,278                (1,159)              
Intergovernmental Revenues........................ 16,796              16,796              15,551              (1,245)              
Charges for Services..................................... 7,606                7,606                6,912                (694)                 
Fines and Forfeitures.................................... 1,323                1,324                1,272                (52)                   
Interest Earned............................................. 500                   500                   779                   279                   
Miscellaneous............................................... 10,947              9,359                11,851              2,492                
Transfers from Other Funds........................ 33,691              33,826              37,011              3,185                
  Total Resources.......................................... 135,192            133,215            133,074            (141)                 

Charges to Appropriations
General Government.................................... 24,953              23,206              21,135              2,071                
Public Safety................................................ 46,557              46,092              46,938              (846)                 
Transportation............................................. 15,937              15,142              15,899              (757)                 
Human Services............................................ 6,373                6,100                5,732                368                   
Economic Development............................... 2,491                2,301                2,168                133                   
Physical Environment.................................. 2,445                2,403                2,460                (57)                   
Culture and Recreation................................. 15,785              15,377              15,336              41                     
Transfers to Other Funds............................. 20,651              22,594              22,503              91                     
    Total Charges to Appropriations............. 135,192            133,215            132,171            1,044                

Budgetary Fund Balance, S eptember 30 -$                 -$                 903$                 903$                 

Budget Amounts

CITY OF TALLAHAS S EE, FLO RIDA
REQ UIRED S UPPLEMENTARY INFO RMATIO N

Budgetary Comparison S chedule
General  Fund

For the Year Ended S eptember 30, 2008
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N o te  A  -  Ex pl a n a t i o n  o f  D i f fe re n ce s  be tw e e n  B u dg e ta ry  In f l o w s  a n d O u t f l o w s  a n d G A A P
     R e ve n u e s /T ra n s fe rs  In  a n d Ex pe n di tu re s /T ra n s fe rs  O u t

In f l o w s  o f  R e s o u rce s
A ct u al am o u n t s  (b u d get ary  b as is )  av ailab le  fo r  ap p ro p r ia t io n  f ro m  t h e  b u d get a ry
     co m p ar is o n  s ch ed u le . 1 3 3 ,0 7 4  $          

D if feren ces  -  b u d get  t o  G A A P
   T h e  fu n d  b a lan ce  a t  t h e  b egin n in g o f  t h e  y ear  is  a  b u d ge t ary   r es o u rce  b u t  is  n o t  
   a  cu rren t  y ear  rev en u e  fo r  f in an c ia l r ep o r t in g p u rp o s es . (6 8 5 )

   T h e  in creas e  in  t h e  fa ir  m ark et  v a lu e  o f  in v es t m en t s  is  an  in c reas e  in  r ev en u e fo r   
   f in an cia l rep o r t in g p u rp o s es  b u t  is  n o t  co n s id ered  a  b u d ge t ary  in f lo w .  (2 9 8 )

  T h e  rev en u es  o f  t h e  C it y 's  D ef ic ien cy  R es erv e  an d  Sch o lars h ip  R es erv e  are  cu rren t  
  y ear  rev en u es  fo r  r ep o r t in g p u rp o s es  b u t  a re  n o t  co n s id ered  b u d get ary  in f lo w s . 3 ,2 6 5

  T h e  t r an s fe rs  f ro m  t h e  D ef ic ien cie s  R es e rv e  an d  Sch o lar s h ip  R es erv e  are  b u d get ary  
  in f lo w s  b u t  a re  n o t  rev en u es   fo r  f in an cia l r ep o r t in g p u rp o s es . (3 ,2 2 2 )

   C u rren t  y ear  n o n b u d get ed  t r an s fe r  is  t rea t ed  as  rev en u e  fo r  f in an c ia l r ep o r t in g
   p u rp o s es  b u t  n o t  as  a  b u d get ary  in f lo w . 3 0

  M is ce llan eo u s  it em s  t r ea t ed  as  b u d get ary  in f lo w s  b u t  n o t  as  rev en u es  fo r  
  f in an cia l r ep o r t in g p u rp o s es . (1 ,3 2 6 )

T o t a l R ev en u es /T ran s fe rs  In  as  r ep o r t ed  o n  t h e  St a t em en t  o f  R ev en u es , E xp en d it u res ,
an d  C h an ges  in  F u n d  B a lan ces . 1 3 0 ,8 3 8  $          

O u tf l o w s  o f  R e s o u rce s
A ct u al am o u n t s  (b u d get ary  b as is )  t o t a l ch arges  t o  ap p ro p r ia t io n s  f ro m  t h e  b u d get ary
     co m p ar is o n  s ch ed u le . 1 3 2 ,1 7 1  $          

D if feren ces  -  b u d get  t o  G A A P
  T h e exp en d it u res  o f  t h e  C it y 's  D ef ic ien cy  R es erv e  an d  Sch o lars h ip  R es e rv e  are  cu rren t  
  y ear  exp en d it u res  fo r  r ep o r t in g p u rp o s es  b u t  a re  n o t  co n s id ered  b u d get ary  o u t f lo w s . 4 ,1 6 9

  R ep ay m en t  o f  t h e  p r in c ip a l p o r t io n  o f  d eb t  is  t r ea t ed  as  an  o u t f lo w  fo r  b u d get ary  
  p u rp o s es ,  b u t  as  a  red u ct io n  o f  t h e  d eb t   fo r  r ep o r t in g p u rp o s es . (2 ,0 3 4 )

  N o n b u d ge t ed  t ran s fers  o u t  a re  t rea t ed  a s  exp en d it u res  fo r  f in an cia l rep o r t in g p u rp o s es  
  b u t  n o t  as  a  b u d get ary  o u t f lo w s . 1 0

  M is ce llan eo u s  it em s  t r ea t ed  as  exp en d it u res  fo r  f in an cia l rep o r t in g p u rp o s es  b u t  n o t  
  as  b u d get ary  o u t f lo w s . (8 3 7 )

T o t a l E xp en d it u res /T ran s fers  O u t  as  rep o r t ed  o n  t h e  St a t em en t  o f  R ev en u es ,  E xp en d it u res ,  
an d  C h an ges  in  F u n d  B a lan ces . 1 3 3 ,4 7 9  $          

F o r th e  Y e a r En de d S e pte m be r  3 0 , 2 0 0 8
( i n  th o u s a n ds )

C IT Y  O F  T A LLA H A S S EE
R EQ U IR ED  S U P P LEM EN T A R Y  IN F O R M A T IO N

B u dg e ta ry  C o m pa ri s o n  S ch e du l e
G e n e ra l  F u n d
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Schedule of Funding Progress 
(in millions) 

 
                                                           Actuarial   
                       Accrued                                                       Excess as a 
                               Actuarial              Liability               Excess of                                                                  Percentage 
         Actuarial        Value of    (AAL)             Assets Over  Funded                Covered        of Covered 
        Valuation          Assets Entry Age   AAL      Ratio  Payroll             Payroll 
             Date           (a)              (b)           (a – b)        (a / b)         ( c )               ( (a-b)/c)      
 
 9/30/94   $  307.0  $  300.8 $   6.2         102.0% $  79.0 7.8% 
 9/30/96     396.6    384.6    12.0     103.1 87.9 13.7 
 9/30/97 476.4 427.3    49.1 111.5 86.6 56.7 
 9/30/99   613.0 496.2  116.8 123.5 90.7 128.8 
 9/30/01 723.6 597.6          126.0 121.1  99.9 126.1 
 9/30/03 796.6 719.2          77.4 110.8  113.7 68.1 
 9/30/05** 916.3 842.1          74.2 108.8  118.6 62.6 
 
 
 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
(in thousands) 

   
 

Fiscal 
Year 

*Employer 
Annual Required 

Contributions 

 
Percentage 
Contributed 

   
2004 $  9,324    100% 
2005   13,456 100 
2006   13,150 100 
 2007   14,223 100 
2008   14,695 100 

 
 
*Contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution requirements. 
 
**Actuarial valuation prepared as of September 30, 2005 to determine annual contributions for  
     the plan year beginning October 1, 2006. 

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued)
September 30, 2008

The following historical trend information, prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 25, (Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined
Contribution Plans) provides information on progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when
due.  The purpose of the schedule is to establish a consistent method for analyzing and making comparisons among
different public retirement systems.
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COMBINING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements provide a summary overview of the financial position of all  funds
and account groups as well as the operating results of all funds.  They also serve as an  introduction
to the more detailed statements and schedules that follow in subsequent sections:

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Internal Service Funds
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
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NONMAJOR FUNDS 
 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
Special Projects For the housing of projects relating to federal, state and local grants. These 

grants include but are not limited to; the Community Development Block Grant 
and the HOME program.  Also included in this fund are other miscellaneous 
items that are to be used for specific general government purposes but are not 
appropriate for any other established City fund. 

 
Law Enforcement For the accounting of state and federal forfeitures received by the City as 

prescribed by Florida Statutes.  Also included: the Federal Law Enforcement 
Block Grant revenues and expenditures; and Second Dollar funding revenues 
received from the County who collects fines from citizens guilty of a statute 
violation or local ordinance. 

 
Building Code  Accounts for all assets, operations, and maintenance of the City’s Building 
Enforcement  Inspection Division of the Growth Management Department.  Revenues 

accounted for in this fund are derived from fees, fines, and investment earnings  
from the enforcement and implementation of the Florida Building code.  
Revenues in this fund were previously captured and reported in the General 
Revenue Fund. 

 
Concurrency Accounts for activity as result of the State’s new concurrency requirements 

outlined in Chapter 163, F.S.  This statute allows developers the opportunity to 
move forward with development despite concurrency constraints by contributing 
their fair share of the cost to improve the impacted transportation facilities. 

 
State Housing  Accounts for State funding to be used as an incentive to produce and preserve 
Partnership affordable housing for very low, low and moderate income families.  
 
Debt Service  Accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, interest and 

principal on all general long-term debt other than that payable from Proprietary 
Funds.  

 
Capital        Accounts for general revenue used for the acquisition or construction of general 
Improvement        fixed assets. 
 
Capital Bonds  Accounts for bond proceeds used for the acquisition or construction of general 

fixed assets. 
 
Sales Tax   Accounts for tax proceeds used for the acquisition or construction of public 
Construction      safety and transportation improvements. 
 
Gas Tax  Accounts for tax proceeds used for the acquisition or construction of 

transportation improvements. 
 
Cemetery  To accumulate resources for the perpetual maintenance of the City’s cemeteries 

which include the sale and maintenance of plots. 
 



- 96 -

 Special 
Projects 

 Law 
Enforcement 

 Building Code 
Enforcement 

 Concurrency 
Fund 

 State Housing 
Partnership 

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents.......................................... 5,785 $      -- $                     15 $                       -- $                 -- $                           
Securities Lending Collateral ...................................... 1,042 -- 3 -- -- 
Receivables:     

Accrued Interest........................................................ 26 -- -- -- -- 
Customers and Other................................................ 17 -- -- -- -- 
Notes......................................................................... 8 -- -- -- -- 
Special Assessments................................................. -- -- -- -- -- 

Due From Other Governments..................................... 854 -- -- -- -- 
Advances to Other Funds............................................. -- -- -- -- -- 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted....................... -- 567 -- 1,175 2,527
Investments - Restricted............................................... -- -- -- -- -- 
Securities Lending Collateral - Restricted.................... -- 100 -- 212 455
Receivables - Restricted:     

Accrued Interest Receivable..................................... 4 6 -- 12 26
Customers................................................................. 4 132 -- -- -- 
Notes Receivable...................................................... 3,021 -- -- -- -- 
Due from Other Governments.................................. 753 -- -- -- -- 

Total Assets........................................................... 11,514 $    805 $                 18 $                       1,399 $           3,008 $                     

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

Obligations Under Securities Lending ........................ 1,042 $      -- $                     3 $                         -- $                 -- $                           
Accounts and Retainage Payable.................................. 521 -- 13 -- -- 
Unearned Revenue....................................................... 1,167 -- -- -- -- 
Advance from Other Funds.......................................... -- -- 1,889 -- -- 
Accounts and Retainage Payable - Restricted.............. 283 34 -- -- 23
Obligations Under Securities Lending - Restricted...... -- 100 -- 212 455
Unearned Revenue - Restricted.................................... -- 20 -- -- 650

Total Liabilities..................................................... 3,013 154 1,905 212 1,128

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:   

Encumbrances........................................................... 1,542 2 -- -- 1,297
Advances to Other Funds......................................... -- -- -- -- -- 
Projects..................................................................... 3,930 188 -- -- 583
Notes Receivable...................................................... 3,029 -- -- -- -- 
Debt Service............................................................. -- -- -- -- -- 

Unreserved................................................................... -- 461 (1,887) 1,187 -- 
Total Fund Balances............................................. 8,501 651 (1,887) 1,187 1,880
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances...................... 11,514 $    805 $                 18 $                       1,399 $           3,008 $                     

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2008

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

(in thousands)

Special Revenue Funds



- 97 -

 Permanent 
Fund 

 Debt 
Service 

 Capital 
Improvement 

 Capital 
Bonds  Sales Tax  Gas Tax  Cemetery  Total 

-- $             21,169 $              -- $               6,885 $      9,428 $           6,406 $         49,688 $        
-- 3,851 -- 1,276         1,711 1,163 9,046

      
-- 227 -- 77              100 69 499
-- 18 -- -- -- -- 35
-- 140 -- -- -- -- 148
-- 325 -- -- -- -- 325
-- 24 -- 629 327 -- 1,834
-- 118 -- -- -- -- 118

1,024 -- -- -- -- -- 5,293
7,730 -- 58,437 -- -- -- 66,167
1,578 -- 10,522 -- -- -- 12,867

     
8 -- -- -- -- -- 56
-- -- -- -- --  -- 136
-- -- -- -- -- -- 3,021
-- -- -- -- -- -- 753

10,340 $     25,872 $              68,959 $       8,867 $      11,566 $         7,638 $         149,986 $      

-- $             3,851 $                -- $               1,276 $      1,711 $           1,163 $         9,046 $          
-- 538 -- 3,039 496  18 4,625
-- -- -- -- --  -- 1,167
-- -- -- -- -- -- 1,889
-- -- 880 -- --  -- 1,220

1,578 -- 10,522 -- --  -- 12,867
-- -- -- -- --  -- 670

1,578 4,389 11,402 4,315 2,207  1,181 31,484

    
-- 2,213 3,582 8,446 148 -- 17,230
-- 118  -- -- -- 118
-- 16,636 48,935 -- 8,996 -- 79,268
-- 140 -- -- -- -- 3,169

8,762 -- -- -- -- -- 8,762
-- 2,376 5,040 (3,894) 215 6,457 9,955

8,762 21,483 57,557 4,552 9,359 6,457 118,502
10,340 $     25,872 $              68,959 $       8,867 $      11,566 $         7,638 $         149,986 $      

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2008

Capital Projects Funds

(in thousands)
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Special 
Projects

Law  
Enforcement

Building Code  
Enforcement Concurrency

State Housing 
Partnership

Debt 
Service

Revenues:
Taxes........................................................................ -- $                    -- $                    -- $                    -- $                    -- $                          -- $            
Licenses and Permits................................................ -- -- 2,388 483 -- -- 
Intergovernmental Revenues.................................... 4,979 220 -- -- 1,502 -- 
Charges for Services................................................. -- -- -- -- -- -- 
Fines and Forfeitures................................................ -- 322 -- -- -- -- 
Net Investment Earnings.......................................... 171 21 -- 31 84 -- 
Securities Lending Income....................................... 44 7 -- 7 22 -- 
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value

of Investments....................................................... (121) (12) -- (25) (53) (22)
Miscellaneous Revenues.......................................... 748 -- 142 -- -- -- 

Total Revenues.................................................. 5,821 558 2,530 496 1,555 (22)

Expenditures:
Current:

General Government............................................. 2,818 -- -- -- -- -- 
Public Safety......................................................... 373 433 3,390 -- 12 -- 
Transportation....................................................... 638 -- -- -- -- -- 
Human Services.................................................... 862 -- -- -- -- -- 
Economic Environment........................................ 2,371 -- -- -- 1,186 -- 
Physical Environment........................................... 632 -- -- -- -- -- 
Cultural and Recreation........................................ 919 -- -- -- -- -- 

Securities Lending Expense:
Interest.................................................................. 36 6 -- 6 18 -- 
Agent Fees............................................................ 2 -- -- -- 1 -- 

Debt Service:
Principal Retired................................................... -- -- -- -- -- 4,160
Interest and Fiscal Charges................................... -- -- -- -- -- 4,428

Total Expenditures............................................ 8,651 439 3,390 6 1,217 8,588

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures......... (2,830) 119 (860) 490 338 (8,610)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In.............................................................. 2,876 180 2 -- -- 8,622
Transfers Out............................................................ (292) (180) (229) -- -- -- 
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets....................... -- -- -- -- -- 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).............. 2,584 -- (227) -- -- 8,622
 
Net Change in Fund Balances...................................... (246) 119 (1,087) 490 338 12

Fund Balances - October 1........................................... 8,747 532 (800) 697 1,542 8,750
Adjustment to beginning Fund Balances..................... -- -- -- -- -- 
Fund Balances - October 1, as restated........................ 8,747 532 (800) 697 1,542 8,750
Fund Balances - September 30..................................... 8,501 $             651 $                 ( 1,887)$           1,187 $              1,880 $                   8,762 $      

(in thousands)

Special Revenue Funds

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
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 Permanent 
Fund 

Capital 
Improvement Capital Bonds Sales Tax Gas Tax Cemetery Total

-- $                         -- $                         -- $                    -- $                    -- $                     -- $                
-- -- -- -- -- 2,871

166 -- 3,777 3,922 -- 14,566
34 -- -- -- 87 121
-- -- -- -- -- 322

803 1,815 672 255 186 4,038
255 458 225 80 58 1,156

  
(447) -- (148) (198) (135) (1,161)
239 -- 38 -- -- 1,167

1,050 2,273 4,564 4,059 196 23,080

1,200 293 5,313 -- -- 9,624
407 -- -- -- -- 4,615

4,634 4,007 6,593 3,408 -- 19,280
-- -- -- -- -- 862

485 -- -- -- -- 4,042
-- -- -- -- 355 987

1,773 826 118 -- -- 3,636

211 379 186 66 48 956
9 16 8 3 2 41

-- -- -- -- -- 4,160
-- -- -- -- -- 4,428

8,719 5,521 12,218 3,477 405 52,631

(7,669) (3,248) (7,654) 582 (209) (29,551)

153 -- -- -- 11,833
(2,731) -- -- (204) -- (3,636)

825 -- -- -- -- 825
(1,753) -- -- (204) -- 9,022

(9,422) (3,248) (7,654) 378 (209) (20,529)

30,905 60,805 12,206 8,981 6,666 139,031
-- -- -- -- -- -- 

30,905 60,805 12,206 8,981 6,666 139,031
21,483 $                 57,557 $                4,552 $              9,359 $              6,457 $               118,502 $      

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

(in thousands)

Capital Projects Funds

      REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF 
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NONMAJOR FUNDS 

 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS  

 

StarMetro  Accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City’s 
public transit system.  

 
Solid Waste  Accounts for the assets, operation, and maintenance of the 

City-owned solid waste operation. 
 
Golf  Accounts for the operations of the City’s eighteen-hole 

Hilaman Park Golf Course. 
 
Fire Services Used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City-

owned fire services department.   
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StarMetro Solid Waste Golf Fire Services Total
 

ASSETS
Current Assets

 Cash and Cash Equivalents............................................ 8 $                   6,280 $            259 $               -- $                   6,547 $             
 Securities Lending Collateral......................................... 1 1,131 61 -- 1,193
 Receivables:  

    Accrued Interest....................................................... -- 67 4 -- 71
    Customers and Others.............................................. 812 1,175 -- 1,079 3,066
    Due From Other Governments................................. 871 -- -- -- 871
    Less:  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts................. (1) (521) -- (8) (530)

 Inventory........................................................................ 568 -- 30 -- 598
 Total Current Assets............................................. 2,259 8,132 354 1,071 11,816

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets

Land and Construction in Progress.............................. 6,477 2,280 144 1,498 10,399
Other, Net of Accumulated Depreciation..................... 21,688 125 1,831 13,452 37,096

    Total Noncurrent Assets.................................... 28,165 2,405 1,975 14,950 47,495
    Total Assets......................................................... 30,424 $          10,537 $          2,329 $            16,021 $          59,311 $           

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable............................................................ 1,067 $            1,193 $            36 $                 1,605 $            3,901 $             
Due to Other Funds......................................................... 8 -- 1 -- 9
Compensated Absences................................................... 519 301 40 1,713 2,573
Obligations Under Securities Lending............................ 1 1,131 61 -- 1,193
Loan Payable - Current.................................................... -- -- -- 346 346

Total Current Liabilities........................................ 1,595 2,625 138 3,664 8,022

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Loans Payable................................................................. -- -- -- 2,469 2,469
Advances from Other Funds............................................ -- -- -- -- -- 
Net OPEB Obligation...................................................... 175 106 11 765 1,057
Compensated Absences................................................... 78 272 26 522 898

Total Noncurrent Liabilities.................................. 253 378 37 3,756 4,424
Total Liabilities...................................................... 1,848 3,003 175 7,420 12,446

Net Assets
    Investment in Capital Assets, net of related debt............ 28,165 2,405 1,975 12,135 44,680
    Unrestricted..................................................................... 411 5,129 179 (3,534) 2,185

Total Net Assets...................................................... 28,576 7,534 2,154 8,601 46,865
Total Liabilities and Net Assets............................. 30,424 $          10,537 $          2,329 $            16,021 $          59,311 $           

(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
September 30, 2008
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StarMetro Solid Waste Golf Course Fire Services Total

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:

Residential Sales................................................................... -- $                 8,625 $             -- $                    9,094 $                17,719 $         
Commercial and Industrial Sales.......................................... -- 10,216 -- 7,645 17,861
County Government.............................................................. -- -- -- 6,771 6,771
Recyclable Sales................................................................... -- 899 -- -- 899
Recreation Fees..................................................................... -- -- 936 -- 936
Transportation Fees.............................................................. 4,258 -- -- -- 4,258
Other..................................................................................... -- 6 -- 452 458

Total Operating Revenues................................................. 4,258 19,746 936 23,962 48,902
Operating Expenses:

Personnel Services.................................................................... 8,959 5,004 604 20,341 34,908
Contractual Services................................................................. 4,873 14,582 196 5,771 25,422
Materials and Supplies............................................................. 3,181 77 185 367 3,810
Other Expenses......................................................................... 127 254 110 189 680
Depreciation............................................................................. 1,243 33 165 714 2,155

Total Operating Expenses................................................. 18,383 19,950 1,260 27,382 66,975
Operating Income (Loss).................................................. (14,125) (204) (324) (3,420) (18,073)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Net Investment Earnings........................................................... -- 243 4 -- 247
Net Decrease in the Fair Value of Investments......................... -- (131) (7) -- (138)
Securities Lending:

Income.................................................................................. -- 58 -- -- 58
Interest.................................................................................. -- (48) -- -- (48)
Agent Fees............................................................................ -- (2) -- -- (2)

Grant Revenues........................................................................ 3,407 -- -- -- 3,407
Interest Expense........................................................................ -- -- (1) (174) (175)

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)...................... 3,407 120 (4) (174) 3,349
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions
 and Operating Transfers................................................... (10,718) (84) (328) (3,594) (14,724)

 Operating Transfers:
Capital Contributions............................................................... 3,206 -- -- -- 3,206
Transfers In.............................................................................. 8,724 -- 171 2,530 11,425
Transfers Out............................................................................ (23) (139) (18) (187) (367)

Total Operating Transfers................................................. 11,907 (139) 153 2,343 14,264
Change in Net Assets................................................................... 1,189 (223) (175) (1,251) (460)
Net Assets - October 1................................................................. 24,705 7,757 1,609 9,852 43,923
Adjustment to Beginning Net Assets............................................ 2,682 -- 720 -- 3,402
Net Assets - October 1, as restated............................................... 27,387 7,757 2,329 9,852 47,325
Net Assets - September 30........................................................... 28,576 $        7,534 $             2,154 $             8,601 $                46,865 $         

(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
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StarMetro Solid Waste Golf Fire Services Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Cash Received from Customers............................................................... 4,220 $             19,746 $         936 $              23,910 $         48,812 $         
  Cash Received from Other Revenues....................................................... -- -- -- -- -- 
  Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services....................................... (7,189) (10,438) (481) (1,509) (19,617)
  Cash Paid to Employees for Services....................................................... (8,716) (4,875) (593) (19,428) (33,612)
  Cash Paid to Other Funds........................................................................ (1,819) (4,461) (15) (4,673) (10,968)
  Cash Paid for Other Expenses.................................................................. -- -- -- -- -- 
    Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities.......................... (13,504) (28) (153) (1,700) (15,385)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Transfers In from Other Funds................................................................. 8,724 -- 171 2,530 11,425
  Transfers Out to Other Funds................................................................... (23) (139) (18) (187) (367)
  Operating Grants Received...................................................................... 4,172 -- -- -- 4,172
    Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities........ 12,873 (139) 153 2,343 15,230

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Capital Grants Received.......................................................................... 2,662 -- -- -- 2,662
  Proceeds from Sale of Property......................................................... -- -- -- -- -- 
  Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets...................................... (2,042) (185) 6 (469) (2,690)
  Repayment of Loans from Other Funds................................................... -- -- (20) -- (20)
  Interest Paid............................................................................................. -- -- (1) (174) (175)
  Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital  
    and Related Financing Activities........................................................... 620 (185) (15) (643) (223)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Interest Received on Investments............................................................. -- 251 3 -- 254
  Increase in the Fair Value of Cash and Cash Equivalents........................ -- (131) (7) -- (138)
    Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities........................... -- 120 (4) -- 116
  Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents/Investments......................... (11) (232) (19) -- (262)
  Cash and Cash Equivalents - October 1................................................... 19 6,512 278 -- 6,809
  Cash and Cash Equivalents - September 30............................................. 8 $                    6,280 $           259 $              -- $                  6,547 $           
Classified As:
  Unrestricted Assets.................................................................................. 8 $                    6,280 $           259 $              -- $                  6,547 $           

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
  to Net Cash Provided by (Used for)
  Operating Activities:
Operating Loss........................................................................................... ( 14,125)$         ( 204)$            ( 324)$            ( 3,420)$         ( 18,073)$       
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
  Depreciation............................................................................................. 1,243 33 165 714 2,155
  Provision for Uncollectible Accounts...................................................... 1 39 -- (55) (15)
  Net OPEB Obligation.............................................................................. 175 106 11 765 1,057
  Increase in Accounts Receivable............................................................. (39) -- (1) (52) (92)
  (Increase) Decrease in Inventory.............................................................. (53) -- 2 -- (51)
  Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable................................................ (774) (21) (6) 213 (588)
  Increase in Accrued Leave....................................................................... 68 19 -- 135 222
  Total Adjustments.................................................................................... 621 176 171 1,720 2,688
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating 
  Activities................................................................................................. ( 13,504)$         ( 28)$              ( 153)$            ( 1,700)$         ( 15,385)$       

(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008
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  INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS  
 
 
800 MHz         Supports the 800 MHz Radio Communications unit within the Information 
Communications  System Services.  Revenues for the fund are derived from Leon County 

Sheriff’s Office per agreement, and rentals from other users.  The remaining 
cost is allocated to user departments.  The allocation is based on the number 
of 800 MHz devices per department. 

 
Information  Accounts for the costs of the City’s data processing operations. 
Systems Services   
 
Accounting  Accounts for the costs of the City’s accounting operations. 
 
Central Warehouse  Accounts for the costs of the City’s central warehouse operations. 
 
Garage  Accounts for the costs of maintaining and operating the City’s fleet 

management operation.  
 
Human Resources  Accounts for the costs of the City’s employee relations operations.  
 
Pension Accounts for the costs of the City’s employee retirement plan’s administrative 
Administration  operation. 
  
Risk Management  Accounts for the costs of the City’s risk management. 
  
Internal Loan  Accounts for the loans received from the Sunshine State Governmental 

Financing Commission, which in turn are loaned to other funds to provide 
financing for capital projects. 

 
Revenue Collection Accounts for the costs of the City’s revenue collection services. 
  
Utility Services Accounts for the costs of centralizing safety and training, environmental, GIS, 

sales, rate design, and marketing functions of the City’s utilities. 
 
Wholesale  Accounts for the costs of the purchase of power and fuel for the City’s electric 
Energy Services  and gas utilities and off-system sales and services of power and natural gas to 

other utilities and open market participants. 
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800 Mhz

Information 
Systems 
Services  Accounting 

Central 
Warehouse Garage  

Human 
Resources

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents.................................. 1,269 $         6,968 $           336 $               -- $                 14,995 $       656 $             
Securities Lending Collateral............................... 228 1,255 60 -- 2,725 118
Receivables:

Other................................................................. 1 12 -- -- 116 -- 
Accrued Interest................................................ 14 75 4 -- 162 6

Inventory ............................................................. -- -- -- 9,196 744 -- 
Prepaid Expenses................................................. -- -- -- -- -- -- 
Due from Other Funds.......................................... -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Total Current Assets....................................... 1,512 8,310 400 9,196 18,742 780

Noncurrent Assets
Advances to Other Funds..................................... -- -- -- -- -- -- 
Capital Assets

Land and Construction in Progress................... 409 3,785 -- 44 3 -- 
Other, Net of Accumulated Depreciation.......... 7,561 2,371 558 971 28,327 10

7,970 6,156 558 1,015 28,330 10

Total Assets..................................................... 9,482 $         14,466 $         958 $              10,211 $         47,072 $       790 $             

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Obligations Under Securities Lending................. 228 $            1,255 $           60 $                 -- $                 2,725 $         118 $             
Accounts Payable................................................. 17 868 99 1,607 716 137
Due to Other Funds.............................................. -- -- -- 2,000 -- -- 
Unearned Revenue............................................... 83 -- -- -- -- 
Compensated Absences........................................ 3 496 181 158 232 208

Total Current Liabilities................................ 331 2,619 340 3,765 3,673 463

Noncurrent Liabilities
Advances from Other Funds................................. -- 985 -- -- -- -- 
Loans Payable...................................................... -- -- -- -- -- -- 
Claims Payable..................................................... -- -- -- -- -- -- 
Net OPEB Obligation........................................... 3 145 54 52 78 57
Compensated Absences........................................ -- 265 58 39 114 65

Total Noncurrent Liabilities........................... 3 1,395 112 91 192 122

Total Liabilities............................................... 334 4,014 452 3,856 3,865 585

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt........ 7,970 6,156 558 1,015 28,330 10
Unrestricted.......................................................... 1,178 4,296 (52) 5,340 14,877 195

Total Net Assets............................................... 9,148 10,452 506 6,355 43,207 205

Total Liabilities and Net Assets..................... 9,482 $         14,466 $         958 $              10,211 $         47,072 $       790 $             

(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Internal Service Funds
September 30, 2008
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Pension 
Administration

Risk 
Management

Internal 
Loan

Revenue 
Collection

Utility 
Services

Wholesale 
Energy 
Services Total

123 $                     15,784 $            12,589 $       216 $            1,414 $         26 $              54,376 $       
22 2,857 2,283 39 255 5 9,847

2 185 -- 8 1 2,025 2,350
1 169 133 2 15 -- 581
-- -- -- -- -- 988 10,928
-- 1,382 -- -- -- 50,613 51,995
-- -- -- 62 -- -- 62

148 20,377 15,005 327 1,685 53,657 130,139

-- -- 12,605 -- -- -- 12,605
 

-- -- -- -- -- -- 4,241
4 6 -- 3,356 180 12 43,356
4 6 12,605 3,356 180 12 60,202

152 $                     20,383 $            27,610 $       3,683 $         1,865 $         53,669 $       190,341 $     

22 $                       2,857 $              2,283 $         39 $              255 $            5 $                9,847 $         
37 237 -- 66 350 44,571 48,705
-- -- -- -- -- 9,040 11,040
-- -- -- -- -- -- 83

41 72 -- 101 477 147 2,116
100 3,166 2,283 206 1,082 53,763 71,791

-- -- -- -- 921 -- 1,906
-- -- 21,700 -- -- -- 21,700
-- 9,454 -- -- -- -- 9,454

12 26 -- 31 191 45 694
46 10 -- 58 315 69 1,039
58 9,490 21,700 89 1,427 114 34,793

158 12,656 23,983 295 2,509 53,877 106,584

4 6 -- 3,356 180 12 47,597
(10) 7,721 3,627 32 (824) (220) 36,160

(6) 7,727 3,627 3,388 (644) (208) 83,757

152 $                     20,383 $            27,610 $       3,683 $         1,865 $         53,669 $       190,341 $     

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Internal Service Funds
September 30, 2008

(in thousands)
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800Mhz

Information 
S ystems 
S ervices  Accounting 

C entral  
Ware house Garage   

O p erat ing Revenues:
  Charges for Service....................................................... 1,149 $         15,657 $         3,288 $          2,589 $           17,017 $       
  Total Operating Revenues............................................ 1,149 15,657 3,288 2,589 17,017

O p erat ing Exp enses:
  Personnel Services........................................................ 111 6,291 2,461 2,260 3,470
  Contractual Services..................................................... 1,021 5,365 768 300 2,286
  Materials and Supplies................................................. 1 87 9 53 8,082
  Other Expenses............................................................ 6 1,039 13 56 36
  Depreciation................................................................. 484 1,007 252 57 5,753
  Total Operating Expenses ........................................... 1,623 13,789 3,503 2,726 19,627
  Operating Income (Loss).............................................. (474) 1,868 (215) (137) (2,610)

N on-O p erat ing Revenues (Exp enses):
  Net Investment Earnings.............................................. 37 232 12 24 468
  Net Decrease in the Fair Value of Investments............ (26) (146) (7) -- (316)
  Securit ies Lending:

Income.................................................................... 7 58 -- 7 152
Interest Expense..................................................... (6) (48) -- (6) (126)
Agent Fees.............................................................. -- (2) -- -- (5)

  Other Revenue.............................................................. -- -- -- -- -- 
  Gain (Loss) on the sale of surplus property................ -- -- -- -- -- 
  Interest Expense........................................................... -- (69) -- -- -- 
  Other Revenue (Expense)............................................. -- 23 -- (84) (6)
  Total Non-Operating Revenues................................... 12 48 5 (59) 167

Income (Loss) Before Cap ital Contribut ions
   and Transfers............................................................... (462) 1,916 (210) (196) (2,443)
 
T ransfers
  Transfers In.................................................................. -- -- -- -- -- 
  Transfers Out............................................................... -- -- (100) (8) (17)
  Total Transfers............................................................. -- -- (100) (8) (17)

Change in Net Assets..................................................... (462) 1,916 (310) (204) (2,460)

Net Assets - October 1.................................................. 9,610 8,536 816 6,559 39,260
Adjustment to beginning fund balance........................... -- -- -- -- 6,407
Net Assets - October 1, as restated............................... 9,610 8,536 816 6,559 45,667
Net Assets - September 30............................................ 9,148 $         10,452 $         506 $             6,355 $           43,207 $       

(in  thousands)

C ITY O F TALLAHAS S EE, FLO RID A
C O MBIN IN G S TATEMEN T O F REVEN UES , EXPEN S ES , AN D  C HAN GES  IN  FUN D  N ET AS S ETS

Internal  S e rvice  Funds
For the  fiscal  year ended S eptembe r 30, 2008
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Human 
Resources

Pension 
Administration

Risk 
Management

Internal 
Loan

Revenue 
Collection

Utility 
Services

Wholesale 
Energy 
Services Total

3,765 $          851 $                      9,675 $              -- $                2,082 $                  13,389 $        276,963 $      346,425 $      
3,765 851 9,675 -- 2,082 13,389 276,963 346,425

2,473 549 1,052 -- 1,478 8,850 1,883 30,878
976 298 234 -- 199 3,017 275,621 290,085

21 12 17 -- 225 516 11 9,034
226 11 7,943 -- 18 180 21 9,549

5 2 5 -- 676 51 6 8,298
3,701 872 9,251 -- 2,596 12,614 277,542 347,844

64 (21) 424 -- (514) 775 (579) (1,419)

20 6 488 1,054 13 47 172 2,573
(14) (3) (331) (265) (5) (30) (1) (1,144)

7 -- 145 284 -- 15 44 719
(6) -- (120) (235) -- (12) (36) (595)
-- -- (5) (10) -- (1) (2) (25)
-- -- -- -- -- 35 -- 35
-- -- -- -- (15) -- -- (15)
-- -- -- (1,124) -- (61) -- (1,254)
-- -- -- -- -- -- -- (67)
7 3 177 (296) (7) (7) 177 227

71 (18) 601 (296) (521) 768 (402) (1,192)

65 -- -- -- 2 -- -- 67
(119) -- -- -- (218) (412) (55) (929)

(54) -- -- -- (216) (412) (55) (862)

17 (18) 601 (296) (737) 356 (457) (2,054)

188 12 7,126 3,923 4,125 (1,000) 249 79,404
-- -- -- -- -- -- -- 6,407

188 12 7,126 3,923 4,125 (1,000) 249 85,811
205 $             ( 6)$                         7,727 $               3,627 $          3,388 $                  ( 644)$           ( 208)$          83,757 $        

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Internal Service Funds
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

(in thousands)
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800 MHz

Information 
System 
Services Accounting

Central 
Warehouse Garage  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Cash Received from Other Funds............................................. 1,176 $         15,670 $           3,287 $            2,595 $             17,011 $      
  Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services........................ (1,042) (6,841) (809) (1,007) (10,004)
  Cash Paid to Employees for Services....................................... (107) (6,159) (2,385) (2,223) (3,392)
  Cash Paid to Other Funds......................................................... -- -- -- -- -- 
    Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities.......... 27 2,670 93 (635) 3,615

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
    Transfers from Other Funds................................................... -- -- -- -- -- 
    Transfers to Other Funds........................................................ -- -- (100) (8) (17)
  Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used for)
    Noncapital Financing Activities............................................. -- -- (100) (8) (17)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Proceeds from sale of properties.............................................. -- -- -- -- -- 
  Loan Proceeds.......................................................................... -- 383 -- -- -- 
  Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets....................... -- (1,420) -- (84) (5,423)
  Repayment of Loans to Other Funds........................................ -- (1,015) -- -- -- 
  Interest Paid............................................................................. -- (69) -- -- -- 
  Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Capital and
    Related Financing Activities.................................................. -- (2,121) -- (84) (5,423)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Interest Received on Investments............................................. 38 240 12 25 489
  Increase in the Fair Value of Cash & Cash Equivalents........... (26) (146) (7) -- (316)
    Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities............ 12 94 5 25 173

  Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
    and Cash Equivalents............................................................. 39 643 (2) (702) (1,652)
    Cash and Cash Equivalents - October 1................................. 1,230 6,325 338 702 16,647
    Cash and Cash Equivalents - September 30........................... 1,269 $         6,968 $             336 $               -- $                   14,995 $      

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss)............................................................ ( 474)$         1,868 $             ( 215)$            ( 137)$             ( 2,610)$      
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
  Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
    Depreciation........................................................................... 484 1,007 252 57 5,753
     Net OPEB Obligation............................................................ 3 145 54 52 78
    (Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable.......................... 31 35  -- -- 17
    Increase (Decrease) in Other Accounts Receivable................ (4) (22) (1) 6 (23)
    Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds............................ -- -- -- -- -- 
    Increase in Loans to Other Funds........................................... -- -- -- -- -- 
    (Increase) Decrease in Inventory............................................ -- -- -- (1,503) 149
    Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable............................... (14) (350) (19) 905 251
    Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave................................... 1 (13) 22 (15) -- 
   Decrease in Insurance Deposits............................................... -- -- -- -- -- 
          Total Adjustments............................................................ 501 802 308 (498) 6,225
   Net Cash Provided by (Used For)
     Operating Activities............................................................ 27 $              2,670 $             93 $                 ( 635)$             3,615 $        

(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008
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Human 
Resources

Pension 
Administration

Risk 
M anagement

Internal 
Loan

Revenue 
Collection

Utility 
Services

W holesale 
Energy 
Services Total

3,763 $            849 $                       9,444 $                4,261 $         2,082 $          13,385 $       236,304 $           309,827 $        
(1,243) (309) (7,503) -- (677) (3,485) (249,086) (282,006)
(2,417) (536) (1,022) -- (1,430) (8,549) (1,816) (30,036)

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
103 4 919 4,261 (25) 1,351 (14,598) (2,215)

65 -- -- -- 2 -- -- 67
(119) -- -- -- (218) (412) (55) (929)

(54) -- -- -- (216) (412) (55) (862)

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
-- -- -- -- -- 24 -- 407

(2) -- (1) -- -- (39) -- (6,969)
-- -- -- -- -- (478) (166) (1,659)
-- -- -- (1,124) -- (61) -- (1,254)

(2) -- (1) (1,124) -- (554) (166) (9,475)
-- 

21 6 508 1,093 13 49 178 2,672
(14) (3) (331) (265) (5) (30) (1) (1,144)

7 3 177 828 8 19 177 1,528

54 7 1,095 3,965 (233) 404 (14,642) (11,024)
602 116 14,689 8,624 449 1,010 14,668 65,400
656 $               123 $                       15,784 $              12,589 $       216 $             1,414 $         26 $                    54,376 $          

64 $                 ( 21)$                      424 $                   -- $               ( 514)$          775 $            ( 579)$               ( 1,419)$          

5 2 5 -- 676 51 6 8,298
57 12 26 -- 31 191 45 694
-- (2) (184)  -- -- 3 625 525

(2) -- (47) (63) 2 (7) 123 (38)
-- -- -- -- -- -- (41,407) (41,407)
-- -- -- 4,324 -- -- -- 4,324
-- -- -- -- -- -- 651 (703)

(20) 12 533 -- (237) 228 25,916 27,205
(1) 1 4 -- 17 110 22 148
-- -- 158 -- -- -- -- 158

39 25 495 4,261 489 576 (14,019) (796)

103 $               4 $                           919 $                   4,261 $         ( 25)$            1,351 $         ( 14,598)$          ( 2,215)$          

(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
COM BINING STATEM ENT OF CASH FLOWS

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
USED IN THE OPERATION 

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

Schedule By Function and Activity 

Schedule of Changes By Function and Activity 
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C APITAL AS S ETS  US ED  IN  THE O PERATIO N  O F GO VERN M EN TAL FUN D S
S ch e du le  of C h an ge s By Fu n ction  an d Activi ty1

For th e  fi scal  ye ar e n de d S e pte m be r 30, 2008

(am ou n ts e xpre sse d in  th ou san ds)

G overnmental F unds 
Cap ital A sset s        

O ctober 1, 2007 
(A s Restat ed) A ddit ions D educt ions

G overnmental F unds 
Cap ital A sset s  

Sep tember 30, 2008

F unct ion and A ct ivity

G eneral G overnment :

Legis lat ive 46$                            2$                     -$                       48$                             

Execut ive 130                            -                        2                        128                             

F inancial &  A dminist rat ive 1,470                         14                     15                      1,469                          

Legal 47                              -                        -                         47                               

Comp rehens ive P lanning 628                            2                       29                      601                             

O ther G eneral G overnment 87,439                       803                   1,029                 87,213                        

T otal G eneral G overnment 89,760                       821                   1,075                 89,506                        

P ublic Safety :

Law  Enforcement 19,320                       1,284                536                    20,068                        

P rotect ive Insp ect ion 135                            -                        1                        134                             

T otal P ublic Safety 19,455                       1,284                537                    20,202                        

O ther:

P hy s ical Environment 623                            -                        205                    418                             

Road and St reet  F acilit ies 1,006,969                  3,566                797                    1,009,738                   

Economic D evelop ment 9,749                         443                   3                        10,189                        

H uman Services 8,271                         63                     12                      8,322                          

Cultural and Recreat ion 37,452                       356                   77                      37,731                        

P arking F acilit ies 24,510                       -                        -                         24,510                        

T otal O ther: 1,087,574                  4,428                1,094                 1,090,908                   

T otal cap ital asset s  allocated

to funct ions 1,196,789                  6,533                2,706                 1,200,616                   

Const ruct ion in P rogress 35,987                       25,308              6,817                 54,478                        

T otal cap ital asset s 1,232,776$                31,841$            9,523$               1,255,094$                 

1 T his  schedule p resent s  only  the cap it al asset  balances relat ed to governmental funds .  A ccordingly , the cap ital

asset s  rep ort ed in internal service funds are excluded from the above amount s .  G enerally , t he cap it al asset s  of

internal service funds are included as  governmental act ivit ies  in the st at ement  of net  asset s .

C ITY O F TALLAHAS S EE, FLO RID A
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

The following schedules provide a summary of the debt service 
requirements for the City’s outstanding bond issue: 

 
 Capital Bonds, Series 2001 

Capital Bonds, Series 2004     

 Electric Energy System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A  

 Electric Energy System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998B  

 Energy System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 

 Energy System Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 

 Energy System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 

 Consolidated Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 

 Consolidated Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2005   

 Consolidated Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007  

 Airport System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
CAPITAL BONDS
SERIES 2001
September 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Fis cal 
Year 

Ending     Principal      Interes t         Total      

2009 1,660$               217$                   1,877$               
2010 1,720 155 1,875
2011 1,790 89 1,879

 Totals  5,170$               461$                   5,631$               

Bonds  Dated:  October 15, 2001
Original Iss ue Am ount:  $15,360,000
Principal Due:  October 1, beginning 2002
Interes t Due:  April 1 and October 1 of each year, beginning April 1, 2002
Paying Agent:  Firs t Union National Bank of Florida, Jacks onville, Florida
 

Security: The Series  2001 Bonds  will be payable s olely from  and s ecured as  to paym ent of principal
and redem ption price thereof, and interes t thereon, in accordance with their term s  and the provis ions
of Res olution No. 01-R-48  (the "Original Res olution"),s olely by a pledge of and lien on the  Pledged
Revenues  which cons is t of (a) the City's   Guaranteed Entitlem ent Revenues ; (b) the City's  receipts
from  the  Local Governm ent Half-Cent Sales  Tax; and (c) earnings  on the inves tm ent of all funds  and 
accounts  created by the Resolution, except the Rebate Fund; all as  des cribed in the Res olution and 
s ubject to the provis ions  of the Resolution perm itting the application thereof for the purpos es  of and 
on the term s  and conditions  s et forth therein.  
 

Optional Redem ption 
 None 
 
Bond Ratings : Moody's  Aaa, Standard & Poor's  AAA, Fitch AAA
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C ITY OF TALLAH ASSEE, FLOR ID A
SUM M ARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
CAPITAL BONDS
SERIES 2004
Septem ber 30 , 2008
(in thousands)

Fis ca l
Year 

End ing      Principa l      In te res t         To ta l      

2009 2 ,115$               3 ,680$                5 ,795$                
2010 2 ,185 3 ,616 5,801
2011 2 ,245 3 ,551 5,796
2012 4 ,195 3 ,480 7,675
2013 4 ,330 3 ,344 7,674
2014 4 ,535 3 ,140 7,675
2015 4 ,760 2 ,913 7,673
2016 5 ,000 2 ,730 7,730
2017 5 ,195 2 ,480 7,675
2018 5 ,455 2 ,220 7,675

2019  - 2024 38 ,950 7 ,094 46,044
 

Tota ls 78 ,965$              38 ,248$              117,213$            

  
Bonds  D a ted :  N ovem ber 17 , 2004
Orig ina l Is s ue  Am oun t:  $86 ,210 ,000
Principa l D ue:  Octobe r 1 , beg inn ing  2005
In teres t D ue :  Ap ril 1  and  Octobe r 1  o f each year, beg inn ing 2005
Paying  Agen t:   Wachovia  Bank, N a tioan l As s ocia tion , Jacks onville , Florida

Security:  The Series  2004  Bonds  w ill be  payab le  s o le ly from  and s ecured  as  to  paym ent
o f p rincipa l and redem ption  price  the reo f, and  in te res t the reon , in  accordance  w ith  the ir te rm s  
and the p rovis ions  o f R es o lu tion  N o . 01 -R -48 , as  s upp lem en ted and am ended  and  as
particu la rly s upp lem en ted  and  am ended by R es o lu tion  N o. 04-R -44 .  They are  s ecu red
by a  p ledge o f and  lien  on (i) the  C ity's  rece ip ts  from  the  Loca l Governm en t H a lf - C en t Sa les  
tax; (ii) the  C ity's  Guaran teed  En titlem en t R evenues ; (i ii) the  p roceeds  from  the C ity's  Loca l 
C om m unica tions  Services  Tax; and  (iv) ea rn ings  on  the  inves tm ent  o f a ll funds  and  accoun ts
crea ted under the  res o lu tion .

Op tiona l R edem ption
N one

Bond  R a tings : Moody's  Aaa,  Fitch  AAA
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C IT Y OF  T AL L AH AS S E E , F L OR ID A
SUM M ARY OF DEBT S ERVICE REQUIREM ENTS
ELECTRIC ENERGY SYSTEM  REFUNDING REV ENUE BONDS
SERIES 1 9 9 8 A
Se pte m be r 3 0 , 2 0 0 8
(in thous a nds )

Fis ca l
Ye a r    P rin cip a l      In te re s t         To ta l      

2 0 0 9 3 ,9 0 5$                6 ,2 2 4$                1 0 ,1 2 9$              
2 0 1 0 4 ,0 6 0 6 ,0 6 3 1 0 ,1 2 3
2 0 1 1 4 ,2 7 0 5 ,8 6 0 1 0 ,1 3 0
2 0 1 2 4 ,4 9 5 5 ,6 3 5 1 0 ,1 3 0
2 0 1 3 4 ,7 3 0 5 ,4 0 0 1 0 ,1 3 0
2 0 1 4 4 ,9 8 0 5 ,1 5 1 1 0 ,1 3 1
2 0 1 5 5 ,2 4 0 4 ,8 9 0 1 0 ,1 3 0
2 0 1 6 5 ,5 1 0 4 ,6 1 5 1 0 ,1 2 5
2 0 1 7 5 ,7 8 0 4 ,3 5 3 1 0 ,1 3 3
2 0 1 8 6 ,0 4 5 4 ,0 7 9 1 0 ,1 2 4

2 0 1 9 -2 0 2 8 7 8 ,8 3 0 2 2 ,4 7 3 1 0 1 ,3 0 3

 To ta ls  1 2 7 ,8 4 5$            7 4 ,7 4 3$              2 0 2 ,5 8 8$            

Bo n d s  D a te d :  N o ve m b e r 1 , 1 9 9 8
Orig in a l Is s u e  Am o u n t:  $ 1 4 3 ,8 0 0 ,0 0 0
Prin cip a l D u e :  Octo b e r 1 , b e g in n in g  2 0 0 0
In te re s t D u e :  Ap ril  1  a n d  Octo b e r 1  o f e a ch  ye a r, b e g in n in g  Ap ri l 1 , 1 9 9 9
Pa yin g  Ag e n t:  Firs t U n io n  N a tio n a l B a n k o f Flo rid a , Ja cks o n ville , Flo rid a

Se cu rity: Th e  Se rie s  1 9 9 8  B o n d s  w ill  b e  p a ya b le  s o le ly fro m  a n d  s e cu re d  a s  to  p a ym e n t o f 
p rin cip a l a n d  re d e m p tio n  p rice  th e re o f, a n d  in te re s t th e re o n , in  a cco rd a n ce  w ith  th e ir te rm s  a n d  
th e  p ro vis io n s  o f th e  1 9 9 2  Ge n e ra l R e s o lu tio n  a n d  s u b s e q u e n tly b y th e  te rm s  a n d  p ro vis io n s  o f 
th e  1 9 9 8  Ge n e ra l R e s o lu tio n , b o th  a s  d e fin e d  h e re in  a n d  in  th e  m a n n e r  d e s crib e d  h e re in , s o le ly 
b y a  p le d g e  a n d  a s s ig n m e n t o f (i) m o n e y in  ce rta in  o f th e  fu n d s  a n d  a cco u n ts  e s ta b lis h e d  u n d e r 
th e  R e s o lu tio n s , (i i) th e  N e t R e ve n u e s  o f th e  C ity's  E le ctric Sys te m , a n d  (i ii) ce rta in  o th e r a m o u n ts , 
s u b je ct to  th e   p ro vis io n s  o f th e  R e s o lu tio n s  p e rm ittin g  th e  a p p lica tio n  th e re o f fo r th e  p u rp o s e s  o f 
a n d  o n  th e  te rm s  a n d  co n d itio n s  s e t fo rth  in  th e  R e s o lu tio n s .

Op tio n a l R e d e m p tio n  R e d e m p tio n  P rice
Octo b e r 1 , 2 0 0 8  to  S e p te m b e r 3 0 , 2 0 0 9 On e  H u n d re d  a n d  On e  P e rce n t
Octo b e r 1 , 2 0 0 9  a n d  th e re a fte r On e  H u n d re d  P e rce n t

Bo n d  R a tin g s :  Mo o d y's  Aa a , S ta n d a rd  a n d  Po o r's  AAA, Fitch  AAA
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
ELECTRIC ENERGY SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 1998B
Septem ber 30 , 2008
(in thousands)

Fis ca l
Year    Principa l      In teres t         To ta l      

2009 -- $                       1 ,210$               1 ,210$               
2010 -- 1 ,210 1,210
2011 -- 1 ,210 1,210
2012 -- 1 ,210 1,210
2013 -- 1 ,210 1,210
2014 -- 1 ,210 1,210
2015 -- 1 ,210 1,210
2016 -- 1 ,210 1,210
2017 -- 1 ,210 1,210
2018 -- 1 ,210 1,210

2019-2028 24,200 9,457 33,657

Tota ls 24 ,200$             21 ,557$             45,757$             

Bonds  Dated:  Novem ber 1, 1998
Orig ina l Is s ue Am ount:  $49,220,000
Principal Due:  October 1, 2001
Interes t D ue:  April 1  and October 1 o f each year, beg inn ing April 1 , 1999
Paying  Agent:  Firs t Union Nationa l Bank of Florida , Jacks onville , Flo rida

 
Security:  The Series  1998 Bonds  w ill be payable s ole ly from  and s ecured as  to  paym ent of principal 
and redem ption price  thereo f, and  in te res t thereon, in  accordance w ith  their te rm s  and the provis ions  
of the 1992 Genera l R es olution  and s ubs equently by the term s  and provis ions  of the  1998 General 
Res olu tion, bo th  as  defined herein and in  the m anner des cribed here in, s o le ly by a p ledge and 
as s ignm ent of (i) m oney in  certa in  o f the funds  and accounts  es tablis hed under the Res o lu tions ,
 (ii) the  Net Revenues  of the C ity's  Electric Sys tem , and (iii) certa in  o ther am ounts , s ubject to  the 
provis ions  o f the  Res olu tions  perm itting the  app lication  thereo f o f fo r the  purpos es  o f and on the  
term s  and conditions  s e t forth in  the  Res olu tions .

Optional Redem ption R edem ption Price
October 1 , 2008 to Septem ber 30 , 2009 One H undred and One Percent
October 1 , 2009 and thereafter One H undred Percent

 
Bond R ating :   Moody's  Aaa, Standard and Poor's  AAA, Fitch AAA
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
ENERGY SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2001
Septem ber 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Fis cal
Year    Principa l      In teres t         Tota l      

2009 940$                   601$                   1,541$               
2010 985 561 1,546
2011 1,030 517 1,547
2012 1,075 466 1,541
2013 1,140 407 1,547
2014 1,200 344 1,544
2015 1,000 278 1,278
2016 1,005 223 1,228
2017 1,060 168 1,228
2018 1,120 115 1,235
2019 1,175 59 1,234

Tota ls 11,730$             3 ,739$               15,469$             

Bonds  Dated:  May 1, 2001
Orig ina l Is s ue Am ount:  $17,680,000
Principa l Due:  October 1 , 2001
Interes t Due:  April 1  and October 1 of each year, beginning 2001

Optional Redem ption Redem ption Price
October 1 , 2011 to  Septem ber 30, 2012 One Hundred and One Percent
October 1 , 2012 and thereafter One Hundred Percent

 
Security:  The Series  2001Bonds  w ill be payable s o le ly from  and s ecured as  to paym ent o f principa l and 
redem ption price thereof, and in teres t thereon, in accordance w ith  the ir term s  and the provis ions  of the 
1998 Genera l Res olution and s ubs equently by the term s  and provis ions  of the 1998 Genera l Res olution, 
both as  defined herein and in  the m anner des cribed herein, s olely by a p ledge and as s ignm ent o f (i) m oney 
in certa in  o f the funds  and accounts  es tablis hed under the Res olutions , (ii) the Net Revenues  of the C ity's  
Energy Sys tem , and (iii) certa in  o ther am ounts , s ubject to  the provis ions  of the Res olutions  perm itting the 
application thereof o f for the purpos es  of and on the term s  and conditions  s et forth in  the Res olutions .

Bond Rating:   Moody's  Aaa, Standard and Poor's  AAA, Fitch AAA
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
ENERGY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2005
Septem ber 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Fis cal
Year    Principal      Interes t         Total      

2009 2,300$               6 ,020$               8 ,320$               
2010 2,515 5,940 8,455
2011 2,695 5,852 8,547
2012 2,715 5,733 8,448
2013 2,940 5,611 8,551
2014 3,065 5,480 8,545
2015 3,100 5,344 8,444
2016 3,325 5,220 8,545
2017 3,490 5,057 8,547
2018 3,655 4,891 8,546

2019 - 2035 96,770 48,517 145,287

Tota ls 126,570$           103,665$           230,235$           

Bonds  Dated:  Decem ber 8 , 2005
Orig ina l Is s ue Am ount:  $128,920,000
Principal Due:  October 1 , 2008
Interes t Due:  April 1  and October 1 o f each year, beg inning 2006

Optional Redem ption Redem ption Price
October 1 , 2015 and thereafter One Hundred and accrued interes t
  

 
Security:  The Series  2005 Bonds  w ill be payable s olely from  and s ecured as  to paym ent of principal and 
redem ption price thereof, and in teres t thereon, in accordance w ith  their term s  and the provis ions  o f the 
1998 General Res olution and s ubs equently by the term s  and provis ions  of the 1998 General Res olu tion, 
both  as  defined here in  and in  the m anner des cribed here in , s olely by a  p ledge and as s ignm ent of (i) m oney 
in certa in  of the funds  and accounts  es tablis hed under the Res olu tions , (ii) the Net Revenues  of the C ity's  
Energy Sys tem , and (iii) certain other am ounts , s ubject to  the provis ions  of the Res olutions  perm itting the 
application thereof o f for the purpos es  of and on the term s  and conditions  s et forth  in  the Res olu tions .

Bond Rating:   Moody's  Aaa, Standard and Poor's  AAA, Fitch AAA
 



- 122 -

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
ENERGY SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2007
Septem ber 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Fis cal
Year    Principal      Interes t         Total      

2009 2,490$               9,996$               12,486$             
2010 2,465 9,896 12,361
2011 2,470 9,798 12,268
2012 2,690 9,674 12,364
2013 2,725 9,540 12,265
2014 2,865 9,403 12,268
2015 3,100 9,260 12,360
2016 3,165 9,105 12,270
2017 3,315 8,947 12,262
2018 3,485 8,781 12,266

2019 - 2037 172,205 115,404 287,609

Totals 200,975$           209,804$           410,779$           

Bonds  Dated:  Augus t 9, 2007
Original Is s ue Am ount:  $203,230,000
Principal Due:  October 1, 2008
Interes t Due:  April 1 and October 1 of each year, beginning 2008

 
Security:  The Series  2007 Bonds  w ill be payable from  and s ecured by a pledge and le in 
on (I) m oney in certa in funds  and accounts  es tablis hed under Res olution No. 98-R-0048 
of the C ity, as  am ended and s upplem ented (the "Res olution"),  (ii) the Net Revenues  of the 
City's  Energy Sys tem , and (iii) the proceeds  of the s ale of any Series  of Bonds , s ubject to 
application as  provided in the Res olutions . The Series  2007 Bonds  will be s ecured by the 
Net Revenues  on a parity w ith the Parity Bonds .
 
 

Bond Rating:   Moody's  Aaa, Standard and Poor's  AAA, Fitch AAA
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C ITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2001
Septem ber 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Fis ca l
Year 

Ending     Principa l      In teres t         Tota l      

2009 1,040$               890$                   1 ,930$               
2010 1,090 837 1,927
2011 1,140 783 1,923
2012 1,195 732 1,927
2013 1,260 666 1,926
2014 1,330 597 1,927
2015 1,710 524 2,234
2016 1,800 429 2,229
2017 1,900 330 2,230
2018 2,000 226 2,226
2019 2,110 116 2,226

Tota ls 16,575$             6 ,130$               22,705$             

Bonds  D ated:  May 1, 2001
Orig ina l Is s ue Am ount:  $23,900,000
Principal Due:  October 1 , beg inn ing 2001
Interes t Due:  April 1  and October 1  o f each year, beg inn ing 2001

Security:  The Series  2001 Bonds  are payable  from  and s ecured by a  p ledge and lien on (i) m oney
 in certa in  funds  and accounts  es tablis hed under R es olu tion N o. 90-R-0052 of the C ity, as  am ended 
and s upplem ented (the "R es olu tion"), (ii) the Net R evenues  of the C ity's  U tility Sys tem , (iii) the Gros s  
Revenues  of the C ity's  Storm water Dra inage s ys tem  and (iv) certain  o ther am ounts  (the "Pledged 
Revenues ," as  defined here in) a ll as  m ore fu lly defined and des cribed here in  under the heading "TH E 
SER IES 2001 BOND S." The lien of the Series  2001 Bonds  on the Pledged Revenues  is  on a parity 
w ith  the lien thereon of the C ity's  Cons olidated U tility Sys tem s  R evenue Bonds , Series  1995.

Bond Ratings :  Moody's  Aaa, Standard and Poor's  AAA and Fitch AAA
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C ITY OF TALLAH AS S E E , FLOR ID A
SUM M ARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREM ENTS
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM  REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2 0 05
Se pte m be r 3 0 , 2 00 8
(in thousa nds )

Fis ca l
Ye ar 

En d in g      Prin cip a l      In te re s t         To ta l      

2 0 09 2 ,74 0$                1 ,41 7$                4 ,15 7$                
2 0 10 2 ,82 0 1 ,33 5 4 ,15 5
2 0 11 2 ,91 5 1 ,24 3 4 ,15 8
2 0 12 3 ,02 5 1 ,13 7 4 ,16 2
2 0 13 3 ,14 0 1 ,01 9 4 ,15 9
2 0 14 3 ,26 5 89 6 4 ,16 1
2 0 15 -- 75 3 75 3
2 0 16 -- 75 3 75 3
2 0 17 -- 75 3 75 3
2 0 18 -- 75 3 75 3

2 0 19  - 2 03 0 1 5 ,54 5 5 ,63 2 21 ,17 7

To ta ls 3 3 ,45 0$              15 ,69 1$              49 ,14 1$              

Bo n ds  D a ted :  Ju ly 1 4 , 2 00 5
Orig in a l Is s u e  Am o u nt:  $3 6 ,1 1 0 ,0 00
Prin cip a l D ue :  Octo be r 1 , b eg inn ing  20 0 8
In te res t D u e :  Ap ril 1  an d  Octo b er 1  o f e a ch  yea r, b eg in n in g  2 00 5

Se curity:  The  Se rie s  2 0 05  Bo n ds  a re  p a ya b le  from  a n d  s ecu re d  b y a  p le d ge  an d  lie n  o n  (i) m on e y
 in  ce rta in  fun ds  an d  accou n ts  es tab lis h ed  un d er R e s o lu tio n  N o . 9 0 -R -00 52  o f th e  C ity, as  am en de d  
an d  s u pp lem en ted  (the  "R e s o lu tion "), (i i) th e  N e t R eve nu es  o f th e  C ity's  U til ity Sys te m , (ii i) the  Gro s s  
R e ven u es  o f the  C ity's  S to rm w ate r D ra in ag e  s ys te m  a nd  (iv) ce rta in  o the r am ou n ts  (th e  "P led g ed  
R e ven u es ," a s  d e fin ed  he re in ) a ll as  m o re  fu lly de fine d  a nd  de s crib ed  he re in  un de r th e  he ad ing  "TH E 
SER IES 2 00 5  BON D S." Th e  lie n  o f th e  Serie s  2 00 5  Bo nd s  o n  th e  P led ge d  R e ve n ue s  is  o n  a  p a rity 
w ith  th e  lie n  th e re on  o f the  C ity's  C on s o lida ted  U til ity Sys tem s  R eve nu e  Bon d s , Series  19 9 5  a nd  20 0 1 .

Bo n d  R a ting s :  Moo d y's  Aa a , S tan da rd  a nd  Po o r's  AAA a n d  Fitch  AAA
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2007
September 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Fiscal
Year 

Ending     Principal      Interes t         Total      

2009 -- $                       7,950$               7,950$               
2010 1,610 7,950 9,560
2011 1,720 7,885 9,605
2012 1,790 7,817 9,607
2013 1,865 7,745 9,610
2014 1,935 7,670 9,605
2015 3,865 7,593 11,458
2016 4,020 7,438 11,458
2017 4,220 7,237 11,457
2018 4,430 7,026 11,456

2019 - 2030 139,005 78,681 217,686

Totals 164,460$           154,992$           319,452$           

Bonds  Dated:  Novem ber 8, 2007
Original Iss ue Am ount:  $164,460,000
Principal Due:  October 1, beginning 2010
Interes t Due:  April 1 and October 1 of each year, beginning 2008

Security:  The Series  2007 Bonds  are payable from  and secured by a pledge and lien on (i) m oney
 in certain funds  and accounts  es tablished under Resolution No. 90-R-0052 of the City, as  am ended 
and supplem ented (the "Resolution"), (ii) the Net Revenues  of the City's  Utility Sys tem , (iii) the Gross  
Revenues  of the City's  Storm water Drainage sys tem  and (iv) certain other am ounts  (the "Pledged 
Revenues ," as  defined herein) all as  m ore fully defined and described herein under the heading "THE 
SERIES 2007 BONDS." The lien of the Series  2007 Bonds  on the Pledged Revenues  is  on a parity 
with the lien thereon of the City's  Consolidated Utility Sys tem s  Revenue Bonds , Series  2001 and 2005.

Bond Ratings :  Moody's  Aa2, Standard and Poor's  AA and Fitch AA
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
AIRPORT SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
SERIES 2004
September 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Fiscal
Year 

Ending     Principal      Interes t       Total       

2009 800$                   159$                   959$                   
2010 825 133 958
2011 855 104 959
2012 885 72 957
2013 925 37 962

Totals  4,290$               505$                   4,795$               

Bonds  Dated:  Augus t 10, 2004
Original Issue Am ount:  $7,355,000
Principal Due:  October 1, beginning 2004
Interes t Due:  April 1 and October 1 of each year, beginning October 1, 2004
Security:  The bonds  are secured and payable from  the net revenues  of the Airport Sys tem .

Bond Ratings :  Moody's  Aaa, Fitch AAA
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This  part of the City’s  Comprehens ive Annual Financial report presents  detailed information as  a context for unders tanding
what the information in the financial s tatements , notes  disclosures , and required supplementary information says  about the
City’s  overall financial health.

CONTENTS PAGE

Financial Trends

These schedules  contain trend information to help the reader unders tand how the City's  financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net Assets  by Component 129
Changes  in Net A ssets 130
Fund Balances 133
Changes  in Fund Balances , Governmental Funds 134

Revenue Capacity

These schedules  contain information to help the reader as sess  the City 's  mos t s ignificant revenue
source, the property tax.

A ssessed Value and Es timated Actual Value of Taxable Property 135
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 136
Principal Property Taxpayers 137
Property Tax Levies  and Collections 138
A ssessed Value and Es timated Actual Value of Taxable Property 139

Debt Capacity

These schedules  present information to help the reader as sess  the affordability of the City's  current
levels  of outs tanding debt and the A gency's  ability to is sue additional debt in the future.

Ratios  of Outs tanding Debt by Type 140
Ratios  of General Bonded Debt Outs tanding 141
Direct and Overlapping Governmental A ctivities  Debt 142
Legal Debt M argin 143
Pledged-Revenue Coverage:
     Energy Revenue Bonds 144
     A irport Revenue Bonds 145
     Consolidated Utility Bonds 146

S TATISTICAL S ECTION
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 STATISTICAL SECTION 
 (Continued) 

 
 
 
 

       
 
Demographic and Economic Information  PAGE 
 
 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand  
the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place. 
 
Demographic Statistics 147 
Principal Employers 148 
 
Operating Information 
 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how  
the  information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and  
the activities it performs. 
 
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program 149 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 150 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 151 
Miscellaneous Statistical Data 152 
Schedule of Insurance in Force 153 
 
 
 
 
Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the  
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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       CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
                       DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

              LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
          (rate per 1,000 of assessed value)

Direct

City of Tallahassee Leon County
N.W. Fla Water   

Management
Fiscal 
Year Operating Operating Debt Service Operating Operating Total

1999 3.20 9.29 1.10 8.60 0.05 22.24

2000 3.20 8.78 1.08 8.58 0.05 21.69

2001 3.20 8.66 0.95 8.58 0.05 21.44

2002 3.20 8.61 0.92 8.57 0.05 21.35

2003 3.20 8.75 0.86 8.56 0.05 21.42

2004 3.70 8.42 0.81 8.55 0.05 21.53

2005 3.70 8.35 0.73 8.54 0.05 21.37

2006 3.70 8.01 0.65 8.54 0.05 20.95

2007 3.70 7.92 0.54 7.99 0.05 20.20

2008 3.17 7.45 0.48 7.21 0.05 18.36

Source:  Leon County Tax Collector

County  School Board

Overlapping
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Type of Business
Taxable 

Assessed Value Rank

Percentage of 
Total City 
Taxable 

Assessed Value

 Taxable 
Assessed 

Value Rank

Percentage of 
Total City 
Taxable 

Assessed Value

Embarq/Sprint-Florida, Inc. Communications 205,886$         1 1.53% 143,343$      1 1.50%

Smith Interest General Partnership Retail 153,163           2 1.14% -- -- -- 

Talquin Electric Corp, Inc. Utilities 104,794           3 0.78% 59,197          2 0.6

Tallahassee Medical Center, Inc. Medical 78,133             4 0.58% 18,193          9 0.2

DRA CRT Kogerama Land, LLC Real Estate 74,780             5 0.55% -- -- -- 

Stiles, J.A. III Etal, Trust Retail 59,358             6 0.44% -- -- -- 

Wal-Mart Stores, East Retail 50,933             7 0.38% -- -- -- 

St. Joe Company Real Estate 42,439             8 0.31% -- -- -- 

Northwood Associates, LLC Real Estate 39,374             9 0.29% -- -- -- 

City of Tallahassee Municipality 38,680             10 0.29% -- -- -- 

Governor's Square Mall Retail -- -- -- 52,223          3 0.5

Koger Equity, Inc. Real Estate -- -- -- 35,490          4 0.4

Florida Gas Transmission Compan Utilities -- -- -- 27,407          5 0.3

Melrose Apts. Of Tallahassee Real Estate -- -- -- 26,623          6 0.3

Tallahassee Mall Retail -- -- -- 26,119          7 0.3

Comcast Cablevision, Inc. Communications -- -- -- 19,323          8 0.2

Capital City Bank Finance -- -- -- 18,911          10 0.2

Other Taxpayers 12,636,418      93.71 9,147,044     95.5

     Total 13,483,958$    100% 9,573,873$   100%

Source:  Leon County Property Appraiser

Taxpayer

19972008

       CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
       PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS

        CURRENT YEAR AND ELEVEN YEARS AGO
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  PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(in thousands)

Total Taxable
Fiscal Assessed Assessed
 Year       Valuation           Valuation          Levy       Collection  Percent (1)

1999 9,900,599 4,884,575 15,697 15,107 96

2000 10,283,316 5,217,864 16,775 16,081 96

2001 10,653,601 5,558,877 17,856 17,231 97

2002 11,101,846 5,892,235 18,927 18,172 96

2003 11,718,893 6,335,214 20,363 19,503 96

2004  12,561,990 6,734,959 24,988 24,053 96

2005 13,321,051 7,370,184 27,306 26,349 96

2006 14,983,276 8,600,518 31,875 30,191 95

2007 17,643,758 10,083,178 37,370 35,492 95

2008 19,251,581 11,162,814 35,416 33,592 95

(1)  Florida Statutes provide for a discount of up to four percent for early payment of ad valorem taxes.  All 
unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1, and are sold at auction on June 1 of each year as tax 
certificates.  The City, after all tax certificates are sold, has fully collected all ad valorem tax revenues.

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA



- 139 -

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

TO
TA

L 
VA

LU
A

TI
O

N
S

9,
90

0,
59

8
$ 

 
10

,2
83

,3
17

$ 
10

,6
53

,6
03

$ 
11

,1
01

,8
45

$ 
   

11
,7

18
,8

92
$ 

   
12

,5
60

,9
90

$ 
   

13
,3

21
,0

51
$ 

   
14

,9
83

,2
76

$ 
   

17
,6

43
,7

58
$ 

   
19

,2
51

,5
81

$ 
   

EX
EM

PT
IO

N
S

A
gr

icu
ltu

ra
l A

dj
us

tm
en

t
39

,9
80

39
,8

99
40

,8
87

35
,9

19
40

,3
08

38
,9

11
40

,4
54

34
,9

20
37

,6
36

66
,9

19
G

ov
er

nm
en

t E
xe

m
pt

io
n

3,
93

1,
41

8
3,

93
5,

54
3

3,
93

5,
28

3
4,

08
9,

83
1

4,
13

9,
58

4
4,

45
5,

25
5

4,
23

5,
26

4
4,

23
0,

74
4

4,
84

3,
51

0
5,

03
3,

49
3

In
st

itu
tio

na
l E

xe
m

pt
io

n
31

0,
42

6
31

3,
74

6
32

3,
55

9
26

5,
87

6
30

7,
18

9
31

4,
93

8
39

1,
10

9
50

3,
93

1
59

7,
01

1
66

7,
12

0
In

di
vi

du
al 

/ H
om

es
te

ad
 E

xe
m

pt
io

ns
72

5,
62

6
76

6,
91

5
78

4,
72

0
80

1,
92

9
87

8,
03

4
99

3,
84

3
1,

25
7,

93
8

1,
58

1,
63

3
2,

04
4,

99
7

2,
27

7,
24

5
O

th
er

 E
xe

m
pt

io
ns

 &
 A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
8,

57
4

9,
34

9
10

,2
75

16
,0

55
18

,5
64

23
,0

84
26

,1
02

31
,5

30
37

,4
25

43
,9

90

TO
TA

L 
EX

EM
PT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 

   
 A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

5,
01

6,
02

4
5,

06
5,

45
2

5,
09

4,
72

4
5,

20
9,

61
0

5,
38

3,
67

9
5,

82
6,

03
1

5,
95

0,
86

7
6,

38
2,

75
8

7,
56

0,
57

9
8,

08
8,

76
7

TA
X

A
BL

E 
VA

LU
A

TI
O

N
 

4,
88

4,
57

4
$ 

 
5,

21
7,

86
5

$ 
  

5,
55

8,
87

9
$ 

  
5,

89
2,

23
5

$ 
   

  
6,

33
5,

21
3

$ 
   

  
6,

73
4,

95
9

$ 
   

  
7,

37
0,

18
4

$ 
   

  
8,

60
0,

51
8

$ 
   

  
10

,0
83

,1
79

$ 
   

11
,1

62
,8

14
$ 

   

M
IL

LA
G

E 
LE

VI
ED

 
3.

20
0

3.
20

0
3.

20
0

3.
20

0
3.

20
0

3.
20

0
3.

70
0

3.
70

0
3.

70
0

3.
17

0

TO
TA

L 
TA

X
ES

 L
EV

IE
D

 
15

,6
97

$ 
   

   
16

,7
74

$ 
   

   
 

17
,8

56
$ 

   
   

 
18

,9
27

$ 
   

   
   

 
20

,3
63

$ 
   

   
   

 
24

,9
88

$ 
   

   
   

 
27

,3
06

$ 
   

   
   

 
31

,8
75

$ 
   

   
   

 
37

,3
70

$ 
   

   
   

 
35

,4
16

$ 
   

   
   

 
Le

ss
: A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 &

 D
isc

ou
nt

52
2

56
7

59
8

63
7

68
1

84
8

93
7

1,
07

9
1,

25
3

1,
17

2
N

et
 T

ax
es

 L
ev

ied
15

,1
75

$ 
   

   
16

,2
07

$ 
   

   
 

17
,2

58
$ 

   
   

 
18

,2
90

$ 
   

   
   

 
19

,6
82

$ 
   

   
   

 
24

,1
40

$ 
   

   
   

 
26

,3
69

$ 
   

   
   

 
30

,7
96

$ 
   

   
   

 
36

,1
17

$ 
   

   
   

 
34

,2
44

$ 
   

   
   

 

N
ET

 C
O

LL
EC

TE
D

 (1
) (

2)
15

,1
07

$ 
   

   
16

,0
81

$ 
   

   
 

17
,2

31
$ 

   
   

 
18

,1
72

$ 
   

   
   

 
19

,5
03

$ 
   

   
   

 
24

,0
53

$ 
   

   
   

 
26

,3
49

$ 
   

   
   

 
30

,1
91

$ 
   

   
   

 
35

,4
42

$ 
   

   
   

 
33

,5
92

$ 
   

   
   

 

So
ur

ce
:  

Le
on

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
pp

ra
ise

r

(1
)   F

lo
rid

a S
ta

tu
te

s p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r a

 d
isc

ou
nt

 o
f u

p 
to

 fo
ur

 p
er

ce
nt

 fo
r e

ar
ly

 p
ay

m
en

t o
f a

d 
va

lo
re

m
 ta

xe
s. 

 A
ll 

un
pa

id
 ta

xe
s b

ec
om

e d
eli

nq
ue

nt
 o

n 
A

pr
il 

1 
an

d 
ar

e s
ol

d 
at

 au
ct

io
n 

on
 Ju

ne
 1

of
 ea

ch
 y

ea
r a

s t
ax

 ce
rti

fic
at

es
.  

Th
e C

ity
, a

fte
r a

ll 
ta

x c
er

tif
ica

te
s a

re
 so

ld
, h

as
 fu

lly
 co

lle
ct

ed
 al

l a
d 

va
lo

re
m

 ta
x r

ev
en

ue
s.

(2
)   N

et
 co

lle
ct

ed
 in

clu
de

s p
en

alt
ies

 o
r l

at
e p

ay
m

en
ts

.

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
TA

LL
AH

AS
SE

E,
 F

LO
RI

D
A

 L
EV

IE
D

 A
N

D
 C

O
LL

EC
TE

D
La

st
 T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
(in

 th
ou

sa
nd

s)

 A
SS

ES
SE

D
 V

AL
UA

TI
O

N
S,

 M
IL

LA
G

E 
AN

D
 T

AX
ES



- 140 -

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

En
de

d 
Se

pt
. 

30
,

G
en

er
al

 
R

ev
en

ue
 

Bo
nd

s

Su
ns

hi
ne

 
St

at
e L

oa
n 

Pa
ya

bl
e

Sp
ec

ia
l P

ur
po

se
 

R
ev

en
ue

 B
on

ds

19
99

20
,1

15
$ 

 
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
 

3,
74

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
20

00
18

,9
70

   
 

4,
50

0
   

   
   

 
3,

63
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
01

17
,7

75
   

 
4,

81
5

   
   

   
 

3,
52

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

02
14

,0
60

   
 

21
,7

00
   

   
  

3,
39

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

03
12

,6
80

   
 

21
,7

00
   

   
  

3,
26

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

04
11

,2
70

   
 

21
,7

00
   

   
  

3,
12

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

05
94

,8
05

   
 

31
,7

00
   

   
  

-- 
20

06
91

,3
50

   
 

31
,2

00
   

   
  

-- 
20

07
87

,7
95

   
 

30
,7

00
   

   
  

-- 
20

08
84

,1
35

   
 

30
,2

00
   

   
  

-- 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

En
de

d 
   

  
Se

pt
. 3

0,
Lo

an
 

Pa
ya

bl
e

El
ec

tr
ic

 
R

ev
en

ue
 

Bo
nd

s

El
ec

tr
ic

 
R

ef
un

di
ng

 
R

ev
en

ue
 B

on
ds

En
er

gy
 

Sy
st

em

En
er

gy
 

Sy
st

em
 

R
ef

un
di

ng
A

ir
po

rt
 

R
ef

un
di

ng
C

U
R

SB

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 
Ut

ili
ty

 S
ys

te
m

s 
R

ev
en

ue
 B

on
ds

Su
ns

hi
ne

 
St

at
e L

oa
n 

Pa
ya

bl
e

A
M

I 
Lo

an
 

Pa
ya

bl
e

To
ta

l P
ri

m
ar

y 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

of
 P

er
so

na
l 

In
co

m
e

Pe
r 

C
ap

ita

19
99

36
,5

00
$ 

 
2,

07
3

$ 
   

   
 

48
,2

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
19

3,
02

0
$ 

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

9,
91

0
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
83

,3
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

40
1,

50
2

$ 
   

   
   

5.
31

%
2,

75
7

$ 
 

20
00

57
,0

28
   

 
2,

20
8

   
   

   
 

42
,8

90
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

1,
69

0
   

  
-- 

9,
45

0
   

   
   

-- 
80

,3
40

   
   

   
   

   
 

-- 
-- 

41
0,

71
4

   
   

   
   

5.
16

%
2,

72
7

   
 

20
01

62
,4

82
   

 
2,

32
5

   
   

   
 

37
,2

50
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

7,
25

5
   

  
17

,3
80

   
   

 
8,

97
0

   
   

   
-- 

61
,0

15
   

   
   

   
   

 
-- 

-- 
40

2,
78

7
   

   
   

   
4.

88
%

2,
62

1
   

 
20

02
-- 

-- 
-- 

18
5,

00
5

   
  

43
,0

25
   

   
 

8,
46

5
   

   
   

57
,9

20
   

   
  

-- 
65

,5
28

   
   

  
-- 

39
9,

09
9

   
   

   
   

4.
73

%
2,

54
7

   
 

20
03

-- 
-- 

-- 
18

0,
30

0
   

  
36

,6
10

   
   

 
7,

94
0

   
   

   
55

,1
15

   
   

  
-- 

63
,0

72
   

   
  

-- 
38

0,
68

0
   

   
   

   
4.

38
%

2,
34

5
   

 
20

04
-- 

-- 
-- 

17
1,

41
0

   
  

34
,0

05
   

   
 

7,
29

5
   

   
   

51
,9

65
   

   
  

-- 
61

,0
64

   
   

  
-- 

36
1,

83
1

   
   

   
   

3.
90

%
2,

13
9

   
 

20
05

-- 
-- 

-- 
16

6,
39

5
   

  
27

,0
95

   
   

 
6,

57
0

   
   

   
60

,8
55

   
   

  
-- 

54
,3

20
   

   
  

-- 
44

1,
74

0
   

   
   

   
4.

54
%

2,
52

7
   

 
20

06
-- 

-- 
-- 

29
0,

10
0

   
  

19
,9

75
   

   
 

5,
83

0
   

   
   

57
,3

60
   

   
  

-- 
61

,5
06

   
   

  
-- 

55
7,

32
1

   
   

   
   

  
N/

A
3,

16
1

   
 

20
07

-- 
-- 

-- 
48

7,
91

0
   

  
12

,6
35

   
   

 
5,

07
0

   
   

   
53

,6
80

   
   

  
-- 

61
,1

43
   

   
  

-- 
73

8,
93

3
   

   
   

   
N/

A
4,

18
8

   
 

20
08

-- 
-- 

-- 
47

9,
59

0
   

  
11

,7
30

   
   

 
4,

29
0

   
   

   
21

4,
48

5
   

   
-- 

57
,0

30
   

   
  

35
,3

00
  

91
6,

76
0

   
   

   
   

  
N/

A
4,

95
6

   
 

So
ur

ce
:  C

ity
 o

f T
al

lah
as

se
e, 

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

N
ot

es
:   

Se
e D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 an

d 
Ec

on
om

ic
 S

ta
tis

tic
s f

or
 p

er
so

na
l i

nc
om

e a
nd

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

da
ta

.
   

   
   

   
 D

et
ai

ls 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e C

ity
's 

ou
tst

an
di

ng
 d

eb
t c

an
 b

e f
ou

nd
 in

 th
e n

ot
es

 to
 th

e f
in

an
ci

al
 st

at
em

en
ts.

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
:

Bu
sin

es
s-

ty
pe

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
:

   
   

 C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TA

LL
A

H
A

SS
EE

, F
LO

R
ID

A
R

A
TI

O
S 

O
F 

O
U

TS
TA

ND
IN

G
 D

EB
T 

BY
 T

Y
PE

LA
ST

 T
EN

 F
IS

C
AL

 Y
EA

R
S

(in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)



- 141 -

                  C IT Y  O F TA L LA H A SSEE , FL O R ID A
R A TIO S O F G E N ER A L B O N D E D  D EB T O U T STA N D IN G
                           L A ST  T EN  FISC A L Y E A R S 
                                (in  thousands)

Fiscal Y ear 
Ended Sept. 

30

G eneral 
R evenue 

B onds T otal

Percentage of A ctual 
T axable Value of 

Property (1)
Per    

C apita (2)

1999 20,115         20 ,115             0.17% 138
2000 18,970         18 ,970             0.16% 126
2001 17,775         17 ,775             0.14% 115
2002 14,060         14 ,060             0.11% 90
2003 12,680         12 ,680             0.09% 78
2004 11,270         11 ,270             0.08% 67
2005 94,805         94 ,805             0.60% 542
2006 91,350         91 ,350             0.52% 519
2007 87,795         87 ,795             0.42% 499
2008 84,135         84 ,135             0.37% 473

Source: C ity of Tallahassee, Accounting Services

(1)   See Assessed V alue and Estim ated Actual V alue of Taxable P roperty schedule for property value data.

(2)  See D emographic and Economic Statistics Schedule for P opulation data.

G eneral B onded D ebt O utstanding
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Debt Outstanding 

Estimated 
Percentage 

Applicable  (1)

Estimated Share 
of Overlapping 

Debt

Debt repaid with property taxes

Leon County School Board (2) 35,827$                68% 24,362$               

Debt repaid with non self-supporting
revenue debt

Leon County (3) 32,790                  68% 22,297                 

      Subtotal, Overlapping Debt 46,660                 

      City Direct Debt 84,135                 

     Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 130,795$             

(2) Leon County School Board

(3) Leon County

(1) City's share calculated based on 2008 County Taxable Value of $16,384,155 and City's Taxable Value of $11,162,814, 
which results in 68 percent overlapping

Governmental Unit

        CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

September 30, 2008
  (in thousands)
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                                             C IT Y  O F  T A L L A H A SSE E , F L O R ID A
                                     C O M PU T A T IO N  O F  L E G A L  D E B T  M A R G IN

                                                                (in  thousands)

TA X AB LE  ASSE SSE D  V ALU E 11,162 ,814$             

D ebt Lim it 20  P ercent of A ssessed  V alue 2 ,232 ,563$               

N ote : The C ity of Tallahassee has no  general ob ligation  debt ou tstanding and  
the am ount of general ob ligation  debt the C ity can  issue is lim ited  by C ity C harter.

                       SE P T E M B E R  30,2008
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Fiscal N et  Revenue Debt  Service Requirements (3)

Year Gross Op erat ing A vailable for     
Ending  Revenue (1) Exp enses (2) Debt Service Princip al Interest T otal Coverage

1999 180,174 $       127,427 $     52,747 $       5,100 $        11,402 $     16,502 $         3.20        

2000 204,477 135,942 68,535 6,690 11,902 18,592 3.69        

2001 261,226 188,665 72,561 10,375 11,918 22,293 3.25        

2002 211,218 152,988 58,230 4,235 12,598 16,833 3.46        

2003 248,845 193,211 55,634 11,120 10,380 21,500 2.59        

2004 282,250 236,732 45,518 11,495 9,998 21,493 2.12        

2005 303,028 251,417 51,611 11,925 9,565 21,490 2.40        

2006 371,885 308,448 63,437 12,335 14,128 26,463 2.40        

2007 378,909 309,195 69,714 12,760 15,932 28,692 2.43        

2008 407,472 326,715 80,757 9,225 24,470 33,695 2.40        

(1)  T otal op erating revenues p lus op erat ing interest  earned.
(2)  T otal op erating exp enses exclusive of dep reciation and amortiz at ion.
(3)  Includes p rincip al and interest  of revenue bonds only .  

(in  thousands)

CITY O F TALLAHAS S EE
REVENUE BO N D CO VERAGE
ENERGY REVENUE BO N DS

Last Ten Fiscal Years



- 145 -

Fiscal Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements (3)

Year Gross Operating Available for     
Ending  Revenue (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

1999 7,622$          5,021$         2,601$         440$           539$          979$              2.66        

2000 7,797 4,862 2,935 460 519 979 3.00        

2001 8,322 5,277 3,045 480 499 979 3.11        

2002 8,825 6,215 2,610 505 477 982 2.66        

2003 9,695 7,755 1,940 525 453 978 1.98        

2004 10,032 9,414 618 60 234 294 2.10        

2005 12,209 8,313 3,896 725 238 963 4.05        

2006 12,553 8,313 4,240 740 220 960 4.42        

2007 12,648 9,104 3,544 760 202 962 3.68        

2008 12,851 9,323 3,528 780 183 963 3.66        

(1)  Total operating revenues (p lus operating interest revenue & prepaid fees credit).
(2)  Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and amortization.
(3)   Includes p rincipal and interest of revenue bonds only .  

(in thousands)

CITY OF TALLAHAS S EE, FLORIDA
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS

LAS T TEN FIS CAL YEARS
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REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands)

Fiscal Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements (3)

Year Gross Operating Available for     
Ending  Revenue (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

1999 73,678$           35,776$        37,902$        2,895$          4,938$          7,833$          4.84              

2000 78,615 40,778 37,837 3,045 4,781 7,826 4.83             

2001 60,496 28,888 31,608 1,300 3,868 5,168 6.12             

2002 60,175 28,479 31,696 3,095 3,434 6,529 4.85             

2003 60,047 33,888 26,159 2,805 3,139 5,944 4.40             

2004 62,706 36,740 25,966 3,150 3,003 6,153 4.22             

2005 65,093 40,305 24,788 3,325 2,424 5,749 4.31             

2006 69,521 42,617 26,904 3,495 2,816 6,311 4.26             

2007 76,620 43,374 33,246 3,680 2,638 6,318 5.26             

2008 83,873 44,787 39,086 3,655 9,274 12,929 3.02             

(1)  Total operating revenues of the Sewer, Water, and Stormwater Utilities Funds plus operating interest earned.
(2)  Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and amortization.
(3)   Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds only.  

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
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Function/Program 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

City Commission & Appointed Official 132 133 132 131 132 126
Administration 188 191 187 185 184 184
Aviation 54 54 54 53 53 52
Communications 13 13 12 10 10 10
Customer Services 2 2 2 2 2 3
Economic Develpoment 7 8 9 9 9 9
Electric 290 290 282 280 282 282
Fire 267 267 265 265 265 263
Fleet 58 59 60 60 n/a n/a
Gas 40 40 40 40 41 42
Growth Management 83 83 80 80 79 77
Neighborhood & Community Services 85 86 83 79 81 80
Parks & Recreation 152 154 154 154 149 150
Planning 29 29 28 28 36 36
Police 498 499 492 491 492 487
Public Works 254 260 265 266 326 328
Solid Waste 102 108 107 103 103 98
Stormwater 91 94 85 83 84 83
StarMetro 167 169 140 138 138 139
Utility Services 167 166 165 165 165 157
Water Utility 303 304 301 298 296 297

Total 2,982   3,009     2,943     2,920     2,927     2,903     

Source:  City of Tallahassee, "Citizen's Budget Guide"

Full Time Equivalent Employees as of September 30

 CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES

 LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
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Fiscal Year
Function/Program 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Police
   Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
   Vehicular units
      Marked vehicles 318 311 291 290 288 283 275 275 271 270
      Motorcycles 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 7 7 7
      Unmarked vehicles 170 144 132 132 132 132 132 132 129 128
   Bicycle patrol units N/A 12 12 12 15 19 21 21 21 21
Fire stations 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15
Gas
   Gas lines (in miles) 818 806 780 744 731 715 670 645 618 610
   Plant Capacity (MCF) 24,000 24,000 24,000 42,000 24,322 21,900 21,873 21,873 18,000 18,000
Water 
   Water mains (in miles) N/A 1,170 1,147 1,143 1,131 1,172 1,212 1,200 980 973
    Deep Wells 27 27 27 28 28 28 28 29 29 29
    Plant Capacity (MGD) 72.3 72.3 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6
Electric
   Generating plants 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
   Generating capacity (KW) 795 795 795 747 699 699 699 706 46 508
   Transmission lines (in miles) 185 185 185 185 188 188 188 185 183 183
    Number of street lights N/A 17,168 16,812 16,682 16,466 16,143 15,330 15,480 15,303 14,886
   Distribution lines (in miles) N/A 2,693 2,693 2,586 2,115 2,115 2,050 2,000 1,900 1,900
Sewage
    Number of lift stations N/A 106 102 96 93 82 83 84 84 89
    Sanitary sewers (in miles) N/A 999 865 968 949 928 940 934.6 858 850
    Number of disposal plants 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
    Capacity of treatment plants (MGD) 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 27 32 32
Transit
    Bus Plaza 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
    Buses 66 66 66 49 49 48 49 48 44 41
Refuse Collection
   Collection trucks 36 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62
Parks and recreation
   Community centers and specialty centers 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
   Summer playgrounds and camps 43 43 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26
   Athletic fields 86 86 87 86 86 86 84 138 138 138
   Golf courses 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
   Swimming pools 13 13 9 9 9 9 9 10 10 8
   Park acerage 3,881 3,881 3,881 3,881 3,881 3,881 3,950 3,087 3,087 3,087
   Fitness trails 17 17 17 17 17 17 19 10 10 10
   Tennis/racquetball courts 72 67 70 69 69 69 69 71 71 71
   Gymnasiums, center sites 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
   Gymnasiums, school sites 9 9 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Airport 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Other public works
   Streets (miles) N/A 1,394 1,354 1,335 1,253 1,223 1,192 1,166 1,141 1,121
   Traffic signals  (1) 122 123 114 109 105 101 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Source: Various city departments
(1)  The department did not have asset tracking database prior to FY 04
N/A- Not Available

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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SINGLE AUDIT 

 
 
 Additional Elements Required by the Rules of the Auditor General and the Single 

Audit Act of 1996: 
 

FOR THE ENTITY 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 

FOR THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to 

Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in 
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the 
Auditor General         

  
 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - Federal Awards  
           and State Financial Assistance 

 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
 

OTHER 
 
     Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the 

Passenger Facility Charge Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance  
 
     Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

     Management Comments 

     Reply to Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control and Management Comments 
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CFDA/CSFA Federal Pass-Through/State
Number Grant Number Grant Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs:

Community Development Block Grant-Entitlement 14.218 B-9XMC-12-0019 N/A 1,521,427$        
HOME 14.239 M9X-MC-120221 N/A 1,297,021          
Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 S05-MC-120010 N/A 932                    
Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 S05-MC-120011 N/A 77,963               

Total U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 2,897,343          

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Direct Programs:

Special Appropriation Water Infrastructure Grant 66.606 XP-97436201 N/A 104,898             
Think About Personal Pollution (TAPP) Grant 66.460 C9-99451505-05 N/A 74,827               

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 179,725             

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Direct Programs:

Grants for Public Works and Economic Development Facilities 11.300 04-01-05502 N/A 22,014               

Total U.S. Department of Commerce 22,014               

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Pass through Florida Department of Environmental Protection:

Outdoor Recreation Acquisition, Development and Planning 15.916 N/A LW532 850                    

Total U.S. Department of the Interior 850                    

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION

Direct Programs:
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-X646 952 1,030,963          
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-X505 819-820 188,639             
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-X563 979 38,979               
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-X618 1007 523,127             
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-03-0229 413103 1 32,575               
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-X659 951 289,388             
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-03-0261 791 388,420             
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-04-0012 979 1,421,204          

Pass through Florida Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Grant 20.205 1991 997 AN837 (5,327)                
Highway Planning and Construction Grant 20.205 4046-044-C AOH88 18,005               

NATIONAL HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION
Pass through Florida Department of Transportation:

Occupant Protection 20.602 N/A AP263 40,471               
Campbell Connector Trail N/A N/A A0505 11,861               
Safety Incentives to Prevent Operation of Motor Vehicles by 20.605 N/A AOM64 31,649               

Intoxicated Persons

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION
Direct Programs:

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-12-0077-30 N/A 117,759             
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-12-0077-31 N/A 303,950             
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-12-0077-32 N/A 98,266               
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-12-0077-33 N/A 528,141             

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 5,058,070          

FEDERAL AWARDS

Grantor/Program Title

City of Tallahassee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Federal Grantor/Pass Through



- 162 -

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Programs:

Weed-N-Seed Grant 16.595 05-WS-Q5-0043 N/A 1,490                 
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 16.783 05-DJ-BX-0994 N/A 25,960               
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 16.783 2006-DJ-BX-0819 N/A 33,880               

Pass through Florida Department of Law Enforcement:
Community Prosecution and Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 N/A 2007-PNAG-LEON-1-P7-002 29,747               

Total U.S. Department of Justice 91,077               

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct Programs:

Law Enforcement Officers Reimbursement Agreement Program 97.090 HSTS0208HSLR350 N/A 408,216             

Pass through Florida Department of Community Affairs:
State Domestic Preparedness Equipment Support Program 97.004 N/A 05DS-2N-13-00-16-317 (2)                       
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 N/A 08-FA-B9-02-47-00-572 1,832,842          

Pass through Florida Department of Financial Services:
Florida Type II Hazardous Materials/WMD Teams N/A N/A 07S-5N-13-00-16-217 (5,839)                
Florida Urban Search and Rescue Task Forces N/A N/A 07-DS-5N-13-00-16-217 130,037             

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 2,365,254          

Total Federal Awards 10,614,333        

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Transportation Disadvantaged: Non-Sponsored Trips 55.001 N/A 22710618401 439,740             
Transportation Disadvantaged - (5311) 55.002 N/A 42136418426 97,055               
Transportation Disadvantaged - Medicaid (Net) 55.002 N/A 41604318201 615,169             
Service Development - FY 07/08 Star Metro 55.010 N/A 4225231/AP147 225,000             
Operating Assistance - FY 07/08 Star Metro 55.010 N/A 4140971/AOR08 963,930             
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226761-19401 4,760                 
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226769-19401 373,368             
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226776-18401 1,408                 
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226778-19401 1,448                 
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226781-18401 465,942             
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226792-18401 27,862               
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226820-19401 7,062                 
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226821-19401 3,820                 
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 405863-19401 6,789                 
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 409507-19401 35,262               
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 409513-19401 12,928               
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 417055-15801 11,242               
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 41899119401 533                    
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 420711-19401 17,853               
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 416011-19401 245,547             
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 414088-19401 154                    

Total Florida Department of Transportation 3,556,872          

STATE AWARDS

City of Tallahassee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Year Ended September 30, 2008
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City of Tallahassee

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Solid Waste Building Renovation 37.050 N/A IG0507 2,357                
Waste and Recycling ‐ 2007 37.050 N/A IG07‐02 39,147             
Waste and Recycling ‐ 2008 37.050 N/A N/A 34,414             
Tom Brown Park Project 37.017 N/A F06030 200,000           
Bond Community Neighborhood/Capital Cascades/St Aug Restoration 37.039 N/A LP6011 10,637             
Cascade Park Remediation 37.063 N/A S0195 724,262           

Total Florida Department of Environmental Protection 1,010,817        

FLORIDA EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
Gaines Street Redevelopment N/A N/A OT‐01‐128 100,098           

Total Florida Executive Office of the Governor 100,098           

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORP.
State Housing Initiatives Partnership Program 52.901 N/A N/A 1,237,313        

Total Florida Housing Finance Corp. 1,237,313        

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
Urban Infill and Redevelopment Assistance Grant 52.021 N/A 01‐II‐07‐02‐47‐02‐006 9,072                
Capital Cascade Segment 4 52.002 N/A 06‐CT‐64‐05‐F5‐A1‐010 225,429           
Tropical Storm Fay ‐ State Match N/A N/A N/A 303,445           
Front Porch Florida 52.030 N/A U00‐7 134,302           

Total Florida Department of Community Affairs 672,248           

Total State Awards 6,577,348        

Total Financial Assistance 17,191,681$   

NOTES
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance was prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
This method is consistent with the method used in the preparation of the City's financial statements.
The City does not use sub recipients.
No federal or state financial assistance was expended in non‐cash assistance.
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City of Tallahassee 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs – Federal Awards and State Financial 

Assistance 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued:       Unqualified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weakness(es) identified?     Yes 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

   to be material weaknesses?      Yes 
 

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?   No 
 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified?     No 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

   to be material weaknesses?       No 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal program?  Unqualified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in  
 accordance with OMB Circular A-133?     No 
 
Identification of major federal program: 
 
 CFDA Number   Name of Federal Program 
 

14.218                          Community Development Block Grant-Entitlement 
97.036    Disaster Grants – Public Assistance 
97.090    Law Enforcement Officers Reimbursement 

 
  
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $318,443 
 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?      Yes 
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State Awards 
 
Internal control over m ajor projects: 
 M aterial weakness(es) identified?     No 
 S ignificant defic iency(ies) identified not considered 
   to be m aterial weaknesses?        No 
 
T ype of auditors’ report issued on com pliance for m ajor state projects?  Unqualified 
 
Any audit find ings d isclosed that are required to be reported in  
 accordance w ith Chapter 10.550 , Rules of the Auditor G eneral?  No 
 
Identification of m ajor state projects: 
 
 CSFA Num ber   Nam e of State Project 
 
55.001                          T ransportation D isadvantaged: Non-Sponsored T rips 
37.063    Cascade Park  Rem ediation 
52.901    State Housing In itiatives Partnership Program  
55.004    A irport Im provem ent Program  
 
  
 
Dollar threshold used to dis tinguish between T ype A and Type B program s: $300,000 
 
Section II – Financial Statem ent Findings 
 
M aterial W eakness  2008-1   Accounting for Retired  Capital Assets 
 
Condition:   After a capital asset was retired, the fixed asset system  rem oved the cost basis of 
the asset but did not rem ove the depreciation schedule.   
 
Reason Im provem ent Needed: To ensure that there is not a m aterial m isstatem ent of the 
financia l statem ents and to properly account for capita l assets in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
  
Cause of Condition:  F ixed asset system  program m ing error. 
 
Effect of Condition: Deprec iation on retired capita l assets was recorded as an expense in the 
years after they were retired, thus m aterially overstating expenses and understating capita l 
assets in the years s ince the asset’s retirem ent. 
 
Recom m endation: A prior period adjustm ent was required and the C ity m ade the adjustm ent.  
W e recom m end that C ity review a sam ple of retirem ents during the fiscal year to  ensure that the 
cost and accum ulated depreciation related to the capital asset has been properly accounted for in 
the fixed asset system .  In addition, we recom m end that the program m ing error be researched 
and fixed. 
    
Costs and Benefits of Recom m ended Action: Depreciation on capita l assets w ill be properly 
recorded. 
 
C ity Response:  W e concur w ith the recom m endation.  The City has com m unicated th is issue 
w ith the software provider and we are currently work ing w ith them  in order to determ ine the 
appropriate software correction that needs to be m ade. 
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Significant Deficiency 2008- 2    Recording of Purchased Capital Assets  
 
Condition:   Land and vehicles were not properly recorded as capital assets in the year of purchase. 
  
Reason Improvement Needed: To ensure that there is not a material misstatement of the financial 
statements. 
 
Cause of Condition:  The City’s accounting services division relies on the City’s real estate and fleet 
division to inform them of any capital assets purchases. 
 
Effect of Condition: The land was not recorded as a capital asset in the year of purchase.  When the land 
was sold in the current year, the entire proceeds received from the sale were recognized as gain on sale 
of land.  This caused prior and current year assets to be understated and current year income to be 
overstated.  In addition, the vehicles purchased in the current year were expensed rather than capitalized, 
causing an understatement of income and an understatement of capital assets in the current year. 
 
Recommendation:  A prior period and current period adjustment was required for the land purchase and 
the City made the adjustment.  An adjustment was made in the current year to capitalize the vehicles.  A 
procedure should be developed by the City’s accounting services division to ensure that all capital asset 
transactions are properly recorded. 
    
Costs and Benefits of Recommended Action: Better information provided for decision-making.   
 
City Response:  We concur with the recommendation.  The Accounting Services Division will develop 
procedures to review all fixed asset related accounts to ensure that all capital asset transactions are 
properly recorded. 
 
 
Section III – Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
We noted no matters involving noncompliance that are required to be reported in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 or Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 
 



- 167 -

City of Tallahassee 
Sum m ary Schedule of Prior Audit F indings 

For the Year Ended Septem ber 30, 2008 
 

 
Federal P rogram s – None 
        (2007) 
 
 
S tate Pro jects –  None 
        (2007) 
 
 
F inancial S tatem ent F indings 
 
Significant Defic iency 2007- 1   Accounting for Capita l Assets 
 
In the prior year, we noted that depreciation expense on capita l assts was not properly 
recorded for som e assets. The accounting services d iv is ion re lies on the other divisions 
of the C ity to provide inform ation regard ing purchases of capita l assets and a lso the date 
that constructed assets are placed in service.  Som etim es there is a lag  between the 
date the asset was placed in  service and the date that the asset is  entered into the fixed 
asset system  which results in  a de lay in depreciation charges.  As a resu lt, deprecia tion 
on capita l assets m ay not be properly recorded due to tim ing  of entering of assets into 
the fixed asset system .  To properly account for capita l assets in  accordance w ith 
genera lly accepted accounting  principles, we recom m ended that sign ificant capita l 
assets be reviewed for proper entry date prior to year end.  Additiona lly, significant 
construction in progress should be reviewed at least annually to determ ine whether any 
assets had been com pleted and p laced in  service before fina l closing of the project is 
reported to  accounting.   
 
2008 Status: The C ity’s F ixed Asset policy was am ended to c larify the responsib ility of 
other departm ents of the C ity to provide accounting services with tim ely inform ation to  
record purchased assets as soon as they are placed in service.  The revised po licy was 
forwarded to a ll departm ents for their inform ation and com pliance. 
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Expenditures

Passenger Facility Charges Used: 

Passenger Facility Charge Application @02-04-C-00-TLH:
Project 9: Master Plan Update 1,653$              
Project 11: Terminal Rehabilitation Program 427,278

428,931

Passenger Facility Charge Appliction #05-05-U-00-TLH:
Project 6: Interactive Training System Improvements 60,002
Project 10: Terminal Apron Lighting Improvements 7,351

67,353

Passenger Facility Charge Appliction #06-06-C-00-TLH:
Project 1: Cargo Apron Expansion (148)
Project 2: Cargo Apron Access (56,321)
Project 5: Terminal Improvements 2,469
Project 6: GA Access Road Improvements 30,887
Project 7: Landside Directional Guidance Improvements 30,687
Project 8: In-Line Baggage Handling System 217,741
Project 9: Terminal Rehabilitation - Phase II 260,811
Project 10: Acquire Replacement ARRF Vehicle 164
Project 12: Electronic Airport Layout Plan 58,420
Project 13: Runway 9/27 Pre-Design 289,157
Project 14: Taxiway Z Rehabilitation Design 536
Project 15: Taxiway S Rehabilitation Design 1,451
Project 16: Taxiway M Bypass Design 2,851
Project 17: South Apron Expansion Design 5,257
Project 18: Airfield Signage Improvements Design 33,901
Project 19: Airfield Lighting Improvements Design 34,985
Project 20: Airport Access Control and Monitoring System Design 6,163

919,011

Total Passenger Facility Charges Used 1,415,295$       

City of Tallahassee
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Program Title
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March 16, 2009 
 
Mayor, Commissioners, 
City Manager, and Audit Committee 
City of Tallahassee 
Tallahassee, Florida 
 
Reply to Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control and Management Comments 
 
As a result of the audit of the City’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 
2008, our auditors, Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC, Certified Public Accountants, have issued 
their comments and recommendations on internal accounting control and related matters. 
The Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida require the auditor to submit such 
report and that an appropriate response to their report be prepared and submitted. 
 
All comments and recommendations made by the auditors have been carefully considered 
and our response is provided below. 
 
2008 – 1 Accounting for Retired Capital Assets  
We concur with the recommendation.  The City has communicated this issue with the 
software provider and we are currently working with them to determine the appropriate 
software correction that needs to be made. 
 
2008 – 2 Recording of Purchased Capital Assets  
We concur with the recommendation.  The Accounting Services Division will develop 
procedures to review all fixed asset related accounts to ensure that all capital asset 
transactions are properly recorded. 
 
2008 – 3 Recording of Receivables and Payables on Open Investment Transactions 
We concur with the recommendation.   Procedures will be put in place during 2009 to 
appropriately record all open investment trades.  
 
The following is provided to update the status of prior year comments and 
recommendations: 
 
2006 – 1 Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation 
NCS has found that certain sub recipients continue to fail to obtain the proper income 
verification documents.  NCS is now holding back funding from sub recipients until such 
failures are corrected.  Additionally, NCS plans to take over the income verification 
process from all sub recipients in the near future. 
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2007 – 1 Review of Grant Reporting 
The City currently does not have centralized grant accounting and reporting policies and 
procedures; management continues to evaluate the necessity for implementation of such 
policies and procedures. 
 
2007 – 2 Monitoring of Market Values of Investments 
During 2008 the Treasurer-Clerk’s office implemented a process to review market values 
for a sample of investments as part of our year-end procedures. 
 
2007 – 3 Uncollectible Receivables for “Capital Credits” 
During 2008 these receivables were written off. 
 
2007 – 4 Recording of Land Sales 
The City’s Fixed Asset Policy was amended to provided procedures to ensure that future 
land transactions are properly recorded.  The amended policy was forwarded to all the 
City departments for their information and compliance. 
 
2007 – 5 Accounting for Fixed Income Investments 
The Treasurer-Clerk’s office will be implementing procedures during 2009 to amortize 
the premium and discounts associated with fixed income investments. 
 
2007 – 6 Accounting for Investments 
During 2008 the accounting for purchases of investments was changed to the trade date 
as recommended. 
 
2007 – 7 Calculation of Accrued Leave for Union W orkers 
The City’s accrued leave calculations have been corrected and adjusted. 
 
2007 – 8 Accounting for Grant Receivables 
The Accounting Services Division has implemented procedures to review receivable 
balances for reasonableness. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Raoul A. Lavin 
Director of Management and Administration 
 
 


